HOYVYISIYy FAILVYISID3T

40 Nv3audng

810 ¢ T AON

AAIFO3Y

9301 a8eqd

QF-G7 :38uel axnuipy

07-ST afuel anuyy

0r-G :28uel 33U

SARD JO # 10U “y3am Jad
$|eaL Jo # Aq pale|naed
s1 8uipaa) 10N
sanjAap
anndepe Suiiddy .
FIUBISISSE AQPUELS .

Bulpaay upasyamog . Wawsafenoius
YHan BOUR)SISSE |830 Juipaay ucodg . 19 SipUIWIRI [BGIAA, . Jupaay
07-9T -98ues anuwy 0T-6 :23uel aynupy
sjupwIed 10 Buuonuow
o pue oju) dumad o Supuway e
FaupysIsse sannbay . S20YS 10 $70s
0£-57 :a8ues aanu S30US 10 "H0s ue Jumind ‘suopng
‘suonng ‘sraddiz ‘siaddiz yum djgy
Buissa.p Yim 3duelsisse |leucisedno aanbal ety .
YUM 3IUBISISSE [B10] salinbalshemly . Suigop no ke . Fujssaig
0€-ST :93uel aanuy 0T- 28Ul 1N
Jamoys Suuoyuow “Fuipuiway .
10 gn3 Jo 10/ul I3MOYS JO qnl 40 Ino/ul
QJUBISISSE BAISUDIXT . FDULISISSE [BLUILYA .
Sb-5E a8uel aanupy Bukig Aajes
Sujyieq pag . _ 10} BJUB)SISSE AQPUELS .
Supyieq Buiyieq aBuods . 131em Buimeiq .
YLM SOUEISISSE |B10) Buiyieq samoys/gn) . salddns 1o Fuide] . dujyieg
aunog o
2:N0§ Jaylouy Jayiouy
WICJ) 3IUBISISSY [ULITR LT TN 7 afuey aduey aduey
Jiuow 013N Jag yse] yum Haam UM safuey unim UM
J3d sinoy NI Jag SINoH FIURISISSY Jad saynua paudissy SYNUy puR Spa3aN £ poudissy | saduey ;ynuiy pue spaay paudissy saduey anu pue spaay Aunpay
19N [e10] Js|nu (e josanuy | [EETY | fauanbaiy sNUINY 24025 Ayisuaju) spaapy saInuy Z 81033 Aysuaju spaan saINuIY T 84035 Ayjsuaiu) spaapy /sey,
[43 38 B [i}; | 6 8 | L 9 5 ¥ £ z 1

IIUEISISSY |BUOSIDd P2303Id-J[3s s3d10yJ3uspuadaput pue ‘sad1nl9s aue) [euosIag ‘aie) ayidsay '3 aie) Juepusny SINOYIHY
SaleRNauag INPY J0} SIIIAIIS JO SINOH Aress3dap Ajeaipay Suizenajed ul asn 404
(SH1) spaepueis JnoH pue sise) pleaIPSIAl sesueyy




g jo 7 28ed

07-51 ‘8duel ainulpy |

Suium
Jo Suuoisod yum
QIUBISISSE FAISUAT .

uomsod 0T-5 :@3ues 23nU|IN
Huspuels e a1 Buntis
0€-57 @3uel anUIw € WoJy BUIsL ypm aouUelsisse AgPUES .
BIURISESSE UO-SPURH .
ey o} Jpoue U] AOUR]SISSE B WU .
paq woJy Fuiuajsuss 03 uowisod Areuonels {ucusod
Jo Suuomsod auo Wolj tudwaAo W FuiBueya/Funsnlpe}
LAIM BOURLSISSE €304 ALOLE|N (LUIE-UDN . Suuomsod yum Juidiay . Bupspsue |

0z-51 @3uUpL NUIA

feq
Awoyseiod Huifueys .
Jeq
Ia181e0 Bulhadwl .
JF2Y1ed DT-5 :@8uel 3nuIN
Jeulaixe Buidueyd
ssgderp BuiBuey . ueIsisse Agpuels . |
spasu aled
auzdAyY suunu AWLDIS0102 10 J2}F3YIRD
yiim Junsissy . Y d[sy [EUDISBIZN .
auznFAy dunapoy 1125 Suues|y
yim Funsissy L} ylm dijgy [euoisesng .
0€-67 3Fues unUiy jELMN JO Sunayior Sunp
% dYT Yim Junsissy . Buiyiopn yim Junsissy .
Supa)ioy uRdp30 wawdinbs / s3)/ddns
YlIM 3DURSISSE |B10 ] e fuo Buigsissy . Sunajioy Suaedald . unaflol

05-0§ 2duel BINUIA

dnayew SuiAjddy .

ey
pue spLey Juises .
ey Su
| iplesg/Buno)/sunlag . 07-0T :29uel anuiy
ey dwdag .
ey Fuyseay . s
&7-09 9Suel s1nuUly S)1eU oy Fue)) . a3 Ublu] uondiassId
sweiapun uou Juthjddy »
BUED UDIS pUE JIBY ‘sda|dupmeys . ey fulysnig/suiquioy . BJBY LIS
2upnol pue Suwoold Yiaa1 Buiysruy . SIPpUIWR) JEQIBA e | pugleyauin
Ul 2DUBISISSE [EI0L Buaeys . sanddns wo Suihe . oy/Fuiwooy

2IURISISSY [EUOSIdd PaIIRIIQ-$[9$ SBa10YIIUSpURdIPU] PUE ‘SITNNIBS JUED |EUDSID ‘DIE) 2)dSY B B1e) JUEPUINY SIINOUHYY
SBLIEIDYIUSG 1NPY 10§ SINAISS JO SINOH AJessadaN Ajjealpalyl Suniejnaje) ul asn 104
(SHL) Spiepuess JNoH pue jse] pIedpaAl SESUBYIY




9 40 € 98ed

_ . [

OvE-GET =3wes ANy

0ZT-0F -a8uel aanupy

Spaau Aspune| |eads
'Spasu Aspune) DU S84 116 9DURISISSE [BLUILELL
|EWAS sey [enpivpuy 1s5e3| 38 sannbas [enplalpy) Aipune’

SE2-66 “@Fues aununy

dnyaid Joy

29equed 1no Fumss
‘Yses3 1o Juihiie) .

POLWLIDD

apispaq Juiuea)a
pue Juitadwy .

3A0)S pue
101R135149. Buluea|) .
Saysip
Aulysem 'siauncd
‘doy aam1s Bujueap) .
suau) paq Suifueyn .
wooJuyieq Fuluea)d .
Bunsng . 06-09 :28uel 23Ny
[enplapuy
00E-02 :98uel aanuyy Ag pasn eate Suiay seaue JujuarySiens .
40 s100j} Suluea|y . paq ajew .
Juuesp $35€] 34e2 [euosiad Bupueap
UMM 3ouejsisse [e10] Jaye dn Fuiues|) . YIaa 90UB3SISSE [BuwalUly . | Sujues|n
Q7-ST :98ues aanuily 01-6 -aduel aanuly
uoienguwe sadetq
0g-5z :a8uel aynuyy ABYI@@YM 8a) Bujnowal pue ua
YlM 3IUBISISSY . Juuand yum azuesissy .
UOIB|NQLUE LIELD[RaYM sd335 Busn/Bupyjem Jupyem
Ulm 30URISISSE |10 ul JuiApess . UM BOURISISSE AGpPUELS . Fupiem

BIUBISISSY [eU0SIDd PAIIAIIQ-JIDS SI10YJIUSPUIdaPU] Puk ‘S3TIAIBS BIED |BUOSIA ‘1) B3IdSIY 3 3B JUBPUSNY SIIIOYIYY
Sduelnyauag 3 nPY J0) SIIIAISS JO SINOH Alessada) Ajjedipajy Sunenajey w asp Jo4
(SH.) spaepueis 1oy pue sjse] plealpaAl sesuedy




g j0 7 @8ed

LIUG J3g SYSEL || 40} SINOH/SBINUIIN TYLOL

o Jad SHsel ||V 10} SINOH/SaINuIN T¥10L

[EXETT
peIRROSSE
2Je3 jeuosiad
peleas
| -uswhodwg
D6-5E (F3uBe) AU _
06-55 98B U Aeme swat Sunang .
suapedpaw 0£-0T :@5uel anuwn
dn Sunpid .
Suiddoys SWway ||e 404 Sulddoys swayenxa dndupply e
Y1 S3UelSISSE |E10] ‘s orsupny e 15l Buiddoys e Sunedald Fuddoyg

06-0T ;28ue) 3NUIN

pooy
Sui@aund pue Fuipuug .
‘papIaU yl ‘leaw
AU DU JOJ SA0YI|
10} y2noua Jupjood
10§ ABp J1ad S31NULLL ST
BJING LUE MOJ[Y "SJaA0Y3}
1o} aup [2uonippy .

Jaddng o

yaun o

1sege3.g o
§R3NUIW

0€ 5! [eaw Jad awn

LUNLWIIKEW By PaX}003

a0 O S|ERW B1EAPU|
‘leawu oy Bupioo .
SIBUS .

1sepieasg w3
sjeaw 2sedaud Sudisy .
Supuued [eay .

pooy pasedaid Buinias
“Fumno Buiuie -

uotjeledsad
1ealy

22URISISSY [EUOSId Pa1IDJIQ-}ISS SI2I0YHUBPUIMDPU| PUB ‘SIS 2IR) [BUOSIA ‘BJeD d)idsay 7 318D JUBPUSLIY SAIOYIYY

S3LILPLYIUIG I NPY 10 SIIIAIDS JO SINOH Alessadap Ajjexipaa duizejnajed ul asp Jo4

(SHLL} spiepuels INOH puEe jsel eJpP3N sesuedly




9 10 g 38ed

10 passasse s, Aiep|auaq ay1 uo paseq S| UCIEINISN] YL ‘SUjILIM Ul PIIUSWNJ0P S| PASU 4O uonzedyisnl ayy se 3uoj os “ysey ayy oy asuel
SINUILL 33 JO $530XD U} SaNUIW aroidde AL 1030B1IU0D/3SINU SHA Y3 ‘PAAU PAUSLINIOP UO Paseq PUe SIDUBISWNIID [euoRdadxa U] e

‘p1eudoudde

24 j0u A|geqoud pinom pleq sl oym Alepdiyauaq e Joj Sulwooas 404 S3INUIW JO Jaquuinu wnwixew ayi Sutudisse ‘puey Jaylo ayy uQ ‘pajueiiem

S1 Buiyleq 1o} a8ues 3y} Ul SIINUI JO JIQLINU WNLWIXeW Y] JeY] puly ABW 3s2nU 243 ‘sanssi |eJ0IARYI] 10 BAINUS0D Sey Auedyauaqg

e Ji ‘9jdwexa 104 “Alepysusq ayl 0] I1133ds SUOIHIPUOD Uo paseq Aenyauaq ayy Joy e1endoidde aue 1ey) 2103 Ansuaju| spasy Jeyl 1o} a3uel
SINUIW U3 UIYUM SINUIW JO JagLUNU SY1 918|ND[ED |)IM J03DBIIU0D/9SINU SHQ Y {331y} 353Y3 40 auo AJuo sedwon) i/ pue ‘g ‘g suwnjoy ‘g

7jse1 2yl 4o} ajqedidde

$1 {9 pue ‘p ‘Z suwinjoD) aBues XNUIW YIIYM SUILLISIDP [|IM 1005 ANSUSIY| SPa3N 8yl pueyse) 2yl 1o} pata|dwod aq jjim puUE ay3 ‘g

10 ‘7 T s1 31025 Alsuaju| spaaN s Aleidiysuaq ayl § ysel ayj 4o} pajajdwod 2 10U p|noM P8 SHI pue dsel 1Y) J0) SAINUIW Aue 1o) panroidde

89 10U |;Im AJe1dlyBuaq 3yl ‘D SISEL BY] 10} 21025 ANSURIU| SpasN Y1 4] “Juedpiued Y3 Yum Bunsw 4Sdd 8yl Sulnp NY SHAQ 241 Ag
P2308||03 UORELUIOJUL WOLY PUE SINSDI JUBLUSSISSE YIYY 2Y1 LWIOJS ¥jse) Yoea 10y (£ 40 ‘7 ‘T ‘0) 2400 ANIsudiu) spaan s AJeldlysuag ayy Apjusp| g

HYauowSyaam iad Aivpifauaq ayy 1of 33up)sisso (puosiad 10 ‘2102 jouosiad ‘3102
aydsal ‘2402 Juppuanp Jo sinoy/sajnus 3|GOUOSDII pub AIDsSsarau Afpaspaw fo saquinu ayy 3303402 03 piab SHI 2y bunajdwod dof sdaig

"PU3 SHL 2yl Jo uone|dwod 1oy paiinbau s
91008 AlIsUa)u| SPAIN ¥ "J0IRIIUOD JUBLISSISSY Juspuadapu] 9y WOl NY ue Aq ps1npuod Juswssasse yyy 2yl Sulinp suollsanb o} sasuodsal
S,PAlIUSsRIdBI Jo/pue s Atedyyauag ay)l uo paseq yse} Yoes 4oy Arerdyauaq 2yt 03 21005 ANsualu| spaap e ugisse [jIm J0)oeIUOD/asinU SHO Yl

“Aeygsusg ay) 1o} pasoidde asuelsisse jeuosiad pa1dal1p-j|ss 10
‘2183 |eUOsIad ‘aued B)dSaL ‘a1ed JURpPUBLIL JO SINOY/SIINUIW BY] S8uBYD B Ul }nsal Aew pu3 SH1 pajepdn sy) AJepyauaq ayl o) pus SHL 8yl
21epdn [|1M 1019€11U02 10 NY SHQ 2Y} ‘S324N0S J2Y30 WO1) 3dUBIS(SSE U aBueyd e 1o Alediyauaq Y3 104 UOINPUOD Ul SSURYD B Si BISL) JIASUBYAL

"1ap|o
10 Tz pa3e Atelyausg Ynpe ue 10y Alessadau Ajledipaw aue Jey) saue)sisse [euosiad PalIaNp-Jas pue ‘aued Jeuosuad ‘aued 3)dsaa ‘a.ed Juepuane
40 SAn0Y pue senuiw pazuoyine pue panoidde Jo 1aqwinu 2y Buije|ndjed 1oy siseq aY3 apiAcad 0} Pasn | PUS (SH1) SPAEPUELS JINOH pue ysey ay|

PO spiepuels JNoH pue ysel anoqy ay3 Supajdwo) 4oy suopaNnLIsu|

JOUEISISSY [BUOSIA Pa1I3IIQ-J[RS SaI0YJIUSpURAIPUL PUE ‘SBIAIBS 31D |BUOSID ‘Dae) ahdsay 1§ S18D JUBPUINY SOYIYY
SaMePlAUag INPY Jo} S32HAIBS JO SANOH Asessadaly Ajeatpal Suizenale) ul asq) 104
(SH1) Spiepuels InoH pue jSe ) pIeJIP3IAl SESUBRY Y



9 Jo g ased

“yauow Jod SINOY JO JBQWINU Y3 18 SALLE 01 FEE ¥ AQ TT UWINOD Ul 23M Jad Sinoy Jo Jaquinu ay) Aidiyniy (T vwnjod

‘uwn|od
sIy3 Ul y2am Jad SInoy PuUB S3INUIW Y104 J31UT HIaM J3d SINOY JO JSqUINU 343 18 SALIE 01 09 AQ JSGUINU Jey] IPIAIT "6 UWNIOD UL YIS/ J3d
S9INUIN [B10} $O JIQUINU 3y} WO 0T UWN|O) Ul 80IN0S JDYIOUY WO HDIM 12 SIUBISISSY O SANUIA JO JSGUINL Y3 1DRIIGNS (T T UWnjo)

‘saapinoad Aq paijddns uoljewopus woly pue ‘Juedpiped ayl yum ssunadw 4sId Sulnp ‘S1nsal JUSLISSISSE YIYY U0 paseq

JOIRIIUOD JO 3SINU SH( Y} Aq paie|najed Ajlewnd st $32n0os Jaylo Ag papiroad $1Qv) pue s1ay Yim uoddns Jo Junowe sy) "0T uwnjos) ul
LI9sul pue (§29m e 90U0 ysel Suiyleq aJiud ay) swuopad 191ySnep ayl pue 20UeISISSE [R10) SPABU JaYlow s Aleldlysuaq syl asnedsq Buiyleq
10§ S3INUIW G “8-8) 30INOS 1230 3Y) Aq pawiopiad Buag a.e yse) Sy3 10§ SaINUIW PBUSISSE aY) O Auewu moy Aprewlxosdde alendjes

‘(uejd yyeay aSejueApy 2Jed1pay © 40 2IRIPBIA (2) JO/PUE ‘S|2BYM UO S|BBIA SE LONS SRDUBEE paseq-Alunwwos (g) ‘(spusiiy pue ‘sioqysiau
‘saAlle|as “8°9) s19AIFa1eD |BWIOUI () SE YINS 3IUNOS JIYIOUER WO YSBY BY] YHM dIUe]SISSe SuIAedal s) Asepjauag 8yl | (0T Uwnjon

‘6 uwin|o) Ul Prpold Jeyl Pasul KoM 1ad SIINUIL |10} 3y 1B DAL O} (8
uwn(o)) pauuopad siysel aya yaym yum Asuanbaiy ayl Ag £ 40 S ‘€ SULINOD Ul djSe) 3yl 40} PauSisse salnuilw 301 3y AjdiyniA 16 ULIN|o)

Jamaodd s Asepyauaqg syl Ag PI1IWQONS LOILBULIOJUL JO/pue Alerayauag

2y yuMm SuneaW 4$d 2y} Bupnp $9sinU SHA AQ Pa193)|0d uollRwWIOUI B3 ‘B|qedt|dde se ‘PUE SNSRI JUBLUSSISSE YidY Y3 LWL} UOIEWIOLU
uodn SUIMELP ‘JOJOBJIUOD 10 BSINU SHA Y3 A PAIRIND|BS 3q [|IM A1RIDISUSq B 404 paLLIopad st ysel UaniB e ydym yum Asuanbay

ayl "AJeidyjouaq ay3 40 $89UBIB R PUB SPIDU I|QeUOSES] DY) UO PIseq PauLIoyad s1ysel ayl yolym yum Aouanbauj syl 1sasu) ig uwiniod

‘(eaosdde Alosiuadns uanm
SULR1QO JOTIRIIUOI/3SINU SHQ 3Y} PUE UBPUSIIE 10 JIPIACIA Sl JO BOUSIUSAUOD DY} 404 10U S| UOITEILIASNT Y3 'SPI3U [BIIPIUI PIAIISYO

30UBISISSY [RUOSID PRIIBIIG-OS S2210YIUaPUBdapU] pUe ‘SIINISS 2E) [BUOSIad ‘3ae) BJidsaY 1 34D JUBPUINIY S2II0YIYY
SaLIRIIOUDE JNPY JO) SIIAIIS JO SINOH Alessadan Ajjedpain Sueinaje) ui asn Jod
(SH.L) SPJepue)S JNOKH pue Yse) PIedpay Sesuey



Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Request for an Amendment to a §1915(c)

Home and Community-Based Services Waiver

I. Request Information

Arkansas

A,  The State of requests approval for an amendment to the following

Medicaid home and community-based services waiver approved under authority of §1915(c) of the
Social Security Act,

B. Waiver Title (optional: | ARChoices in Homecare |

C. CMS Waiver Number: | AR.0195 | R E C E IVE D

D. Amendment Number (4ssigned by CMS): :

NGV 15 2018
E.1 Proposed Effective Date: [ 01-01-2019 |
BUREAU OF
E.2 Approved Effective Date (CMS LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH
Use):

Il.  Purpose(s) of Amendment

Purpose(s) of the Amendment. Describe the purpose(s) of the amendment:

The ARChoices in Homecare waiver is being amended regarding the following;

1. Section 1.F is amended to clarify that the State does not enroll individuals who need a skilled
level of nursing care. Conforms to current State administrative rules,

2. For assessments and re-assessments, replacement of (a) independent assessments performed by
DHS registered nurses (RNs) using the ArPath assessment instrument with (b) independent
assessments performed by RNs of the DHS Independent Assessment Contractor using the new
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument.

3. For Attendant Care Services and Respite Care Services, policy reforms and clarifications to limit
the amount, frequency, and duration based on Task and Hour Standards; reduce overuse, misuse,
and potential abuse of services; and revise scope of services descriptions.

4. For Attendant Care Services, three Instrumental Activity of Daily Living (IADL) tasks are
eliminated (managing basic personal finances; communication with others, and traveling) to align
with State Plan personal care services and self-directed personal assistance services (Independent
Choices), reduce risk of duplication, and improve program integrity; and (for waiver participants)
synchronize the prior authorization/prior approval of State Plan personal care services and waiver
Attendant Care Services,

5. The deletion of Adult Familv Home Services. an obsolete service not used by enrollees;

State: Request for Amendment: 1
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

6. The addition of a new service, Prevocational Services, for persons with physical disabilities.

7. To ensure cost effectiveness and fiscal sustainability of waiver services, the maximum dollar
amount of waiver services authorized for each specific participant is limited by a prospectively
determined Individual Services Budget (ISB).

8. Various technical revisions are made to reflect responsibilities of new DHS Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (a new operating agency), new name of the Division of
Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (formerly Division of Aging and Adult
Services, an operating agency), and location of Office of Long-Term Care (OLTC) in DPSQA.

9. To accommodate past and projected growth in participation in ARChoices, the limitations on the
maximum number of participants served at any point in time are increased to 9,071 for Waiver
Year 4; and 9,434 for Waiver Year 5.

III. Nature of the Amendment

A. Component(s) of the Approved Waiver Affected by the Amendment. This amendment affects the
following component(s) of the approved waiver. Revisions to the affected subsection(s) of these
componeni(s) are being submitted concurrently fecheck each that applies):

Component of the Approved Waiver Subsection(s)
X | Waiver Application

m % 2=

X | Appendix A — Waiver Administration and Operation A-1

A-2-b

A-3

A-5

A-6

A-7

Quality Improvement
X | Appendix B — Participant Access and Eligibility B-3-b

B-5-b

B-5-d

B-6-c,d, e, £ i, and ]
Quality Improvement
B-7-a

B-8

X | Appendix C — Participant Services C-1/C-3

C-1-¢
C-2:10f3-a,b, C-2:3 of 3-¢,
C-4-a

State: Request for Amendment: 2
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Component of the Approved Waiver Subsection(s)
Quality Improvement

X | Appendix D — Participant Centered Service Planning and D-1:30f8,40f8, 50f8, 6 of
Delivery 8 70f8 8of8

D-2-a, b
Quality Improvement

O | Appendix E — Participant Direction of Services
X | Appendix F — Participant Rights E-1
F-3-b, ¢
X | Appendix G — Participant Safeguards G-1-b, ¢, d, e
G-2
Quality Improvement
G-3:10f2
X | Appendix H — Quality Improvement Strategy H-1-a, b

X | Appendix 1 — Financial Accountability I-}

Quality Improvement
1-2-a, d

I-5-b

X | Appendix J — Cost-Neutrality Demonstration J-1

J-2:10f9(a.), 3 of 9 (c.i), 4 of
9,5 of 9 (d.il.), 6 of 9 {d.ir), 7
of 9 (d.i1.), 8 of 9 (d.ii.), 9 of 9
(d.ii.)

B. Nature of the Amendment. Indicate the nature of the changes to the waiver that are proposed in the
amendment (check each that applies).

Modify target group(s)
Modify Medicaid eligibility
Add/delete services

Revise service specifications

Revise provider qualifications

Increase/decrease number of participants

Revise cost neutrality demonstration

Add participant-direction of services
Other (specify):

= Ol =] 0O Ol == =l0O

1. Transition independent assessment process from (a) DHS RNs using the ArPath
instrument to (b) RNs of independent assessment contractor using the Arkansas
Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument, DHS RNs will gather additional
information from individuals in connection with developing the person-centered service
plan (PCSP).

State: Request for Amendment: 3
Effective Date




L_

Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Add limit on the maximum dollar amount of waiver services authorized for each specific
participant by the prospectively determined Individual Services Budget (ISB).

To accommodate past and projected growth in participation in ARChoices, the
limitations on the maximum number of participants served at any point in time are
increased to 9,071 for Waiver Year 4; and 9,434 for Waiver Year 5.

Technical edits to reflect changes in operating divisions (names, responsibilities).

A. The Medicaid agency representative with whom CMS should communicate regarding this amendment

182

First Name: Dave

Last Name Mills

Title: Business Operations Manager. Office of Policy Coordination & Promulgation
Agency: Arkansas Department of Human Services
Address 1: P. O. Box 1437, Slot §-295

City Little Rock

State AR

Zip Code 72203-1437

Telephone: {501) 320-6306

F-mail dave.mills@dhs.arkansas.gov

Fax Number | (501) 404-4619

If applicable, the operating agency representative with whom CMS should communicate regarding

this amendment is:

First Name: Mark

Last Name White

Title: Deputy Director

Ageney: Arkangas Department o_f Human Services. Division of Aging, Adult, and
Behavioral Health Services

Address 1: P. O. Box 1437, Slot §-530

City Little Rock

State AR

Zip Code 72203-1437

Telephone: (501) 320-6009

E-mail mark.white@dhs.arkansas.gov

Fax Number | (501) 682-8155

Request for Amendment: 4

St;te: N
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Authorizing Signature

This document, together with the attached revisions to the affected components of the waiver, constitutes
the State's request to amend its approved waiver under §1915(c) of the Social Security Act. The State
affirms that it will abide by all provisions of the waiver, including the provisions of this amendment when
approved by CMS. The State further attests that it will continuously operate the waiver in accordance with
the assurances specified in Section V and the additional requirements specified in Section VI of the
approved waiver. The State certifies that additional proposed revisions to the waiver request will be
submitted by the Medicaid agency in the form of additional waiver amendments.

Signature: Date: | November 16, 2019

State Medicaid Director or Designee

First Name: Jay

Last Name Hill

Title: Drirector

Agency: Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Aging. Adult. and
Behavioral Health Services

Address 1: P.O. Box 1437. Siot §-530

Address 2:

City Little Rock

State Arkansas

Zip Code 72203-1437

Telephone: (501) 320-6009

E-mail jay hill@dhs.arkansas.gov

Fax Number (5011) 682-8155

State: ] ) Request for Amendment: 5
Effective Date |




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

REQUESTED AMENDMENT TO WAIVER INFORMATION

1. Request Information

F. Level(s) of Care

This waiver is requested in order to provide home and community-based waiver services to individuals
who, but for the provision of such services, would require the following level(s) of care, the costs of
which would be reimbursed under the approved Medicaid State plan (check each that applies):

X Nursing Facility
X Nursing Facility as defined in 42 CFR 440.40 and 42 CFR 440.155

If applicable, specify whether the State additionally limits the waiver to subcategories of
the nursing facility level of care:

Individuals requiring a skilled level of care are not eligible for the ARChoices program.

2. Brief Waiver Description

Brief Waiver Description. In one page or less, briefly describe the purpose of the waiver, including its
goals, objectives, organizational structure (e.g., the roles of state, local and other entities), and service
delivery methods.

The purpose of the ARChoices in Homecare (ARChoices) waiver is to offer cost-effective, person-
centered home and community-based services as an alternative to nursing home placement to persons
aged 21 to 64 years of age with a physical disability or 65 and older who require an intermediate level of
care in a nursing facility. Through person-centered service plans managed by State-employed registered
nurses (RN), the waiver maintains Medicaid-eligible participants at home, promotes dignity, autonomy,
privacy, and safety, fosters community inclusion, and precludes or postpones institutionalization of the
participant.

ARChoices is administered by two state operating agencies, the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral
Health Services (DAABHS) and the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA).
DAABHS and DPSQA operate under the authority of the Division of Medical Services (DMS), the
Medicaid Agency. DAABHS, DPSQA, and DMS are all under the umbrella of the Arkansas Department
of Human Services (DHS). DMS is responsible for all policy decisions concerning the waiver,
promulgation of provider manuals and regulations governing the waiver, reimbursement of certified
waiver providers, and oversight of all waiver-related functions delegated to DAABHS and DPSQA.
DAABHS is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the waiver, establishing waiver program
policies and procedures, and overseeing the development and management of person-centered service
plans, among other functions. DPSQA, through its Office of Long Term Care (OLTC), is responsible for
the final determination of level of care. DPSQA is also responsible for provider certification, licensure for
ARChoices services such as adult day care and adult day healthcare, compliance, and provider quality
assurance. DMS and DAABHS share the responsibility for monitoring and overseeing the performance of
the Independent Assessment Contractor and the Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system.

Functional eligibility for the waiver is determined using assessments and reassessments performed by the
State’s Independent Assessment Contractor using a new electronic instrument, the Arkansas Independent
Assessment (ARIA) system and the contractor’s team of registered nurses. The assessment is sent to the

State: Request for Amendment: 6
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Office of Long-Term Care (OLTC) in the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA)
to determine if the applicant’s functional need is at the nursing home level of care. If an applicant is
determined both financially and functionally eligible, the DHS county office approves the application.

Services are provided according to individualized person-centered service plans that are developed and
authorized by DHS RNs. Service needs are assessed by the Independent Assessment Contractor using the
ARIA instrument. Participants’ preferences, goals, desired outcomes, and risk factors are assessed by the
DHS RN. ARChoices services include Attendant Care, Adult Day Services, Adult Day Health Services,
Home-Delivered Meals, Personal Emergency Response System (PERS), Environmental Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment, Prevocational Services, and Respite Care (in-home & facility-based).

Each ARChoices person-centered service plan includes the Individual Services Budget (ISB) amount
applicable to the participant and determined prospectively by population groupings using the
methodology and population-specific factors specified in Appendix C-4(a). The total cost of all
authorized services (other than environmental modifications/adaptive equipment) in any ARChoices
person-centered service plan (including provisional plans) may not exceed the participant’s ISB amount
applicable to the time period covered by the service plan.

Both the person-centered service plan and the ISB are informed by the tier level assigned by the ARIA
instrument to the participant. The tier level is based on the individual’s functional needs as determined
during the ARTA-based assessment process.

Attachment #1: Changes from Previous Approved Waiver That May Require a Transition Plan.

Instructions: If applicable, check the box next to any of the following changes from the current
approved waiver that you are making with this application. Check all of the boxes that apply. If
you check any of the boxes, you will be prompted to complete a transition plan.

Replacing an approved waiver with this waiver.

Combining waivers.

Splitting one waiver into two waivers.

X Eliminating a service,
Adding or decreasing an individual cost limit pertaining to eligibility
X Adding or decreasing limits to a service or a set of services, as specified in Appendix C

Reducing the unduplicated count of participants (Factor C).
Adding new, or decreasing, a limitation on the number of participants served at any point

in time.

X Making any changes that could result in some participants losing eligibility or being
transferred to another waiver under 1915(c) or another Medicaid authority.

X Making any changes that could result in reduced services to participants.

State: I Request for Amendment: 7
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Specify the transition plan for the waiver:

(Please refer to Section Main (B), "Additional Needed Information (Optional)", for the full Transition
Plan, as it is too long for this text box in the waiver portal.)

B: Additional Needed Information (Optional):
Provide additional needed information for the waiver (optional):

Transition Plan for the Waiver

Similarities and differences between the services covered in the approved waiver and those covered
in the amended waiver:

All types of services covered in the approved waiver continue to be covered in the amended waiver,
except as follows:

1. The amended waiver adds a new Prevocational Services benefit for persons with physical disabilities
who wish who wish to join the general workforce. Prevocational Services are a range of learning and
experiential type activities to help prepare a participant for paid employment or self-employment in
the community.

2. The amended waiver eliminates Adult Family Home Services, which is not used by any waiver
participants and obsolete.

When services in the approved waiver will not be offered in the new or renewed/amended waiver or
will be offered in lesser amount, how the health and welfare of persons who receive services
through the approved waiver will be assured:

No type of service covered by the approved waiver and received by any current participant is
discontinued under the amended waiver.

The amended waiver modifies the scope of attendant care services to align with Instrumental Activity of
Daily Living (IADL) tasks covered for adults under the State Plan personal care services benefit and the
self-directed personal assistance program (Independent Choices). The modifications will also support the
new assessment system and waiver administration, effectively use the capabilities of the new assessment
tool, reduce duplication and inappropriate service substitutions, reduce a risk of abuse of beneficiary
personal finances, and reduce other program integrity risks. Specially, three IADL tasks not covered
under the under the State Plan personal care services benefit are eliminated from the ARChoices attendant
care scope of services (i.¢., managing basic personal finances, communication with others, and traveling).

By definition, all IADLSs, whether or not assistance is covered, are not necessary for fundamental
functioning. Human assistance with medically necessary ADLs (such as toileting and mobility and
ambulating) remain covered both in the home setting and outside the home when a waiver participant
wishes to participate in community activities or attend religious services and needs such assistance at
those venues. Non-emergency medical transportation is already a covered service. Management of a
participant’s personal finances should be performed by either the participant themselves if able or by a
properly delegated and qualified family member or professional. Management of finances by attendants
presents risks for abuse and oversight is extremely difficult. With modern communications technology,
communication with others is far more readily available and, where assistance is needed, it is incidental to
time covered for other covered services or tasks. Finally, under the current ArPath assessment system

State: Request for Amendment: 8
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

replaced in this waiver amendment and ArPath use of RUGs-based hours calculations, time for these three
TADL tasks was rarely explicitly covered, identified, or quantified or otherwise supported by the RUGs-
determined hours per the assessment results, and/or in approved in service plans. Therefore, these reforms
to the IADL-related portion of the attendant care service description are not expected to adversely affect
participant health and welfare.

The amended waiver includes policy reforms to improve program integrity, better ensure cost-
effectiveness, support fiscal sustainability, and provide transparency of the actual costs of waiver services.
Specifically, these reforms are:

1. Program Integrity Reforms: The service definitions and service limitations to the amount, duration,
and frequency of Attendant Care Services and Respite Care Services are clarified and improved to
reduce overuse, misuse, and duplication of services; ensure only medically necessary services are
covered; and better ensure waiver services do not inappropriately supplant other services available to
the participant (such as family supports, Medicare covered services, and targeted or supplemental
services offered by a participant’s Medicare Advantage plan).

2. Prospective Individual Services Budget: The Individual Services Budget (ISB), a prospectively
determined dollar limit on the amount of ali waiver services that may be authorized in a service plan
over and above any limits on amount, duration, and frequency that apply to individual waiver
services. (Please note that the Individual Services Budget applies post-eligibility and is not an
“individual cost limit pertaining to eligibility” as defined in CMS guidance.)

In individual cases and as part of the person-centered service planning process, these reforms may result
in a lesser amount of authorized waiver services than may have been authorized previously in the
participant’s most recent service plan under the approved (original} waiver. Through a range of policies
and safeguards, the state will assure the health and welfare of persons who now receive services through
the approved waiver but for whom services may be offered in a lesser amount under the amended waiver.
These include:

1. The registered nurses who develop the person-centered service plans have a reasonable degree of
professional discretion to adjust the amount, duration, and frequency of Attendant Care Services and
Respite Care Services to meet individual needs and circumstances. The amended waiver itself covers
other services that may be adjusted, as appropriate.

2. Waiver eligibility also provides participants with access to a broad mix of services covered under the
Arkansas Medicaid State Plan, including personal care, durable medical equipment, and targeted case
management.,

3. After considering the participant’s assessed needs, prioritics, preferences, goals, and risk factors, if
services authorized in the individual’s person-centered service plan are not sufficient to meet their
needs, the registered nurse will make referrals to appropriate services available through the Medicaid
State Plan or another waiver program, Medicare, the participant’s Medicare Advantage plan or
Medicare prescription drug plan, and other federal, state, or community programs.

4. In the event the waiver services authorized for the participant within the limit of the applicable
Individual Services Budget amount, Medicaid State Plan services, other waiver services, Medicare-
covered services, and other available family and community supports, when taken together, are
insufficient to meet the participant’s needs, the DAABHS registered nurse will counsel the participant
on Medicaid-covered services in other settings that are available to meet their needs (e.g., nursing

State: Request for Amendment: 9
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(¢c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

facility services and assisted living facility services) and make appropriate referrals. The nurse may
also order a re-assessment of the participant.

5. In the event that a participant’s Individual Services Budget (ISB) amount requires limitations to
waiver services (that otherwise could be authorized for the person in the absence of the ISB) to ensure
that the applicable ISB amount is not exceeded, the participant will be given the opportunity during
the person-centered service plan process to choose a different mix, type, or amount of waiver covered
services. (For example, the participant could decide to forego a day of adult day health services to
have additional attendant care hours.)

6. As detailed in the amended waiver (appendix C-4), the prospective Individual Services Budget
amounts are determined using population-based factors.

7. Participants may request an exception to their Individual Services Budget amount. A panel of
registered nurses will review exception requests to determine if an adjustment is necessary due to
unusual, exceptional circumstances. Approved exceptions will be in the form of a temporary increase
in the participant’s Individual Services Budget amount for a period not to exceed one year.

8. Further, the revised service definitions and service limitations for Attendant Care Services and
Respite Care Services are written to ensure that services authorized and received are reasonable and
medically necessary, consistent with the participant’s needs and risks as determined through the
independent assessment, not duplicative, and exclude coverage of services unrelated or contrary to the
participant’s health and welfare. This inclodes nurse review and approval of the number of service
hours for tasks according to published medical necessity guidelines (Task and Hour Standards). The
overuse, misuse, abuse, or duplication of a covered service do not support a person’s health and
welfare. The receipt of medically unnecessary services does not serve the health and welfare of
participants and in fact may adversely affect a beneficiary’s health and welfare. Therefore, by design,
the application of these new policies will serve to further protect participant health and welfare by
ensuring that service scopes and amounts, durations, and frequencies of services under the amended
waiver are sufficient, reasonably flexible to meet differences in participants’ assessed needs, and
exclude medically unnecessary activities and quantities.

A large proportion of waiver participants are also Medicare enrollees. Whenever possible, dual ¢ligible
beneficiaries should access and receive Medicare-covered, medically necessary services and supports
rather than relying upon substitute or alternative Medicaid State Plan or waiver-based services. This
objective is consistent with Medicare beneficiary rights and Medicaid’s status as secondary payor and is
essential for Medicaid program integrity and fiscal sustainability. Therefore, it is important to note recent
significant policy changes easing or expanding the availability of home-based services and supports
through the federal Medicare home health benefit and new Medicare Advantage plan supplemental
benefits for persons with chrenic conditions.

Broader Medicare home health nursing, home health aide, and therapy services coverage as a result of the
Jimmo v. Sebelius settlement and associated CMS policy clarifications in 2013-2017 is expected to
eliminate longstanding impediments to beneficiaries receiving these Medicare-reimbursed services. Under
the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018 (BBA 2018), Medicare’s documentation requirements for home health
eligibility were simplified, reducing a significant obstacle for home health agencies to receive coverage
approvals for their patients (BBA 2018 section 51002). In both instances, prior policies tended to restrict
access to Medicare-covered services, forcing many providers and their patients nationwide to seek
coverage through Medicaid and Medicaid HCBS waiver programs instead. For waiver participants who
are dual eligibles, these positive policy changes should improve their ability to access, when medically

State: Request for Amendment: 10
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

necessary, Medicare-covered nursing visits and Medicare home health aide assistance with ADL tasks
like bathing, dressing, and toileting,

Further, starting in CY 2019, Medicare Advantage (MA) health plans (including MA Special Needs Plans
for dual eligibles) may offer supplemental services not otherwise covered under regular Medicare Part A
or Part B benefits and at no additional cost to plan enrollees. These targeted or supplemental benefits may
include a wide range of non-medical, in-home services or supports. They must be designed to improve or
maintain the health or overall functioning of beneficiaries with chronic conditions. This new supplemental
benefit option in Medicare Advantage (Medicare Part C) is through the Medicare Advantage Value-Based
Insurance Design demonstration (expanding nationwide as required under BBA 2018 section 50321), the
new expanded benefit option for chronically ill enrollees created by BBA 2018 section 50322 (42 U.S.C.
1395w-22(a)(3 (D)), and CMS final rules promulgated on April 2, 2018 (CMS-4182-F). Medicare
Advantage plans will vary is how they choose to use this increased flexibility and Medicare Part C
enrollment is voluntary. However, many waiver participants may have access to “Medicaid-like”
supportive services offered through their MA plan or one or more of the competing MA plans available to
them in Arkansas.

How persons served in the existing waiver are eligible to participate in the amended waiver:

[ndividuals served in the existing waiver may continue to participate in this HCBS program under the
amended waiver, provided they (1) continue to meet financial eligibility and (2) meet the functional level
of care criteria for the program as defined in the state rule and determined following their reassessment
under the new Arkansas [ndependent Assessment (ARIA) process.

The level of care criteria for watver and nursing facility services are established by state rule and are
unchanged. The amended waiver includes a clarification that under the existing functional level of care
criteria that persons requiring skilled care (as defined in the state rule) are not eligible for the waiver. This
re-states existing policy and is incorporated in the assessment and eligibility determination processes.

The approved waiver provides for assessments using the ArPath system, which is based primarily on the
interRAI instrument. The ArPath system includes two algorithms that gather necessary information to
ascertain whether an applicant or participant needs the state’s level of care criteria related to Alzheimer’s
or related dementia (Cognitive Performance Scale) and daily skilled monitoring of a life-threatening
medical condition (Changes in Health, End-Stage Disease and Symptoms and Signs [CHESS]). Under the
new Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system, the necessary information for these criteria are
built into the ARIA instrument. Assessment instruments involve a complex array of questions asked by
registered nurses during the face-to-face evaluation meetings with applicants and participants. As with the
implementation of any new assessment instrument and routinely in the course of cach assessment or re-
assessment, new or additional information directly relevant to level of care criteria, and therefore a
person’s functional / non-financial eligibility, may be received.

How new limitations on the amount of waiver services in amended waivers will be implemented;

Before implementation of the amended waiver, the state will promulgate the new/revised provider
manual. In Arkansas, manual promulgation includes a public comment period and legislative committee
review. Also, the state will provide for a series of regional training sessions and webinars for providers
and other stakeholders.

All new policies about person-centered service planning, including authorization of services and the
prospective Individual Services Budgets, wiil be phased in and applied to existing participants as their
existing person-centered service plans are renewed, updated, or otherwise revised for a new period (up to

State: Request for Amendment: 11
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

one year). Similarly, re-assessments of existing participants will be performed through the new
independent assessment process on a revolving basis as previously approved person-centered service
plans near expiration or earlier if appropriate (such as in the event of care transitions).

All new policies about provider service delivery practices and program integrity, including service
definitions and limits to eliminate or reduce overuse, misuse, abuse, and duplication of waiver services,
are reasonable and necessary to protect program integrity and better ensure provision of covered,
medically necessary services appropriate to meet assessed needs. Therefore, these policies will go into
effect with the amended waiver.

Specifically, any services authorized under a person-centered service plan in effect on the effective date
of the amended waiver and promulgated provider manual must comply with the service definitions and
limitations in the amended waiver. For example, providers must adhere to new service definitions and
limitations concerning the types of activities that are covered under attendant care and respite care. The
quantity of services authorized for a participant may not exceed that specified in the participant’s
prevailing, approved person-centered service plan. Where the amended waiver establishes new policies
affecting quantities, these will apply as new person-centered service plans are created and following an
assessment/re-assessment. However, providers must comply with all non-quantity limitations, such as the
amended waiver’s more precise definitions of covered tasks and the policy excluding coverage of
attendant care visits for entertainment activities.

The prevocational services benefit, by being new, will not negatively affect any participant and therefore
requires no transition for existing participants.

No participants use the adult family home service proposed for elimination. We expect no requests for it
before the effective date of the amended waiver. Therefore, no transition is needed for this service
elimination.

If persons served in approved waiver will not be eligible to participate in the new or
renewed/amended waiver, the plan describes the steps that the state will take to facilitate the
transition of affected individuals to alternate services and supports that will enable the individual to
remain in the community:

The amended waiver makes no changes to waiver eligibility policy other than a technical change to
Section 1.F, Levels of Care, to clarify that individuals requiring a skilled level of care are not eligible for
the ARChoices program. This clarification aligns Section 1.F with the current Brief Waiver Description,
which states that the waiver eligibility is limited to “persons aged 21 to 64 years of age with a physical
disability, or 65 and older who require an intermediate level of care in a nursing facility.” The new
assessment process and instrument and eligibility determination process are based on the existing level of
care criteria established in state regulations.

In the event that a person in the approved waiver is, for whatever reason, not eligible for the amended
waiver, they will be referred to other, alternative services, including, as appropriate, other waivers,
Medicaid State Plan services, Medicare services, and community services.

Includes the timetable for transitioning individuals to the new waiver (i.e., will participants in the
existing waiver transition to the new waiver all at the same time or will the transition be phased
in?).

As described above, existing participants will be transitioned to the amended waiver on revolving basis
according to the expiration date of their current person-centered service plan and timing of their next re-

State: Request for Amendment: 12
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

assessment. Existing participants requiring earlier-than-planned re-assessments as a result of care
transitions or other lifc changes will be phased into the amended waiver during that re-assessment and
new service plan.

How participants are rotified of the changes and informed of the opportunity to request a Fair
Hearing:

Participants may request a Fair Hearing concerning eligibility determinations, person-centered service
plans, and Individual Services Budgets.

Current notification processes, including letters with information on how to request a Fair Hearing, will
continue, with information updated as necessary.

DAABHS will inform participants of their prospective Individual Services Budget amounts as described
in Appendix C-4.

Relevant beneficiary materials will be updated to describe policy changes.

Additional public and stakeholder notification are achieved through the state’s formal public comment
and promulgation process for the waiver program manual.

REQUESTED AMENDMENTS TO APPENDIX A

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation

A-1. State Line of Authority for Waiver Operation, Specify the state line of authority for the operation
of the waiver:

X The waiver is operated by a separate agency of the State that is not a division/unit of Medicaid
agency

Department of Human Services, Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services
(DAABHS) and Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA)

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation

A-2, Oversight of Performance,

b. Medicaid Agency Oversight of Operating Agency Performance. When the waiver is not operated
by the Medicaid agency, specify the functions that are expressly delegated through a memorandum of
understanding (MOU) or other written document, and indicate the frequency of review and update for that
document. Specify the methods that the Medicaid agency uses to ensure that the operating agency
performs its assigned waiver operational and administrative functions in accordance with waiver
requirements. Also specify the frequency of Medicaid agency assessment of operating agency
performance:

The Arkansas Department of Human Services (DHS) uses an Interagency Agreement to define the
responsibilities of the three DHS divisions — Division of Medical Services (DMS, the Medicaid agency)
DAABHS, and DPSQA - charged with responsibility for administering both the ARChoices in Homecare

State: Request for Amendment: 13
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

(ARChoices) and Living Choices in Assisted Living (Living Choices) HCBS waiver programs. This
agreement is reviewed annually and updated as needed. DMS, as the Medicaid agency, monitors this
agreement on a continuous basis to assure that the provisions specified are exccuted.

DMS is responsible for all policy decisions concerning the waiver, promulgation of provider manuals and
regulations governing the waiver, reimbursement of certified waiver providers, and oversight of all
waiver-related functions delegated to DAABHS and DPSQA, including monitoring compliance with the
Interagency Agreement.

DAABHS is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the waiver, establishing waiver program
policies and procedures, overseeing the development and management of person-centered service plans,
developing Individual Services Budgets, and overseeing the Independent Assessment Contractor.

DPSQA is responsible for provider certification, compliance, and provider quality assurance. Through its
Office of Long Term Care (OLTC), DPSQA is responsible for level of care determinations. DMS and-
DAARBHS share the responsibility for monitoring and overseeing the performance of the Independent
Assessment Contractor and the Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system.

To oversee and monitor the functions performed by DAABHS and DPSQA in the administration and
operation of the waiver, DMS will conduct team meetings as needed with DAABHS and DPSQA staff to
discuss compliance with the performance measures in the programs, results of chart reviews performed by
DMS and DAABHS, corrective action plans, remediation, and systems improvements to maintain
effective administration of the programs.

A-3. Use of Contracted Entities.
Specify whether contracted entities perform waiver operational and administrative functions on behalf of
the Medicaid agency and/or the operating agency (if applicable)

X Yes. Contracted entities perform waiver operational and administrative functions on behalf
of the Medicaid agency and/or operating agency (if applicable}.

Specify the types of contracted entities and briefly describe the functions that they perform. Complete
ftems A-5 et A-6:

A contractor (“Independent Assessment Contractor™) will perform independent assessments that gather
functional need information about each ARChoices waiver applicant and participant using the Arkansas
Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument. The information gathered is used to determine the
individual’s level of care, the number of medically necessary hours of attendant care, and the tier level
(which is intended to help inform waiver program oversight and administration and person-centered
service planning).

A-5 Responsibility for Assessment of Performance of Contracted and/or Local/Regional Non-State
Entities.

Specify the state agency or agencies responsible for assessing the performance of contracted and/or
local/regional non-state entities in conducting waiver operational and administrative functions:

As described in the Interagency Agreement between the Division of Medical Services (DMS, the
Medicaid agency), the Division of Aging, Aduli, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS), and the

State: Request for Amendment: 14
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA), DAABHS and DMS will jointly share
responsibility for oversight of the performance of the Independent Assessment Contractor, with DMS
being ultimately accountable. The contract provides for performance measures the Independent
Assessment Contractor is required to meet.

A-6 Assessment Methods and Frequency.

Describe the methods that are used to assess the performance of contracted and/or local/regional non-state
entities to ensure that they perform assigned waiver operational and administrative functions in
accordance with waiver requirements. Also specify how frequently the performance of contracted and/or
local/regional non-state entities is assessed:

The state assesses the performance of the Independent Assessment Contractor on a monthly and annual
basis through review and assessment of the monthly and annual Program Performance Reports submitted
by the Independent Assessment Contractor to the Contract Monitor. The state’s contract with the
Independent Assessment Contractor includes performance standards and requirements for a quality
monitoring and assurance program.

The Independent Assessment Contractor’s quality monitoring and assurance process must include (1) the
staff necessary to perform quality monitoring and assurance reviews for accuracy, data consistency,
integrity, and completeness of assessments and (2) procedures for assessing the performance of the staff
conducting the assessments, include a desk review of assessments, tier determinations, and recommended
attendant care services hours according to the Task and Hour Standards for a statistically significant
number of cases. The Independent Assessment Contractor is required to include the results of the quality
monitoring and assurance process in the monthly reports submitted to the Contract Monitor in the format
required by DHS.

The monthly reports include the following:

i. Demographics about the beneficiaries who were assessed;

2. An activitics summary, including the volume, timeliness and outcomes of all Assessments and
Reassessments; and

3. A running total of the activities completed.

The annual report includes the following;:

[a—

A summary of the activities over the prior year;

2. A summary of the Independent Assessment Contractor’s timeliness in scheduling and performing
assessments and reassessments;

3. A summary of findings from Beneficiary feedback research conducted by the Independent
Assessment Contractor;

4. A summary of any challenges and risks perceived by the Independent Assessment Contractor in the
year ahead and how the Independent Assessment Contractor proposes to manage or mitigate those;
and

5. Recommendations for improving the efficiency and quality of the services performed.

The Contract Monitor and senior staff from DAABHS and DMS review the monthly and annual reports
submitted by the Independent Assessment Contractor within 15 days after they have been submitted, and
determine whether the Independent Assessment Contractor has submitted the required information,
following its quality monitoring and assurance process, and meeting the performance standards in the
contract. 1f not, the state will initiate appropriate corrective and preventive actions, which may include,
for example. further analysis and problem solving with the contractor, root cause analysis to identify the

State: | Request for Amendment: 15
Effective Date




r_ Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

cause of a discrepancy or deviation, enhanced reporting and monitoring, improved performance measures,
requiring development and execution of corrective action plans, reallocation of staff resources, data and
systems improvements, consultation with stakeholders, and/or sanctions under the contract.

A-7 Distribution of Waiver Operational and Administrative Functions. In the following table, specify
the entity or entities that have responsibility for conducting each of the waiver operational and
administrative functions listed (check each that applies):

In accordance with 42 CFR §431.10. when the Medicaid agency does not directly conduct a function. it
supervises the performance of the function and establishes and/or approves policies that affect the
function. All functions not performed directly by the Medicaid agency must be delegated in writing and
monitored by the Medicaid Agency. Note: More than one box may be checked per item. Ensure that
Medicaid is checked when the Single State Medicaid Agency (1) conducts the function directly, (2)
supervises the delegated function: and/or (3) establishes and or approves policies related to the function.

”ﬂ;lgdicaid- ‘ Other State | Contracted

Function Agency : Operating Agency Entity

Prior authorization i
of waiver services i

ir e
i

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation
Quality Improvement: Administration Authority of the Single State Medicaid Agency
a. Methods for Discovery: Administrative Authority
i.  Performance Measures

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of LOC assessments completed using the approved instrument
according to the agreement with the Medicaid Agency. Numerator: Number of LOC
assessments completed using the approved instrument; Denominator: Number of LOC
assessments reviewed,

Medicaid Quarterly QA Report (Chart Reviews)

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS during
the Chart Record Review process.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of LOC assessments completed by the Independent Assessment
Contractor in the time specified in the agreement with the Medicaid Agency.
Numerator: Number of LOC assessments completed by the Independent Assessment
Contractor in time frame; Denominator: Number of LOC assessments reviewed.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS during
the Chart Record Review process.

| State: Request for Amendment: 16
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of participant service plans completed by DAABHS in the time frame
specified in the agreement with the Medicaid Agency. Numerator: Number of service plans
completed by DAABHS in time frame; Denominator: Number of service plans reviewed.
Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a vatidation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS during
the Chart Record Review process.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of policies and/or procedures developed by DAABHS, in consultation
with DPSQA, that are reviewed and approved by the Medicaid Agency (DMS) prior to
implementation. Numerator: Number of policies and procedures by DAABHS reviewed by
DMS before implementation; Denominator: Number of policies and procedures developed.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of providers licensed by the Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance (DPSQA). Numerator: Number of current providers licensed by DPSQA;
Denominator: Number of providers participating in the waiver program.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS during
the Chart Record Review process.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of LOC assessments completed by an Independent Assessment
Contractor qualified evaluator according to the agreement with the Medicaid Agency.
Numerator: Number of LOC assessments completed by an Independent Assessment
Contractor qualified evaluator; Denominator: Number of LOC assessments reviewed.
Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS during
the Chart Record Review process.

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation
Quality Improvement: Administration Authority of the Single State Medicaid Agency
a. Methods for Discovery: Administrative Anthority
i If applicable. in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employed by the State to discover/identify problems/issues within the waiver
program. including frequency and parties responsible.

DMS completes a validation review of participant records reviewed by DAABHS. For the validation
review, DMS reviews 20% of the records reviewed by DAABHS. For the provider file sample, the
Raosoft online calculator is used to determine a statistically valid sample size with a 95% confidence
level and a margin of error of -+/- 5%. Every nth name is selected for review until the sample size is
reached. The sample is then divided into twelve groups for monthly review by DMS.

| State: | Request for Amendment: 17
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems
i Describe the State's method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
correction. In addition. provide information on the methods used by the State to
document these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency), the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (operating agency), and the Division of
Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid agency) participate in team meetings as needed to discuss and
address individual problems associated with administrative authority, as well as probiem correction and
remediation. DAABHS, DPSQA, and DMS bave an Interagency Agreement for measures related to
administrative authority of the waiver.

In cases where the numbers of unduplicated participants served in the waiver are not within approved
limits, remediation includes waiver amendments and implementing waiting lists. DMS reviews and
approves all policies and procedures (including waiver amendments) developed by DAABHS prior to
implementation, as part of the Interagency Agreement. In cases where policies or procedures were not
reviewed and approved by DMS, remediation includes DMS reviewing the policy upen discovery, and
approving or removing the policy.

In cases where there are problems with level of care determinations completed within specified time
frames and by a qualified evaluator, additional staff training, staff counseling or disciplinary action may
be part of remediation. In addition, if these problems arise, the LOC determination is completed upon
discovery, the LLOC determination may be redone and payments for services may be recouped. Similarly,
remediation for service plans not completed in specified time frames includes, completing the serviee
plan upon discovery, additional training for staff, staff counseling or disciplinary action. DAABHS
conducts all remediation efforts in these areas.

Remediation to address participants not receiving at least one waiver service a month in accordance with
the service plan and the agreement with DMS includes closing a case, conducting monitoring visits,
revising a service plan to add a service, checking on provider billing and providing training.

Remediation associated with provider certifications that are not current according to the
DAABHS/DPSQA/DMS agreement may include recertifying providers upon discovery if appropriate,
requesting termination of the provider’s Arkansas Medicaid enrollment, referral to the Office of Medicaid
Inspector General for possible recoupment for services provided after certification expired, or allowing
the participant to choose another provider. DAABHS conducts remediation efforts in these areas,

The tool used for record review documents and tracks remediation.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-3. Number of Individuals Served (1 of 4)

b. Limitation on the Number of Participants Served At Any Point in Time. Consistent with the
unduplicated number of participants specified in Item B-3-a, the State may limit to a lesser number the
number of participants who will be served at any point in time during a waiver year. Indicate whether the
state limits the number of participants in this way (select one):

State: ' Request for Amendment: 18
Effective Date




N Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

The State does not limit the number of participants that it serves at any point in time during a
waiver year.

X The State limits the number of participants that it serves at any point in time during a waiver year,

The limit that applies to each year of the waiver period is specified in the following table:

Table: B-3-b
Waiver Year | Maximum Number of Participants Served At Any Point During The Year
Year 1 | 8032
Year2 T 8176
Year 3 . 8320
Year 4 B 9071
Years | 9434

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-5. Post-Eligibility Treatment of Income (2 of 7)

b. Regular Post-Eligibility Treatment of Income: SST State.

The State uses the post-eligibility rules at 42 CFR 435.726 for individuals who do not have a spouse or
have a spouse who is not a community spouse as specified in §1924 of the Act. Payment for home and
community-based waiver services is reduced by the amount remaining after deducting the following
allowances and expenses from the waiver participant's income:

i. Allowance for the needs of the waiver participant (select one):
X Other

Specify: The maintenance needs allowance is equal to the individual’s total income as determined
under the post eligibility process including income that is placed in a Miller Trust,

B-5. Post-Eligibility Treatment of income (4 of 7)
d. Post-Eligibility Treatment of Income Using Spousal Impoverishment Rules
The State uses the post-eligibility rules of §1924(d) of the Act (spousal impoverishment protection) to
determine the contribution of a participant with a community spouse toward the cost of home and
community-based care if it determines the individual's eligibility under §1924 of the Act. There is
deducted from the participant's monthly income a personal needs allowance (as specified below). a
community spouse's allowance and a family allowance as specified in the State Medicaid Plan. The State
must also protect amounts for incurred expenses for medical or remedial care (as specified below):

i.  Allowance for the personal needs of the waiver participant (select one):

X  her

Specify: The maintenance needs allowance is equal to the individual’s total incoine as determined

under the post cligibility process including income that is placed in a Miller Trust.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

' State: | Request for Amendment: 19
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

¢. Qualifications of Individuals Performing Initial Evaluation: Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)(1), specify
the educational/professional qualifications of individuals who perform the initial evaluation of level of
care for waiver applicants:

These activities are performed by registered nurses (RNs) licensed by the State of Arkansas under the
rules and standards of the State Board of Nursing. Arkansas is a participant in the multi-state Nurse
Licensure Compact.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

d. Level of Care Criteria. Fully specify the level of care criteria that are used to evaluate and reevaluate
whether an individual needs services through the waiver and that serve as the basis of the State's level of
care instrument/tool. Specify the level of care instrument/tool that is employed. State laws, regulations,
and policies concerning level of care criteria and the level of care instrument/tool are available to CMS
upon request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable). including the
instrument/tool utilized.

Level of Care Criteria:

The functional level of care criteria for ARChoices in Homecare waiver eligibility are established in
administrative rules and the ARChoices manual, as promulgated by the Arkansas Department of Homan
Services (DHS). Please see DHS rule 016.06 CARR 057 (2017) (Procedures for Determination of
Medical Need for Nursing Home Services).

As specified in the rule, to meet functional (non-financial) eligibility for the waiver program an individual
must:

1. Fully meet at least one of the following three level of care criteria:
a. The individual is unable to perform either of the following:

A, At least one (1) of the three (3) activities of daily living (ADLSs) of transferring/locomotion,
eating or toileting without extensive assistance from or total dependence upon another person; or,

B. At least two (2) of the three (3) activities of daily living (ADLs) of transferring/locomotion,
eating or toileting without limited assistance from another person; or,

b. The individual has a primary or secondary diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease or related dementia
and is cognitively impaired so as to require substantial supervision from another individual
because he or she engages in inappropriate behaviors which pose serious health or safety hazards
to himself or others; or,

c. The individual has a diagnosed medical condition which requires monitoting or assessment at
least once a day by a licensed medical professional and the condition, if untreated, would be life-

threatening; and

2. Not require a skilled level of care, as defined in the State rule.

State: Request for Amendment: 20
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

For administration of this waiver, the term “life-threatening™ means the probability of death from the
diagnosed medical condition is likely unless the course of the condition is interrupted by medical
treatment.

Instrument/Tool Used:

Currently, ArPath is the instrument approved for use by registered nurses (RNs) from DHS to collect
information used to determine (or re-determine) each applicant’s or participant’s level of care. The
ArPath instrument, which is based primarily on the interRAI toolset, was federally approved for use in the
current waiver.

Beginning on the effective date of this amended waiver, Arkansas will instead use a new instrument — the
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) — to coliect information to evaluate level of care. Registered
nurses from the Independent Assessment Contractor will use the ARIA instrument to conduct face-to-
face, in-home assessments and reassessments. Using the information collected during the assessment, the
Office of Long Term Care in DPSQA will evaluate whether an individual meets the State’s level of care
criteria.

All State laws, regulations, and policies concerning level of care criteria and the assessment
instrument/tool (including the current ArPath instrument, the new ARIA instrument, the ARChoices
waiver program manual, and the ARIA manual) are available to CMS upon request through DAABHS.

Note that the Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system is also being used to help determine
medical necessity and help adjudicate prior authorization requests for State Plan personal care services
and IndependentChoices self-directed personal assistance.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

e. Level of Care Instrument(s). Per 42 CFR 441.303(c)(2), indicate whether the instrument/tool used to
evaluate level of care for the waiver differs from the instrument/tool used to evaluate institutional level of
care (select one):

The same instrument is used in determining the level of care for the waiver and for institutional
care under the State Plan.

X A different instrument is used to determine the level of care for the waiver than for institutional
care under the State plan.

Describe how and why this instrument differs from the form used to evaluate institutional level of
care and explain how the outcome of the determination is reliable, valid, and fully comparable.

Level of Care Instrument for Institutional Care:

The instrument used to evaluate institutional level of care is form DHS-703 (Evaluation of Medical Need
Criteria). The DHS-703 is completed by a registered nurse (RN) and includes information obtained from
the participant, family members, caregivers, and others. The DHS-703 was designed based on the
minimum data set (MDS) and the State’s nursing home admission criteria. It includes the nurse's
professional assessment of the participant and observations and evaluation of the participant's ability to

State: | Request for Amendment: 21
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

perform activities of daily living, along with other relevant information regarding the individual’s medical
history.

Level of Care Instrument for Waiver Program:

Currently, the instrument used to determine the level of care for the ARChoices program is ArPath, based
on the interRAI tool. Following the transition period, the Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA)
system will be used to support the level of care determination process.

Data needed for determining whether the State’s level of care criteria are met are gathered by both
instruments. The State’s level of care criteria are the same for the waiver and institutional care, with the
exception that individuals needing skilled nursing care are excluded from the waiver.

Both the ARIA instrument (as with the current ArPath instrument) and the DHS-703 assess needs, are
used by registered nurses, and are person-centered, focusing on the participant's functioning and quality
of life. Both are used through independent, conflict-free assessment processes staffed by registered
nurses.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

f. Process for Level of Care Evaluation/Reevaluation: Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)(1), describe the
process for evaluating waiver applicants for their need for the level of care under the waiver. 1f the
reevaluation process differs from the evaluation process, describe the differences:

The new process for evaluating waiver applicants and re-evaluation of waiver program participants for
their respective needs for the level of care under the waiver is described below.

Under the new process, each waiver applicant needing an evaluation and each waiver participant needing
a re-evaluation will receive an individual assessment performed by the Independent Assessment
Contractor. Each assessment or re-assessment is performed by a licensed registered nurse (RN) using the
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument. The ARIA tool will generate a proposed level of
care evaluation. The Office of Long Term Care (OLTC) in DPSQA will review the ARIA results and the
ARIA- recommended tier level, and make the final level of care determination. Functional need eligibility
is valid for one year, unless a shorter period is specified by OLTC.

As described in B-6-e, the Independent Assessment Contractor’s RNs will complete the ARIA instrument
for each initial evaluation and subsequent re-evaluation, drawing upon information from a face-to-face
meeting with the applicant/participant and, if necessary, information from other parties familiar with the
individual’s conditions, functional limitations, and circumstances.

Re-evaluations will continue to be performed on at least an annual basis, with the level of care re-affirmed
or revised and a written determination issued by the Office of Long Term Care. A re-evaluation may also
be ordered anytime (or scheduled on a more frequent than annual basis) by the DHS registered nurse
responsible for the participant’s person-centered service plan, said nurse’s supervisor, the DPSQA Office
of Long Term Care director (or his/her designee), or the DAABHS deputy director (or his/her designee).
In cases where a participant has experienced a significant change in circumstances (e.g., an inpatient
hospital admission, skilled nursing facility admission, or the loss of a primary family caregiver), are-
assessment will be performed as appropriate. In the manner specified in the DHS Independent
Assessment Manual, a participant (or their legal representative) or the participant’s physician may request
that the DAABHS deputy director (or his/her designee) order a re-assessment.

State: Request for Amendment: 22
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

The ARIA instrument is a comprehensive tool to collect detailed information to determine an individual’s
functional eligibility; identify needs, current supports, some of the individual’s preferences, and some of
the risks associated with home and community-based care for the individual; and inform the development
of the person-centered service plan. The ARIA instrument is used to gather information on the
applicant’s (or participant’s in the case of a re-evaluation) demographics; health care providers; current
services and supports received (including skilled nursing, therapies, medications, durable medical
equipment, and human assistance services), housing and living environment; decision-making and
designated representatives; emergency contacts; Activities of Daily Living (ADLs) needs; Instrumental
Activities of Daily Living (IADLs) needs; health status (including symptoms, conditions, and diagnoses);
psychosocial status (including assessment of behavioral health impairments and risk factors); memory and
cognition; mental status; sensory and functional communication skills; self-preservation capabilities and
supports; family and other caregiver supports; participation in work, volunteering, or educational
activities; and quality of life (including routines, preferences, strengths and accomplishments, and goals
for future).

Once ARIA is operational, using assessment results and a DAABHS-approved tiering methodology, the
ARIA system will assign tiers designed to help further differentiate individuals by need. Each waiver
applicant or participant will be assigned a tier level (0, 1, 2, or 3) following each assessment or re-
assessment. The tiers are intended to help inform waiver program oversight and administration and
person-centered service planning. Once available through ARIJA, tier levels will also be a population-
based factor in determining participants’ prospective individua! services budgets. The tiers do not replace
the Level of Care criteria described in B-6-d, waiver eligibility determinations, or the person-centered
service plan process.

In summary:

1. Tier 0 (zero) and Tier 1 (one) indicate the individual’s assessed needs, if any, do not support the need
for either ARChoices waiver services or nursing facility services.

2. Tier 2 (two) indicates the individual’s assessed needs are consistent with services available through
either the ARChoices waiver program or a licensed nursing facility.

3. Tier 3 (three) indicates the individual needs skilled care available through a licensed nursing facility
and not through the waiver program.

These indications notwithstanding, the final determination of Level of Care and functional eligibility is
made by the Office of Long-Term Care {OLTC).

(Note that ARIA-based assessments are also used to help determine whether Medicaid enrollees meet the
minimum ADL needs-based criteria for State Plan coverage of Medicaid personal care services and self-
directed personal assistance services. Tier 1 (one) and Tier 2 (two) each indicate that the Medicaid
enrollee meets the minimum criteria for personal care or self-directed personal assistance service
coverage. Coverage of these State Plan services for Medicaid enrollees is further subject to a medical
necessity determination and prior authorization.)

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

i. Procedures to Ensure Timely Reevaluations. Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)4), specify the procedures that
the State employs to ensure timely reevaluations of level of care (specify):

State: Request for Amendment: 23
Efiective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

DAABHS has established and maintains procedures for tracking review dates and initiating timely re-
evaluations prior to each participant’s respective level of care review date and prior to the expiration of
the participant’s current person-centered service plan (Arkansas’ term for a person-centered care plan).
This process ensures timely reevaluations prior to the level of care review date and the expiration of the
person-centered service plan so that no lapse in service occurs.

Specifically, DAABHS registered nurses (RNs) and RN supervisors use a “tickler” file system approach
to monitor upcoming review data and service plan expirations. The process of reassessment begins two
months prior to the expiration date of the current person-centered service plan or two months prior to the
annual anniversary date of the last independent assessment, whichever is earlier. The case is added to the
assessment schedule. Once the re-assessment is completed and the level of care revised as appropriate,
the DHS RN begins development of the new person-centered service plan.

The DHS RN supervisory staff, through the record review process and through routine monitoring and
auditing procedures, notifies the appropriate DHS RN, RN supervisor and the Independent Assessment
Contractor if a re-assessment has not been completed within the specified DAABHS policy fimeframes.

The ACES report produced by the Division of County Operations is used as a tool by the DHS RN and
RN supervisor to determine if the assessment is current or has expired. Patterns of noncompliance are
documented and disciplinary action is taken if necessary.

Each Targeted Case Manager is also required to maintain a "Tickler" system to track the Medicaid
eligibility reevaluation date and the service plan expiration date. If the reassessment process has not been
completed timely, the Targeted Case Manager notifies the DHS RN prior to the expiration date of the
current service plan.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

j. Maintenance of Evaluation/Reevaluation Records. Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)(3), the State assures that
written and/or electronically retrievable documentation of all evaluations and reevaluations are
maintained for a minimum period of 3 years as required in 45 CFR §92.42. Specify the location(s) where
records of evaluations and reevaluations of level of care are maintained:

Records of evaluations and reevaluations of level of care are maintained by both the Division of Aging,
Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS), the primary authority for the daily operation of the
waiver program, and the Office of Long Term Care (OLTC) in the Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance (DPSQA), which is responsible for the level of care evaluations and reevaluations.
DAABHS maintains records for a period of six years from the date of closure/denial or until all audit
questions, appeal hearings, investigations, or court cases are resolved for a participant, whichever is
longer.

Appendix B: Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care
Quality Improvement: Level of Care
a. Methods for Discovery: Level of Care Assurances/Sub-assurances

State: Request for Amendment: 24
Effective Date




L

Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HHCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

The state demonstrates that it implements the processes and instrument(s) specified in its
approved waiver for evaluating/reevaluating an applicant's/waiver participant’s level of care
consistent with level of care provided in a hospital, NF or ICF/IID.

i.  Sub-Assurances:

Sub-assurance: An evaluation for LOC is provided to all applicants for whom there is

reasonable indication that services may be needed in the future.

a.

Performance Measure: Number and percentage of applicants who had a LOC
indicating need for nursing facility LOC prior to receipt of services. Numerator:
Number of applicants who received level of care prior to service; Denominator:
Total number of applicants.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of error.

Sub-assurance: The levels of care of enrolled participants are reevaluated at least
annually or as specified in the approved waiver.

Performance Measure: Number and percentage of waiver participants who
received an annual redetermination of LOC eligibility within 12 months of their
initial LOC evaluation or within 12 months of their last annual LOC re-
evaluation, Numerator: Number of participants receiving annual
redeterminations within 12 months; Denominator: number of records reviewed.
Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of error.

Sub-assurance: The processes and instruments described in the approved waiver
are applied appropriately and according to the approved description to determine
participant level of care.

Performance Measures:

Number and percentage of participants annual re-evaluation LOC
determinations that were completed as required by the state. Numerator:
Number of participants with LOC determinations completed correctly;
Dengminator: Number of records reviewed,

Number and percentage of participants LOC determinations made by a
qualified evaluator. Numerator: Number of participants with LOC made by a
qualified evaluator; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of etror.

| State:
Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 25




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

i. Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered. Include
information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem correctiou. In
addition, provide information on the methods used by the State fo document these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency, with
primary responsibility for waiver program operations and oversight of the independent assessment
process), the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance {DPSQA) (operating agency with
responsibility for level of care determinations), and the Division of Medical Services (Medicaid agency) —
all three of which are part of the Arkansas Department of Human Services (DHS) — participate in team
meetings as needed to discuss and address individual problems associated with level of care
determinations, assessments, and system improvements, as well as problem correction and remediation.
DAABHS, DPSQA, and DMS have an Interagency Agreement that includes measures related to level of
care determinations for the waiver.

The system currently in place for new applicants to enter the waiver program does not allow for services
to be delivered prior to an initial level of care determination. Also, DAABHS requires that all initial
assessments and reassessments are completed by a registered nurse.

Level of Care assessments are required annually using the approved assessment instrument (currently, the
ArPath instrument, and under the amended waiver ithe Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA)
instrument) and applying the level of care criteria. For the ArPath instrument, the DHS RN supervisors
currently complete a regional monthly activity report, which lists the number of level of care evaluations
and re-evaluations conducted. Remediation efforts are included on the DHS RN supervisors” monthly
report. For ARIA, the DHS Independent Assessment Contractor will submit data reports to DMS at least
monthly listing the number of level of care evaluations and re-evaluations conducted. DMS will require
the DHS Independent Assessment Contractor to develop a corrective action plan when remediation in this
area is needed, and document completion of the corrective action plan.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-7: Freedom of Choice
a. Procedures. Specify the State's procedures for informing eligible individuals (or their legal
representatives) of the feasible alternatives available under the waiver and allowing these
individuals to choose either institutional or waiver services. Identify the form(s) that are
emploved to document freedom of choice. The form or forms are available to CMS upon request
through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable).

At the time of assessment and re-assessment of the waiver participant, the DHS RN explains the
services available through the ARChoices waiver, discusses the qualified ARChoices providers in
the state, and develops an appropriate person-centered service plan. As part of the service plan
development process, the participant (or representative) documents their choice to have services
provided in the community setting through the HCBS waiver as opposed to receiving services in
an institutional setting. In addition, freedom of choice is explained through a Freedom of Choice
form and the applicable qualified provider listing; both are signed by the waiver participant or
their representative. This is documented on the service plan, which inciudes the signature of the
waiver participant (or representative) and the DHS RN, and included in the participant's
electronic record.

State: Request for Amendment: 26
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

NOTE: For reassessments, the Freedom of Choice form is utilized showing if changes are
requested by the participant. If no changes are requested, no signatures are required on the
provider listing; however, the Freedom of Choice form is signed and dated by the participant or
representative. The participant's signature on the service plan, as entered by the participant or
representative, documents that the participant (or representative) has made an informed decision
to receive HCBS rather than services in an institutional setting and that HCBS are based on the
participant's assessment of needs. Freedom of Choice documentation is tracked through the
record review process, all staff performance evaluations and monthly reporting,

If necessary, the DHS RN will read all relevant information to the participant. If this is done, it
will be documented in the participant's record. All forms and information will be provided in
alternate formats upon request. If an alternate format is requested and/or provided, the DHS RN
will document the format requested and/or provided in the participant's record.

Maintenance of Forms. Per 45 CFR §92.42, written copies or electronically retrievable
facsimiles of Freedom of Choice forms are maintained for a minimum of three years. Specify the
locations where copies of these forms are maintained.

Copies of the waiver participant's service plan are maintained with the DAABHS (operating
agency) and with the providers chosen by the participant and included on the service plan.
Freedom of Choice forms and person-centered service plans are maintained for a period of six
years from the date of closure/denial or until all audit questions, appeal hearings, investigations or
court cases are resolved for a participant, whichever is longer.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility

B-8: Access to Services by Limited English Proficiency Persons

Access to Services by Limited English Proficient Persons. Specify the methods that the State uses to
provide meaningful access to the waiver by Limited English Proficient persons in accordance with the
Department of Health and Human Services "Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients
Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English
Proficient Persons” (68 FR 47311 - August 8, 2003):

All Department of Human Services (DHS) forms are available in English and Spanish. The
forms can be translated into other langnages when the need arises. DHS maintains an ongoing
contract with a Spanish interpreter and translator agency for translation services.

All accommeodations are provided on an individualized basis according to the participant's needs.
DHS has a contract with an interpreter to accommodate applicants/participants who are hearing
impaired. DHS RNs provide written materials to participants and will read any information to
participants if needed. DHS RNs may utilize assistance from other divisions within the Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS), such as the Division of Services for the Blind, in these
instances. When this occurs, it is documented in the participant record.

State:

Request for Amendment: 27

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

REQUESTED AMENDMENTS TO APPENDIX C

Appendix C: Participant Services
C-1: Summary of Services Covered

a. Waiver Services Summary. List the services that are furnished under the waiver in the
following table. If case management is not a service under the waiver, complete items C-1-b
and C-I-c:

Service Type | Service
i

Statutory
[Service

Adult Day Health

Statutory

Service ;Resplte

Othe.r Adult Day Services i
Service | )

Other Adult- Family Heme- [delete from table]

pervice Prevocational Services [add to table]

iAttendant Care Services

Other
Service

Other

Service EEnvironmeutal Accessibility Adapiations/Adaptive Equipment

Other

-5 o Home-Delivered Meals
Service

Other
Service

[Personal Emergency Response System (PERS)

_'State:— Request for Amendment: 28
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Appendix C: Participant Services

C-1/C-3: Service Specification
Service Type: Other Service

Service Title: Attendant Care Services
HCBS Taxonomy: (no change)

Service Definition (Scope):

Attendant care services available under the ARChoices program consists of direct human assistance with
specific types of tasks, provided such tasks are:

1. Reasonable and medically necessary, supported by the individual’s latest independent assessment,
and consistent with the individual’s Level of Care;

2. Not available from another source (including without limitation family members, a member of the
participant’s household, or other unpaid caregivers; a Medicaid State Plan covered service; the
Medicare program; the participant’s Medicare Advantage plan [including targeted or other
supplemental benefits offered by the plan]; the participant’s Medicare prescription drug plan; and
private long-term care, disability, or supplemental insurance coverage);

3. Expressly authorized in the individual’s person-centered service plan;

4. Not in excess of or otherwise inconsistent with limits on the amount, frequency, or duration of
services specified in the Task and Hour Standards;

5. Provided by qualified, Medicaid-certitied providers and in compliance with all applicable Arkansas
Medicaid program reguiations and provider manuals; and

6. Provided in compliance with all applicable Arkansas scope of practice laws and regulations pertaining
to nurses, physicians, skilled therapists, and other professionals.

The specific types of tasks covered under attendant care services are as follows:

1. Activities of Daily Living (ADLs):

a. Ealing (i.e., feeding assistance during meal times and encouraging fluids, excluding tube feeding
and total parenteral nutrition and meal preparation);
b. Toileting;
¢. Personal hygiene and grooming (i.e., face shaving; nail trimming; shampooing, brushing, or
combing of hair; and menstrual hygiene);
d. Dressing;
State: . Request for Amendment: 29
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

e. Bathing or showering; and/or

f.  Mobility/ambulating (i.e., functional mobility, moving from seated to standing, getting in and out
of bed).

2. Instrumental Activities of Daily Living (IADLSs):

a. Meal planning and preparation for meals consumed only by the participant;

b. Laundry for the participant or incidental to the participant’s care;

¢. Shopping for food, clothing, and other essential items required specifically for the health and
maintenance of the participant;

d. Housekeeping (i.e., cleaning of areas directly used by the participant); and

¢, Assistance with medications (1o the extent permitted by nursing scope of practice laws).

3. Health-related tasks, subject to the following:

a. “Health-related tasks™ mean the following attendant activities:

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

Performing and recording simple measurements of body weight, blood glucose, heart pulse,
blood pressure, temperature (forehead, tympanic, or oral), respiratory rate, and blood oxygen
saturation, if in physician’s order or medical plan of care. Attendant must use an appropriate
weight scale and FDA-approved, hand-held personal health monitoring device(s);
Additional assistance with the participant’s self-administration of prescribed medications;

Emptying and replacing colostomy and ostomy bags; and/or

Other tasks DAABHS may specify in the ARChoices provider manual; and

b. Any such health-related tasks performed:

ii.

iii.

iv.

Are consistent with all applicable State scope of practice laws and regulations;

Within the documented skills, training, experience, and other relevant competencies of the
attendant performing the task;

For the care and safety of the participant, do not require monitoring or supervision of the
attendant by a licensed physician, registered nurse, licensed physical therapist, or licensed
occupational therapist;

Are necessary to meet specific needs of the participant consistent with a written plan of care
by a licensed physician or registered nurse; and

Are tasks that the participant is unable to perform for themselves without hands-on
assistance, direct supervision, and/or active cueing of the attendant.

State:

Request for Amendment: 30

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

In the ARChoices program, attendant care services exclude all of the following:

1.

Medical, skilled nursing, pharmacy, skilled therapy services, medical social services, or medical
technician services of any kind, including without limitation aseptic or sterile procedures; application
of dressings; medication administration; injections; observation and assessment of health conditions,
other than as permitted for the health-related tasks above; insertion, removal, or irrigation of
catheters; tube or other enteral feedings; tracheostomy care; oxygen administration; ventilator care;
drawing bloed; and care and maintenance of any medical equipment;

Services within the scopes of practice of licensed cosmetologists, manicurists, electrologists, or
aestheticians, except for necessary assistance with personal hygiene and basic grooming;

Services provided for any person other than the participant, including without limitation a provider,
family member, household resident, or neighbor;

Companion, socialization, entertainment, or recreational services or activities of any kind, including,
but not limited to, game playing, television watching, arts and crafts, hobbies, and other activities
pursued for pleasure, relaxation, or fellowship;

Cleaning of any spaces of a home or place of residence (including without limitation the kitchen,
bathroom, living room, dining room, family room, and utility or storage rooms, and the floors,
furnishings, and appliances therein) shared by the participant with one or more adults who are,
together or separately, physically able to perform housckeeping of these areas; and

Habilitation services, including but not limited to, assistance in acquiring, retaining, or improving
self-help, socialization, and/or adaptive skills.

Participants may choose to receive authorized attendant care services through any of the following:

Home health agency licensed as Class A by the Arkansas State Board of Health, certified by DPSQA,
and enrolled as a Medicaid provider;

Home health agency licensed as Class B by the Arkansas State Board of Health, certified by DPSQA,
and enrolled as a Medicaid provider;

Private care agency licensed by the Arkansas State Board of Health, certified by DPSQA, and
enrolled as a Medicaid provider; or

Consumer-directed attendant care through Independent Choices, the Arkansas self-directed personal
assistance benefit under section 1915(j) of the Social Security Act, provided the individual is capable
of self-directing the assistance and subject to the requirements of the Independent Choices provider
manual and applicable provider qualifications and certification.

Specify applicable (if any) limits on the amount, frequency, or duration of this service:

The aggregate amount, frequency, and duration of attendant care services must be consistent with the
aggregale amounts, frequencies, and durations calculated by DHS for the beneficiary in accordance
with the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards (“THS”), as issued by DAABHS and posted
publicly on the DHS website with the ARChoices waiver provider manual. DAABHS will publish
and periodically update the THS as necessary, following a public notice and comment process. The

State: Request for Amendment: 31

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

THS specifies limits on each ADL, IADL, and health-related task at the intensity of human assistance
needed for the task, including maximum frequency (by day or week or month), maximum minutes per
task allowable, and maximum hours by day, week, or month. Any aggregate amounts, frequencies, or
durations in excess of the weekly or monthly limits calculated by DHS for the beneficiary in
accordance with the THS are not covered.

Attendant care services are not available (not covered and not reimbursable) through the ARChoices
program when and to the extent any of the following may apply:

When reasonably comparable or substitute services are available to the individual through an
Arkansas Medicaid State Plan benefit including without limitation the personal care services,

When assistance with the equivalent ADL, IADL, or health-related task(s) is covered under an
Arkansas Medicaid State Plan benefit but determined as medically unnecessary for the individual
during adjudication of a prior authorization request or utilization review;

When assistance with the comparable ADL, IADL, or health-related task(s) is available through
targeted or supplemental benefits offered by the participant’s Medicare Advantage plan;

When attendant care services delivered through a home health agency or private care agency are
provided by the waiver beneficiary’s (i) spouse; (ii) legal guardian of the person; or (iii} attorney-

i. Receives Medicare home health aide services, whether through traditional Medicare fee-for-
service or a Medicare Advantage plan of any kind for the same tasks;

ii. Receives targeted or other supplemental benefits from a Medicare Advantage plan of any
kind, where such supplemental services are reasonably comparable to or duplicative of
attendant care services, personal care services, or self-directed personal assistance;

iii. Spends more than five hours at an adult day services or adult day health services facility,
unless prior approved in writing by the DAABHS registered nurse;

iv., Receives long-term or short-term, facility-based respite care; and/or

v. Receives services from an inpatient hospital, nursing facility, assisted living facility, hospice
facility, or residential care facility, unless approved in writing by a DAABHS registered nurse
as reasonable and necessary given the time of day of the facility admission or discharge, the
need for transition assistance, or an inpatient hospital admission incident to an emergency
department visit or direct inpatient admission by the attending physician;

When a duplicate claim for the same performance of the same task is paid or submitted for
personal care services, self-directed personal assistance, or home health aide services under the

a.
home health services, and private duty nursing services;
b.
c.
d.
in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary’s care:
e. On dates of service when the participant:
f.
Medicaid State Plan; and/or
g. For atask that was not actually performed.
State:

Request for Amendment: 32

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Appendix C: Participant Services

C-1/C-3: Service Specification
Service Type: Other Service
Service Title: Adult Family Home
HCBS Taxonomy:

[Delete Adult Family Home service]

C-1/C-3: Service Specification

Service Type: Other Service

Service Title: Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment
HCBS Taxonomy: (no change)

Service Definition (Scope):

Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment are physical adaptations to the home
required by the ARChoices participant’s person-centered service plan, that are necessary to ensure the
health, welfare and safety of the participant to function with greater independence in the home and
postpone or preclude institutionalization. Adaptive equipment also enables the ARChoices participant to
increase, maintain and/or improve his or her functional capacity to perform daily life tasks that would not
be possible otherwise, and perceive, control or communicate with the environment in which he or she
lives.

Excluded are adaptations or improvements to the home which are of general utility, and are not of direct
medical or remedial benefit to the individual, such as carpeting, roof repair, air conditioning and others.
Adaptations which add to the total square footage of the home are excluded from this benefit. Any
equipment or supply covered by the state plan Durable Medical Equipment (DME) program is excluded.
No permanent fixtures are allowed to leased or rented homes. The DHS RN will research the need and
will assist individuals in choosing appropriate adaptations that are safe and portable if they lease or rent.
Adaptations may not be performed on vehicles. All services must be in accordance with applicable state
or local building codes.

Reimbursement is not permitted for Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment
provided by a waiver beneficiary’s:

I. Spouse:
2. Legal guardian of the person; or
3. Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary’s care.

C-1/C-3: Service Specification
Service Type: Other Service
Service Title: Respite

HCBS Taxonomy: (no change)

State: Request for Amendment: 33
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Service Definition (Scope):

Respite Care is provided to waiver participants unable to care for themselves and is furnished on a limited
or short-term basis because of the absence of, or need for relief of, those persons normally providing the
care.

Specifically, Respite Care consists of temporary care provided for short term relief for the primary
caregiver, subject to the following:

1.

The participant lives at home and is cared for, without compensation, by their families or other
informal support systems,;

As determined by the independent assessment, the participant has a severe physical, mental, or
cognitive impairment(s) that prevents him or her from being left alone safely in the absence or
availability of the primary caregiver;

The primary caregiver to be relieved is identified and with sufficient documentation that he or she
furnishes substantial care of the client comparable to or in excess of services described under the
Attendant Care service;

No other alternative caregiver (e.g., other member of household, other family member) or source of
assistance is available to provide a respite for the primary caregiver(s);

Respite Care services are limited to (a) direct human assistance with specific Activities of Daily
Living (ADLs), Instrumental Activities of Daily Living (IADLs), and health-related tasks as
described under Attendant Care services and (b) supervision necessary to maintain the health and
safety of the participant, as supported by the independent assessment and determined medically
necessary by the DAABHS registered nurse; and

Respite Care solely serves to supplement (not replace) and otherwise facilitate the continued
availability of care provided to waiver participants by families and other informal support systems.

Respite Care is available on a short-term basis (8 hours or less per date of service) or a long-term basis (a
full 24 hours per date of service) because of the absence or need for relief of those persons who normally
provide care for the participant. Respite Care is available to meet an emergency need or to schedule relief
periods in accordance with the regular caregiver's need for temporary relief from continuous care giving.

Respite Care is available in the following locations:

U'l:hb)l\.)'—‘

Participant's home or place of residence;

Medicaid certified hospital;

Medicaid certified nursing facility;

Medicaid certified adult day health facility; and

Medicaid certified assisted living facility with a level 11 state license.

To allow the person who normally provides care for the waiver participant some time away from his or
her caregiving of the participant, Respite Care may be provided in or outside the participant's home as
follows:

State: | Request for Amendment: 34

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

1. In-home respite may be provided for up to 24 hours per date of service.

2. Facility-based respite care may be provided outside the participant's home on:

a.

b.

A short-term basis (eight (8) hours or less per date of service), or

A long-term (maximum of 24 hours per date of service and used most often when respite needed
exceeds the short-term respite amount).

Reimbursement is only permitted for direct care rendered according to the participant’s person-centered
service plan by trained respite care workers employed and supervised by certified in-home respite
providers.

Reimbursement is not permitted for Respite Care services provided by a waiver beneficiary’s:

i
25
3

Spouse;
Legal guardian of the person; or
Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary’s care,

Specify applicable (if any) limits on the amount, frequency, or duration of this service:

Respite Care is subject to the following limitations:

1. The purpose of Respite Care is 1o provide respite for unpaid caregivers. The amount, frequency, and
duration of Respite Care must be entirely consistent with and shall be limited to amounts, frequencies,
and durations of assistance from unpaid caregivers identified and calculated for the beneficiary in the
completed form of the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards (“THS™). Any amounts,
frequencies, or durations in excess of the unpaid caregiver assistance amounts identified for the
beneficiary in the THS are not covered.

2. Respite Care excludes:

a.

Skilled health professional services, including physician, nursing, therapist, and pharmacist
services.

Services within the scopes of practice of licensed cosmetologists, manicurists, electrologists, or
aestheticians, except for necessary assistance with personal hygiene and basic grooming;

Services provided for any other person other than the participant;
Companion, socialization, entertainment, or recreational services or activities of any kind,
including, but not limited to, game playing, television watching, arts and crafts, hobbies, and

other activities pursued for pleasure, relaxation, or fellowship;

Habilitation services, including but not limited to, assistance in acquiring, retaining, or improving
self-help, socialization, and/or adaptive skills; and

Services provided for any tasks not included in a beneficiary’s service plans.

State:

Request for Amendment: 35

Effeclive Date |




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

3. Participants are limited to no more than 1,200 hours (4,800 quarter-hour units) per year of in-home
respite care, facility-based respite care, or a combination thereof. Respite care is not subject to a
manthly or weekly limit, but is limited to the annual amount of time identified and calculated for the
beneficiary in the completed form of the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards.

4. Respite Care services are not covered to provide continuous or substitute care while the primary
caregiver(s) is working, attending school, or incarcerated.

C-1/C-3: Service Specification

Service Type: Other Service

Service Title: Prevocational Services

HCBS Taxonomy: Category 04 Day Services; Subcategory 04010 Prevocational services

Serviee Definition (Scope):

Prevocational services are available to ARChoices waiver participants with physical disabilities who wish
to join the general workforce. Prevocational Services comprises a range of learning and experiential type
activities that prepare a participant for paid employment or self-employment in the community.

Prevocational services are as follows:

1. Development and teaching of general employability skills (non-job-task-specific strengths and skills)
directly relevant to the participant’s pre-employment needs and successful participation in individual
paid employment. These skills are: ability to communicate effectively with supervisors, coworkers,
and customers; an understanding of generally accepted community workplace conduct and dress; the
ability to follow directions; the ability to attend to tasks; workplace problem-solving skills and
strategies; general workplace safety and mobility training; the ability to navigate local transportation
options; and skills related to obtaining paid employment. Excluded are services involving
development or training of job-specific or job-task oriented skills.

2. Career exploration activities designed to develop an individual career plan and facilitate the
participant’s experientially based informed choice regarding the goal of individual paid employment.
These may include business tours, informational interviews, job shadows, benefits education and
financial literacy, assistive technology assessment, and local job exploration events. The expected
outcome of career exploration activitics is a written, actionable, person-centered career plan designed
to lead to community employment or self-employment for the participant.

The expected outcome of prevocational services is individual employment in the general workforce, or
self-employment, in a setting typically found in the community, where the participant interacts with
individuals without disabilities, other than those providing services to the participant or other individuals
with disabilities, to the same extent that individuals without disabilities in comparable positions interact
with other persons; and for which the participant is compensated at or above the minimum wage, but not
less than the customary wage and level of benefits paid by the employer for the same or similar work
performed by individuals without disabilities.

State: Request for Amendment: 36
Effective Date




Izequest for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Prevocational services may be provided one-to-one or in a small group format and may be provided as a
site-based service or in a community setting, consistent with requirements of the ARChoices provider
manual.

All prevocational services must be prior approved in the participant’s person-centered service plan,
provided through a DPSQA -certified prevocational services provider, and delivered and documented
consistent with requirements of the ARChoices provider manual.

Reimbursement is not permitted for Prevocational services provided by a waiver beneficiary’s:

1. Spouse;
2. Legal guardian of the person; or
3. Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary’s care.

Prevocational services exclude any services otherwise available to the individual under a program funded
under section 110 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Rehab Act), the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (IDEA), or any other federally funded (non-Medicaid) source. Proper documentation shall
be maintained in the file of each individual receiving prevocational services under the waiver.

Specify applicable (if any) limits on the amount, frequency, or duration of this service:

The total amount of all prevocational services provided to any participant shall not exceed $2,500 per
lifetime,

The amount of career exploration activities provided per participant shall not exceed 30 hours.

Duration of prevocational services provided to any given participant shall be limited to 180 days (six
months). Services not completed within this timeframe are not covered.

Service Delivery Method (check each that applies):

e Provider managed

Specify whether the service may be provided by (check each that applies):

L Legally Responsible Person
i Relative

r Legal Guardian

C-1/C-3 Provider Specifications
Service: Adult Day Health

Provider Type — Licensed Adult Day Health Care
Provider Qualifications - License (specify)

State: Request for Amendment: 37
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services. Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an Adult Day Health Care agency as required by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-201, et. seq.
Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Adult Day Health services. To be certified, providers
must provide a copy of their current adult day health care agency license through the DHS Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Atkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency's current Adult Day
Health Care license at all times.

Service: Respite

Provider Type - Licensed Acute Care Hospital

Provider Qualifications — Certificate (specify)

Cettified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Respite Care services. To be certified, providers must
provide a copy of their current acute care hospital license.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency's current Licensed
Acute Care Hospital license at all times.

Service: Respite

Provider Type — Licensed Level Il Assisted Living Facility

Provider Qualifications - License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as a Level 11 Assisted Living Facility as required by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-201, et. seq., Act
1230 of 2001.

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Respite Care services. To be certified, providers must
provide a copy of their level 11 assisted living facility license through the DHS Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency's current Level Il
Assisted Living Facility license at all times.

Service: Respite
Provider Type - Licensed Medicaid Certified Nursing Facility Agency
Provider Qualifications — License (specify)

State: Request for Amendment: 38
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(¢) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as a Medicaid Certified Nursing Facility as required by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-201, et. seq.,
Act 1230 of 2001

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Respite Care services. To be certified, providers must
provide a copy of their Medicaid certified nursing facility license through the DHS Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency's current Medicaid
Certified Nursing Facility license at all times.

Service: Respite

Provider Type — Licensed Adult Day Health Care Agency

Provider Qualifications — License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an Adult Day Health Care agency as required by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-201, et. seq.
Provider Qualifications — Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Adult Day Health services. To be certified, providers
must provide a copy of their current adult day health care agency license through the DHS Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency's current Adult Day
Health Care license at all times.

Service: Respite

Provider Type — Licensed Residential Care Facility

Provider Qualifications — License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as a Residential Care Facility as required by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-201, et. seq., Act 1230 of
2001.

Provider Qualifications — Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Respite Care services. To be certified, providers must
provide a copy of their residential care facility license through the DHS Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency's current Residential
Care Facility license at all times,

State: Request for Amendment: 39
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Service: Respite

Provider Type — Certified- Aduli-Family Heme
[Delete provider type]

Provider Qualifications ~ Certificate (specify)
[Delete current language]

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

[Delete current language]

Frequency of Verification:

[Delete current language]

Service: Respite

Provider Type - Licensed Class A or Class B Home Health Agency or Licensed Private Care Agency
Provider Qualifications — License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Health as a Class A or Class B Home Health Agency as required
by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-807, History: Acts 1987, No. 956, 4; or licensed as a Private Care Agency.
Provider Qualifications — Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Respite Care services. To be certified, providers must
provide a copy of their current Class A and/or Class B home health agency license, or Private Care
Agency license through the Arkansas Department of Health.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency’s current license at all
times.

Service: Respite

Provider Type — Licensed Adult Day Care

Provider Qualifications - License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as a provider of Adult Day Care services as required by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-201, et. seq.
Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Adult Day Services. To be certified, providers must
provide a copy of their current adult day care license through the DHS Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency’s current Adult Day
Care license at all times.

Service: Adult Day Services
Provider Type — Licensed Adult Day Care

State: Request for Amendment: 40
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(¢c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Provider Qualifications - License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as a provider of Adult Day Care services as required by Ark. Code Ann. 20-10-201, et. seq.
Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Adult Day Services. To be certified, providers must
provide a copy of their current adult day care license through the DHS Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency’s current Adult Day
Care license at all times.

Service: AdultFamily Home
Provider Type — AdulFamily- Home

[Delete Adult Family Home service type and provider type]

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)
[Delete Adult Family Home service type and provider type]

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

[Delete Adult Family Home service type and provider type]
Frequency of Verification:

[Delete Adult Family Home service type and provider type]

Service: Attendant Care Services

Provider Type — Licensed Private Care Agency Enrolled as an Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care
Provider

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Agencies must be certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance, to provide ARChoices agency attendant care services.

Provider Qualifications - Other Standard (specify)

In order to be certified by DPSQA as an agency attendant care provider and enrolled as a Medicaid
provider, the atiendants hired by the agency must meet the following minimum qualifications:

o Be 18 years of age or older;
o Be a United States citizen or legal alien authorized to work in the U. §.;

o Be free from evidence of abuse or fraud in any setting; violations in the care of a dependent population;
conviction of a crime related 1o a dependent population; or, conviction of a violent crime;

o Be free from communicable diseases;

0 Be free from diseases readily transmittable through casual contact;

State: - Request for Amendment: 41
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

o Be able to read and write at a level sufficient to follow written instructions and maintain records;
o0 Be in adequate physical health to perform job tasks required; and

o Have a current signed formal agreement with an eligible ARChoices participant for the provision of
agency attendant care services.

Agency attendant care services providers must not hire attendants who are legally responsible for the
ARChoices participant.

Agency attendant care providers assure that staff are qualified by education and/or experience to perform
ARChoices services. properly trained and in compliance with all applicable licensure requirements,
possess the necessary skills to perform the specific services required to meet the needs of the participant,
and are bonded to protect the participant from loss due to misconduct or mismanagement of the
participant’s affairs and are covered under liability insurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the provider's current Personal
Care Agency license in the provider file at all times.

Service: Attendant Care Services

Provider Type — Licensed Home Health Agency

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Agencies must be certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance, to provide ARChoices agency attendant care services.

Provider Qualifications - Other Standard (specify)

In order to be certified by DPSQA as an agency attendant care provider and enrolled as a Medicaid
provider, the attendants hired by the agency must meet the following minimum qualifications:

¢ Be 18 years of age or older;
o Be a United States citizen or legal alien authorized to work in the U. S.;

0 Be free from evidence of abuse or fraud in any setting; violations in the care of a dependent population;
conviction of a crime related to a dependent population; or, conviction of a violent crime;

o Be free from communicable diseases;

o Be free from diseases readily transmittable through casual contact;

o Be able to read and write at a level sufficient to follow written instructions and maintain records;
o Be in adequate physical health to perform job tasks required; and

o Have a current signed formal agreement with an eligible ARChoices participant for the provision of
agency attendant care services.

State: Request for Amendment: 42
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Agency attendant care services providers must not hire attendants who are legally responsible for the
ARChoices participant.

Agency attendant care providers assure that staff are qualified by education and/or experience to perform
ARChoices services, properly trained and in compliance with all applicable licensure requirements,
possess the necessary skills to perform the specific services required 1o meet the needs of the participant,
and are bonded to protect the participant from loss due to misconduct or mismanagement of the
participant’s affairs and are covered under liability insurance.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification;

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the provider's current Home
Health Agency license in the provider file at all times.

Service: Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment

Provider Type — Installer (Builder, Tradesman or Contractor)

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment providers are certified by the Arkansas
Department of Human Service, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance, as an ARChoices
provider of environmental accessibility adaptations/adaptive equipment. Providers must also complete all
applicable forms required by DPSQA for certification. Providers must also be enrolled in the Arkansas
Medicaid program as an ARChoices environmental accessibility adaptations/adaptive equipment provider
before reimbursement may be made for services provided to ARChoices participants.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually.

Service: Home-Delivered Meals

Provider Type — Provider of Food Services

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

FFood Establishment Permit issued by the Department of Health

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance (DPSQA), as an ARChoices waiver provider of Home Delivered Meals. To be certified,
providers must provide a copy of their current food establishment permit issued by the Department of
Health.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually for recertification; however, DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency’s current Food
Establishment Permit at all times.

Service: Personal Emergency Response System (PERS)
Provider Type — Alarm or Security Company

State: ¥ Request for Amendment: 43
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)
Certificate of Compliance for Protective Signaling Services issued by the Underwriters Laboratories
Safety Standards

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance (DPSQA) as an ARChoices waiver provider of Personal Emergency Response System
services. To be certified, providers must provide a copy of their current certificate of compliance for
protective signaling services issued by the Underwriters Laboratories Safety Standards.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance

Service: Prevocational Services

Provider Type — Certified Prevocational Services Vendor

Provider Qualifications - Certificate (specify)

Certified by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as an ARChoices waiver provider of Prevocational Services.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
Frequency of Verification:

Annually

Appendix C: Participant Services

C-1; Summary of Services Covered (2 of 2)
¢. Delivery of Case Management Services. Specify the entity or entities that conduct case
management functions on behalt of waiver participants:

Each ARChoices waiver participant’s person-centered service plan will include Medicaid State
Plan targeted case management, unless refused by the waiver participant. Qualified targeted case
managers who can deliver targeted case management services are the employees of providers
enrolled in the Medicaid State Plan Targeted Case Management Program. A qualified targeted
case manager must be licensed in the State of Arkansas as a social worker, a registered nurse or a
licensed practical nurse or have a bachelor’s degree from an accredited institution or have
performed satisfactorily as a case manager for a period of two (2) years.

The targeted case manager is responsible for monitoring the waiver participant's status on a
regular basis for changes in his or her service need, and reporting any waiver participant's
complaints or changes to the DHS RN immediately upon learning of the change.

C-2: General Services Specifications (1 of 3)

a. Criminal History and/or Background Investigations. Specify the State's policies concerning the
conduct of criminal history and/or background investigations of individuals who provide waiver
services (select one);

Specify: (a) the types of positions (e.g., personal assistants, attendants) for which such investigations
must be conducted; (b) the scope of such investigations (e.g., state, national); and, (c) the process for
ensuring that mandatory investigations have been conducted. State laws, regulations and policies
referenced in this description are available to CMS upon request through the Medicaid or the
operating agency (if applicable):

State: Request for Amendment: 44
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

All ARChoices waiver providers employing persons providing direct services (personal assistants,
attendants) shall not knowingly employ a person who has been found guilty or has pled guilty or nolo
contendere to any disqualifying criminal offense.

Each ARChoices waiver provider must obtain from each employee and from each applicant for
employment a signed authorization permitting disclosures to the ARChoices provider of criminal
history information as defined in Ark. Code Ann., Section 12-12-1001.

Each provider receiving payment under the ARChoices program must, as a condition of continued
participation in the program, comply with the requirement for criminal history checks for new
employees, and periodic criminal history checks for agency operators and all employees at least once
every five years. The scope of the criminal background checks is national. This requirement applies to
any employee who in the course of employment may have direct contact with an ARChoices
participant. At the time of initial certification and re-certification, providers must submit a list of all
direct care services staff and the dates of their last criminal background check.

If the results of the criminal history check establish that the applicant was found guilty of, or pled
nolo contendere (no contest) to a disqualifying offense under Ark. Code Ann., Section 20-33-205
("disqualifying offense"), then the ARChoices waiver provider may not employ, or continue to
employ, the applicant. Disqualifying offenses do not include misdemeanors that did not involve
exploitation of an adult, abuse of a person, neglect of a person, theft, or sexual contact,

According to Arkansas Department of Human Services Policy 1088, DHS shall automatically exclude
any provider (or, an employee or subcontractor of that provider) that has wrongfully acted or failed to
act with respect to, or has been found guilty, or pled guilty or nolo contendere (no contest), to any
crime related to:

1. Obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private contract or subcontract,

2. Embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, any form of fraud,
receipt of stolen property, or any other offense indicating moral turpitude or a lack of business
integrity or honesty,

3. Dangerous drugs, controlled substances, or other drug-related offenses when the offense is a
felony,

4. Federal antitrust statutes,

5. The submission of bids or proposals, or

6. Any physical or sexual abuse or neglect when the offense is a felony.

[n addition, the Arkansas Medicaid Program requires criminal background checks on all Medicaid
providers, regardless of provider type, prior to Medicaid enrollment. This process is accomplished
through the state's claims processing contracior.

The DPSQA Provider Certification unit sends new applications and a list of providers who are due
recertification to the Medicaid Provider Enrollment unit, the Medicaid fiscal agent, which processes
all eriminal background checks. Certification of new providers and recertification of active providers
is contingent upon the completion of the criminal background check. The Medicaid program’s fiscal
agent submits reports detailing the background checks for new and existing providers to DPSQA.

b. Abuse Registry Screening. Specify whether the State requires the screening of individuals who
provide waiver services through a State-maintained abuse registry (select one):

 State: Request for Amendment: 45
Effective Dats




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

X Yes. The State maintains an abuse registry and requires the screening of individuals through this
regisiry.

Specify: (a) the entity (entities) responsible for maintaining the abuse registry; (b) the types of positions
for which abuse registry screenings must be conducted; and, (c) the process for ensuring that mandatory
screenings have been conducted. State laws, regulations and policies referenced in this description are
available to CMS upon request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable):

Abuse registry screenings of the direct care of services staff of ARChoices agency providers are
monitored at initial certification and re-certification. This is a required part of the certification and re-
certification process. In addition, agency providers must submit a list of all direct care of services staff
and the dates of their last criminal background checks. Criminal background checks are required for
agency providers every five years pursuant to Act 762 of 2009. Providers are required to follow all
requirements related to employee criminal background checks discussed in the Medicaid Provider
Manual.

The Adult Protective Services unit of the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services is
responsible for maintaining the abuse registry.

As part of the qualified provider review, DPSQA verifies that the provider file contains all required
documentation, including information regarding the criminal background checks.

C-2: General Services Specifications (3 of 3)

e. Other State Policies Concerning Payment for Waiver Services Furnished by Relatives/Legal
Guardians. Specify State policies concerning making payment to relatives/legal guardians for the
provision of waiver services over and above the policies addressed in Item C-2-d. Select one:

X The State makes payment to relatives/legal guardians under specific circumstances and only
when the relative/guardian is qualified to furnish services.
Specify the specific circumstances under which payment is made, the types of relatives/legal
guardians to whom payment may be made, and the services for which payment may be made.
Specify the controls that are employed to ensure that payments are made only for services
rendered. Also specify in Appendix C-1/C-3 each waiver service for which payment may be made
to relatives/legal guardians.

All ARChoices services may be reimbursed if provided by a relative of the participant, subject o
the limitations specified below.

Individuals who are legally responsible for the participant (i.e., spouse, legal guardian, or
attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the participant’s care) are prohibited from receiving
any reimbursement for any ARChoices services provided for the participant.

All providers, including relatives, are required to meet all applicable ARChoices provider
certification requirements and Arkansas Medicaid enrollment requirements, comply with all
applicable ARChoices provider manual requirements, and provide services according to the
participant’s approved service plan and any established benefit limits for that specific service, as
identified in Appendix C-1/C-3.

Controls are maintained through the required documentation for all service providers. This
documentation must support each service for which billing is made and include a copy of the
participant's person-centered service plan, a brief description of the specific services provided, the
signature and title of the individual providing the service, and the date and actual time services

State: Request for Amendment: 46
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

were provided. DHS RN supervisory staff conducts chart reviews to ensure that services were
provided according to the service plan. DPSQA performs audits and quality reviews of providers.

f.  Open Enrollment of Providers. Specify the processes that are employed to assure that all willing
and qualified providers have the opportunity to enroll as waiver service providers as provided in 42
CFR §431.51:

ARChoices provider enrollment is open and continuous. Those interested in becoming an
ARChoices provider can contact the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
(DPSQA) Provider Enrollment Unit for information and to obtain certification materials. There
are no restrictions applicable to requesting this information. The provider certification process is
open and available to any interested party.

The DPSQA website lists information for potential ARChoices providers.

C-4: Additional Limits on Amount of Waiver Services

a. Additional Limits on Amount of Waiver Services. Indicate whether the waiver employs any of the
following additional limits on the amount of waiver services (select one).

[] Not applicable- The State does not impose a limit on the amount of waiver services except as
provided in Appendix C-3
X  Applicable - The State imposes additional limits on the amount of waiver services

[C] Limit(s) on Set(s) of Services. There is a limit on the maximum dollar amount of waiver services

State:

that is authorized for one or more sets of services offered under the waiver. Furnish the
information specified above,

Prospective Individual Budget Amount. There is a limit on the maximum dollar amount of
waiver services authorized for each specific participant. Furnish the information specified above.

Budget Limits by Level of Support. Based on an assessment process and/or other factors,
participants are assigned to funding fevels that are limits on the maximum dollar amount of
waiver services. Furnish the information specified above

Other Type of Limit. The State employs another type of limit. Describe the limit and furnish the
information specified above.

Prospective Individual Budget Amount:

There is a limit on the maximum dollar amount of waiver services authorized for each specific
participant.

1. Individual Services Budget (ISB):

a. Inthe ARChoices in Homecare program, there is a limit on the maximum dollar amount
of waiver services that may be authorized for or received by each specific participant.

Request for Amendment: 47

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

This limit is called the Individual Services Budget (ISB) and applies to all participants
and all waiver services available through the ARChoices program.

Each ARChoices person-centered service plan shall include an Individual Services
Budget, as determined by DAABHS for the specific participant during the service plan
development process. The projected total cost of all authorized services in any
ARChoices person-centered service plan (including provisional plans) shall not exceed
the participant’s Individual Services Budget applicable to the time period covered by the
service plan.

Each participant’s Individual Services Budget shall be explained when the DAABHS
registered nurse consults with the individual on the person-centered service plan. This
may be done through written information.

Each participant shall also receive written notice of their Individual Services Budget that
includes notice of the right to request a Fair Hearing if they are denied waiver services as
a result of a dollar limit.

2. Adjustments, Considerations, and Safeguards Regarding Individual Services Budgets:

During the development of each person-centered service plan, after considering the
participant’s assessed needs, priorities, preferences, goals, and risk factors, and to ensure
that the cost of all ARChoices services for each participant does not exceed the applicable
Individual Services Budget amount, the DAABHS registered nurse shall, as necessary:

i. Limit and modify the type, amount, frequency, and duration of waiver services
authorized for the participant (notwithstanding any service-specific limits established
in Appendix C: Participant Services); and

ii. Make referrals to appropriate services available through the Medicaid State Plan or
another waiver program, Medicare, the participant’s Medicare Advantage (MA) plan
(including targeted and other supplemental benefits the MA plan may offer), the
participant’s Medicare prescription drug plan, and other federal, state, or community
programs.

Should the DAABHS nurse determine that the ARChoices waiver services authorized for
the participant within the limit of the applicable Individual Services Budget, other
Medicaid or Medicare covered services, and other available family and community
supports, when taken together, are insufficient to meet the participant’s needs, the
DAABHS nurse shall counsel the participant on Medicaid-covered services in other
settings that are available to meet their needs (e.g., nursing facility services and assisted
living facility services) and make appropriate referrals. The DAABHS nurse may also
order a re-assessment of the participant.

In the event that a participant’s ISB requires changes or limitations to ARChoices
services (that otherwise could be authorized for the person in the absence of the ISB) to
ensure that the applicable ISB amount is not exceeded, during the person-centered service
plan process the participant will be given the opportunity to choose a different mix, type,

State:

Request for Amendment: 48

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

or amount of ARChoices covered services. (For example, the participant could decide to
forego a day of adult day health services in order to have additional attendant care hours.)
Any such participant-requested changes and substitutions are subject to the following:

i.  The services chosen by participant are otherwise covered and reimbursable under
ARChoices and do not exceed any applicable service limitations;

ii. The services chosen by participant are necessary and appropriate for the individual
and consistent with results of the independent assessment;

ili. The cost of all ARChoices waiver services authorized for or received by the
participant, including any participant-requested changes and substitutions, do not
exceed the applicable [SB amount;

iv. The DAABHS nurse determines the changes are reasonable and necessary for the
individual and reflected in the approved person-centered service plan.

If waiver services are or become limited due to the application of the Individual Services
Budget, the affected participant may request an exception in the form of a temporary
increase in the person’s ISB amount applicable to a period not to exceed one year.
Exception requests shall be reviewed and acted on by DAABHS using a panel of at least
three registered nurses. The exceptions process, including request procedures,
documentation, and process for determining exceptions, shall be specified in the
ARChoices manual, as promulgated by DHS. This exceptions process is intended as a
safeguard to address exceptional circumstances affecting a participant’s health and
welfare and not as means to circumvent the application of the Individual Services Budget
policy or permit coverage of services not otherwise medically necessary for the
individual, consistent with their level of care, assessment results, and waiver program
policy. Approval of an exception request and associated temporary increase in a
participant’s Individual Services Budget amount for a period not to exceed one year is
subject to the following criteria:

i. In the professional opinion of the nurse panel, unique circumstances indicate that
additional time is reasonably needed by the participant (or the participant’s family on
his or her behalf) to (1) adjust waiver service use costs to within the applicable
Individual Services Budget (ISB) amount, (2) arrange for the start of or increase in
non-Medicaid services (such as informal family supports and Medicare-covered
services), and/or (3) arrange for placement in an alternative residential or facility-
based setting.

ii. Such unique circumstances must be (1) specific to the individual; (2) supported by
documentation provided to the nurse panel; (3) relevant to the individual’s assessed
needs and risk factors; (4) relevant to the temporary need for additional, medically
necessary coverable waiver services in excess of the person’s pre-exception 1SB
amount; and (5) not the result of a need for skilled services or other services not
covered under the waiver.

iii. Such unique circumstances may include (1) recent major life events not known at the
time the current person-centered service plan was approved, including without
limitation death of a spouse or caregiver, and loss of a home or residential placement;

State:

Request for Amendment: 49

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(¢c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Howmecare

and (2) a temporary increase in care needs, for a period not to exceed ninety (90)
days after a discharge from inpatient acute treatment or post-acute care.

iv. If the exception request is due to the participant (or participant’s family on his or her
behalf) encountering delays or difficulties in arranging new care arrangements or an
alternative residential or facility-based placement in the state, an exception may be
granted if the nurse panel determines reasonable efforts are being made and the
delays or difficulties experienced are exceptional or due to rural or remote location of
the participant’s home.

v. The factors considered by the nurse panel must be reasonably relevant to the
necessity for additional waiver services in total cost in excess of the person’s pre-
exception 1SB amount and for a temporary period of time not to exceed one year.

If the projected cost of services identified in an individual’s person-centered service plan
(whether such plan is under development, provisional, or final or renewed, amended, or
extended) is less than the applicable Individual Services Budget amount, this shall not be
construed to permit, suggest, or justify approval, coverage, or reimbursement of different
or additional waiver services (including changes in amount, frequency, or duration);
coverage and reimbursement of any medically unnecessary Medicaid State Plan or
waiver services; or other actions to increase spending to use the remaining “unused”

portion of the ISB amount.
The Individual Services Budget shall not apply to environmental accessibility
adaptations/adaptive equipment.

3. Transition Process:

a. The Individual Services Budget limit shall apply to the following:

i.

ii.

New ARChoices participants, including individuals determined newly eligible for
ARChoices following a period of ineligibility for this or another HCBS waiver
program, when they are determined waiver eligible, and effective for their first
person-centered service plan and thereafter; and

Existing ARChoices participants immediately upon any of the following events,
whichever may occur first:

(a) Waiver eligibility is re-evaluated;
{b) The Level of Care is reaffirmed or revised;
(c) A new independent assessment or re-assessment is performed;

(d) Expiration, renewal, extension, or revision of the participant’s person-centered
service plan occurs; or

(e) Admission to or discharge from an inpatient hospital, nursing facility, assisted
living facility, or residential care facility, or transfer from a hospice facility
occurs.

State:

Request for Amendment: 50

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(¢c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

b. For all other ARChoices participants not otherwise identified above, the Individual
Services Budget limit shall apply no later than 60 days after the effective date of this
waiver amendment.

c. For the following ARChoices participants, the DAABHS deputy director (or his/her
designee) may on a case-by-case basis extend the effective date of the participant’s first
Individual Services Budget by a maximum of 60 days per participant upon written
request of the participant (or legal representative) or the participant’s personal physician,
if:

i.  The specific participant’s recent pattern of waiver service expenditures exceeds the
average Individual Services Budget amount by an estimated twenty-five (25) percent
or more; and/or

ii. DAABHS determines that unique, intervening circumstances indicate that additional
time is reasonably needed by the participant and the participant’s family and
providers. Examples of unique, intervening circumstances include the death of the
spouse, loss of home, or unexpected difficulties in accessing or arranging care or
placement, among others.

Methodology for Determining Individual Services Budgets:

a. The Individual Services Budget amount for a participant is based on that participant’s
[SB Level. The ISB Level is determined by DAABHS based on a review of the
participant’s Independent Assessment. The three [SB Levels are:

i.  Intensive: The participant requires total dependence or extensive assistance from
another person in all three areas of mobility, feeding, and toileting.

ii.  Intermediate: The participant requires total dependence or extensive assistance
from another person in two of the areas of mobility, feeding, or toileting.

iii.  Preventative: The participant meets the functional need eligibility requirements
for ARChoices in Section 212.000 but does not meet the ¢riteria for the ISB
Levels of intensive or Intermediate.

b. The maximum Individual Services Budget for a participant, except as modified by the
Transitional Allowance in subsection (¢) below, is as follows:

i. For an individual with an assessed ISB Level of Intensive, the lndividual
Services Budget is $30,000.

ii. For an individual with an assessed ISB Level of Intermediate, the Individual
Services Budget is $20,000.

iii. For an individual with an assessed ISB Level of Preventative, the Individual
Services Budget is $5,000.

¢. For a participant with total waiver expenditures of more than $30,000 fior calendar year
2018:

State:

Request for Amendment: 51

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

ii.

The participant will be granted a Transitional Allowance for one year, increasing
the participant’s maximum Individual Services Budget to the amount of the
participant’s total waiver expenditures for calendar year 2018.

In the year following the Transitional Allowance, the participant’s maximum
Individual Services Budget will be 95% of the participant’s total waiver
expenditures for calendar year 2019.

For purposes of this subsection (c¢), “total waiver expenditures” for a calendar
year shall be calculated as the sum total of the value of all waiver services
authorized for the participant in the person-centered service plan as of December
31, and then modified by:

(a) If the cumulative expenditures are for less than 12 months, annualizing
the total to reflect what the expenditures would have been if the
participant had received the same monetary amount of services for 12
consecutive months; and

{(b) Excluding amounts expended for environmental modifications/adaptive
equipment.

DHS will monitor and update these ISB amounts if circumstances (including without
limitation provider rate increases) warrant a change for CY2020.

For purposes of determining the projected cost of all waiver services in an individual’s
person-centered service plan, DAABHS shall assume that:

i,

il

The individual will receive or otherwise use all services identified in the service plan
and in their respective maximum authorized amounts, frequencies, and durations; and

There are no interruptions in the provision of waiver services due to possible future
events such as an inpatient admission, nursing facility admission, or short-term
admission to another facility setting.

Determination of ISB Amounts

The maximum 1SB amount, $30,000, which is also the threshold for the
Transitional Allowance, is based on the average annual state and federal
cost of nursing home care, excluding the average resident share, the
average revenue from the state-imposed Quality Assurance Fee (QAF),
and the average FMAP revenue associated with the QAF. For FY2018, the
average amount of state general revenue paid for a nursing home stay was
$24.04 per day; the average amount of the FMAP on that state general
revenue was $57.67, for an average daily total of $81.71, multiplied by
365 days to produce an annual total average cost of $29,824.15. This
amount is then rounded up to the nearest thousand to produce the $30,000
ISB amount. '

State:

Request for Amendment: 52

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

The [SB amounts for the Preventative and Intermediate levels are based on
a DHS review of actual waiver service expenditures during FY2018 by a
set of 6,810 ARChoices participants who received an assessment or
reassessment during FY2018. The expenditures for each participant were
adjusted to produce a projected annual total expenditure amount, and
participants were divided into the Preventative, Intermediate, and
Intensive ISB levels based on the results of the ArPath assessment or
reassessment recorded in FY2018. DHS then reviewed the distribution of
projected annual total expenditure amounts by ISB level to determine an
appropriate ISB amount.

Appendix C: Quality Improvement

Quality Improvement: Qualified Providers
a. Methods for Discovery: Level of Care Assurances/Sub-assurances
The state demonstrates that it implements the processes and instrument(s) specified in ifs
approved waiver jor evaluating/reevaluating an applicant'stwaiver participant's level of care
consistent with level of care provided in a hospital, NF or ICF/IID.
i.  Sub-Assurances:
a. Sub-assurance: The State verifies that providers initially and continually meet
required licensure and/or certification standards and adhere to other standards prior to
their furnishing waiver services.

ii.

Performance Measure: Number and percentage of providers, by provider type,
which obtain re-certification in accordance with state law and waiver provider
qualifications. Numerator: Number of providers with re-certification;
Denominator: Total number of providers

Data source (Select one):

Other: Provider Certification Unit (DPSQA) Provider Database

Performance Measure: Number and percentage of providers, by provider type,
which obtained the appropriate license/certification in accordance with state law
and waiver provider qualifications prior to delivering services. Numerator:
number of providers with appropriate license/certification prior to delivery of
services; Denominator: Number of new providers

Data source (Select one):

Other: Provider Certification Unit (DPSQA) Provider Database

1f applicable, in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employed by the State to discover/identify problems/issues within the waiver
program, including frequency and parties responsible.

The state identifies and rectifies situations where providers do not meet requirements.
This is accomplished by monitoring certification/license expiration dates within
MMIS and continuing communication with the Medicaid fiscal agent responsible for
provider enrollment functions, and reviewing monthly reporis that identify providers
whose participation is terminated for inactivity or violations. Participation in provider
training is documented and monitored through monthly activity reports.

State:

Request for Amendment: 53

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

The state verifies that providers meet required licensing or certification standards and
adhere to other state standards, License expiration dates are maintained in the MMIS
and tracked for all participating and active providers.

Each month the DHS RN receives a provider list for each county included in their
geographical area. This provider list may be used at each assessment and
reassessment to give the participant a choice of providers for each service included
on the service plan. In addition, this list is used to identify the providers who are new
or who have been reinstated in the program.

Providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider Manual
related to provider training of employees and staff orientation, including
documentation requirements, provider participation requirements, and any penalties
or sanctions applicable for noncompliance.

Provider training consists of program policy, including documentation requirements,
reporting, claims processing and billing, the Medicaid Provider Manual and other
areas. This training is scheduled, at a minimum, two times per year based on training
needs.

Training requirements are explained in the provider manual. In addition, the Division
of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (operating agency) (DPSQA) is
responsible for contacting new providers according to program policy. These contacts
provide information regarding proper referrals, eligibility criteria, forms, reporting
change of status, general information about the program, etc. Within three months of
appearing on the provider list, the DHS RNs must meet with each new provider face-
to-face 1o discuss all of the above,

Evaluations from in-services are used to address strengths and weaknesses in the
training process, topics for future in-services, and policy enhancements. As a result of
in-services, policy clarifications have been issued; forms have been revised; training
topics have been chosen; documentation requirements have been revised; training
sessions have been redesigned.

The Medicaid fiscal agent provides DPSQA access to Provider License/Certification
Status. If needed, this provides a second monitoring tool for monitoring licensure and
certification compliance,

The mandatory Medicaid contract, signed by each waiver provider, states compliance
with required enrollment criteria. Failure to maintain required certification and/or
licensure results in loss of their Medicaid provider enrollment. Each provider is
notified in writing at least two months prior to the certification/licensure expiration
date that renewal is due and failure to maintain proper certification will result in loss
of Medicaid enrollment.

All waiver providers are responsible for all provider requirements, penalties and
sanctions as detailed in the Medicaid provider manual.

State:

Request for Amendment: 54

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

i.  Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
correction. In addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to document
these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating
agency, with primary responsibility for waiver program operations), the Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (operating agency with responsibility for provider
certification and quality assurance), and the Division of Medical Services (Medicaid agency)
- all three of which are part of the Arkansas Department of Human Services (DIHS) -
participate in team meetings as needed to discuss and address individual problems related to
qualified providers, as well as problem correction and remediation. DAABHS, DPSQA, and
DMS have an Interagency Agreement that includes measures regarding qualified provider
enrolled to provide services under the waiver.

All providers must meet required provider qualifications prior to Medicaid enrollment and
prior to providing services. Because of this, performance measures related to these processes
will always result in 100% compliance, and not allow for the possibility of remediation.

To continue Medicaid enrollment, a waiver provider must maintain certification by DPSQA.
In cases where providers do not maintain certification, DPSQA’s remediation may include
requesting termination of the provider’s Arkansas Medicaid enrollment, recouping payment
for services provided after certification/licensure has expired, and allowing the participant to
choose another provider.

D-1: Service Plan Development (3 of 8)- Supporting the Participant in Service Plan Development

When scheduling the person-centered service plan development visit, the DHS RN explains to the
participant or authorized representative the process and informs the participant that they may invite
anyone they choose to participate in the service plan development process. Involved in this assessment
visit is the participant and anyone they choose to have attend, such as their family, their representative,
caregivers, and any other persons identified by the participant or family as having information pertinent to
the assessment process or service plan development process. It is the participant or family membet’s
responsibility to notify interested parties to attend the service plan development meeting.

During the service plan development, the DHS RN explains to the participant the services available
through the ARChoices waiver,

When developing the person-centered service plan, all services and any applicable benefit limits are
reviewed, as well as the comprehensive goals, objectives and appropriateness of the services. The
participant and their representatives participate in all decisions regarding the type of services, amount and
frequency of the services included on the service plan. All services must be justified, based on need and
available support services. This information is recorded on the service plan, which is signed by the
participant.

D-1: Service Plan Development (4 of 8) — Service Plan Development Process

State: Request for Amendment: 55
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

(a) DHS RNs will develop initial person-centered service plans for ARChoices in Homecare participants
based on the Independent Assessment Contractor’s assessment of the participant's needs and information
gathered during the service plan development meeting with the participant. The DHS RN will inform
participants that they may invite anyone that they choose to participate in the service plan development
process. Involved in this service plan development visit is the participant, their family, their
representative, caregivers, and any other persons identified by the participant or family as having
information pertinent to the assessment or service plan development process. It is the participant or
family member’s responsibility to notify interested parties to attend the service plan development
meeting. The DHS RN will assist in notifying interested parties if requested by the participant or the
representative.

The development of the person-centered service plan will begin with an in-person independent
assessment conducted by the DHS Independent Assessment Contractor. The Independent Assessment
Contractor will contact the waiver participant to schedule a convenient time and location for the
assessment. The assessment will be scheduled and completed by the Independent Assessment Contractor
within 10 working days of the Independent Assessment Contractor receiving a referral from DHS.
Following the assessment and assignment of a tier level by the Independent Assessment Contractor, a
DHS RN will schedule a meeting with the participant to develop the service plan. Reassessments, which
will be conducted by the Independent Assessment Contractor, will be completed annually or more often,
if deemed appropriate by the DHS RN. Following the reassessment by the Independent Assessment
Contractor, the DHS RN will develop a person-centered service plan. The service plan may be revised at
any time, based on information relevant to the participant's condition or circumstances. Service plans are
developed and sent to all providers before services may begin.

(b) The Independent Assessment Contractor will assess the participant’s needs. The DHS RN will assess
the participant’s comprehensive goals and objectives related to the participant’s care and reviews the
appropriateness of ARChoices services. If necessary, the DHS RN will read any of the information
provided during the assessment to the participant. If this is done, it is documented in the participant’s
record. All forms and information will be provided in an alternate format upon request. If an alternate
format is requested and/or provided, the DHS RN will document in the participant’s record the format
requested and/or provided.

All accommodations are provided on an individualized basis according to the participant's needs. DHS
has a contract with an interpreter to accommodate applicants/participants who are hearing impaired. The
Independent Assessment Contractor and the DHS RNs will provide written materials to participants and
will read any information to participants if needed. DHS RNs may utilize assistance from other divisions
within the Arkansas Department of Human Services, such as the Division of Services for the Blind, in
these instances. When this occurs, it is documented in the participant's record.

The results of the Independent Assessment Contractor’s functional assessment using the ARIA
assessment tool will be used by the Office of Long Term Care to evaluate the level of care and by the
DHS RN to develop the person-centered service plan. Information collected for the Independent
Assessment Contractor’s functional assessment using the ARIA tool will include demographic
information ang information on the waiver participant's ability to perform the activities of daily living;
transferring and ambulation; continence status; nutritional status; hearing, vision, speech and language;
skin condition; behavior and attitude; orientation level; other medical conditions; psychosocial and
cognitive status; and, medications/treatments.

The assessment is a complete functional assessment and includes a medical history. The Independent
Assessment Contractor will evaluate the participant's physical, functional, mental, emotional and social

Staie: Request for Amendment: 56
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

status, and will obtain a medical history to ensure that the service plan addresses the participant's
strengths, capacities, health care, and other needs. The DHS RN will assess the participant’s preferences,
goals, desired outcomes, and risk factors. Support systems available to the participant are identified and
documented, along with services currently in place. Based on this assessment information, the DHS RN
will discuss the service delivery plan with the participant,

When the service plan development process results in an individual being denied the services or the
providers of their choice, the state must afford the individual the opportunity to request a Fair Hearing.

Provisional (Temporary Interim) Service Plan Policy: A provisional person-centered service plan may be
developed by the DHS RN prior to determination of Medicaid eligibility, based on information obtained
during the in-home functional assessment if the applicant is functionally eligible based on the
Independent Assessment Contractor’s assessment. The DHS RN must discuss the Provisional Service
Plan Policy and have approval from the applicant prior to completing and processing a provisional service
plan, which will then be signed by the applicant or the applicant's representative and the DHS RN. The
provisional service plan will be provided to the waiver applicant and each provider inciuded on the
service plan. The provider will notify the DHS RN via form AAS-9510 (Start of Care Form), indicating
the date services begin. No provisional service plans will be developed if the waiting list process has been
implemented.

Provisional person-centered service plans expire 60 days from the date signed by the DHS RN and the
participant. A comprehensive service plan that has been approved with a Medicaid number and waiver
eligibility date must be in place no later than the expiration date of the provisional service plan. Prior to
its expiration date, the DHS RN will provide a signed, comprehensive service plan to the ARChoices
provider.

The Independent Assessment Contractor will complete a face-to-face functional assessment within 10
working days of receiving a referral from DHS. The DHS RN meets with the participant and develops an
ARChoices person-centered service plan. Once the service plan is signed by the DHS RN and the
applicant, it is considered a provisional service plan.

If services are started based on the provisional service plan, providers will send the Start of Care (AAS-
9510) form to the DHS RN indicating the date services started. No additional notification to the DHS RN
is required when the comprehensive service plan is received.

(c) During the person-centered service plan development process, the DHS RN explains the services
available through the ARChoices waiver to the participant, including any applicable benefit limits. All
services the participant is currently receiving are discussed and documented on the person-centered
service plan. This includes all medical and non-medical services, such as diapers, under pads,
nonemergency medical transportation, family support or other services that are routinely provided.

(d) The DHS RN develops the person-centered service plan based on the information gathered through
the assessment process and the discussion of available services with the participant. The service plan
addresses the participant's needs, goals and preferences. The participant may invite anyone they choose
to participate in the assessment and service plan development process, including family members and
caregivers. Also, the DHS RN may contact anyone who may be able to provide accurate and pertinent
information regarding the participant's condition and functional ability.

If there is any indication prior to or during the assessment or person-centered service plan development
process that the participant is confused or incapable of answering the questions required for a proper
assessment and service plan development, the assessment or service plan development will not be

State: Request for Amendment: 57
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

conducted without another person present who is familiar with the participant and his or her condition.
This may be a family member, friend, neighbor, caregiver, etc. If unavailable for the interview, this
person may be contacted by phone. These individuals' participation in the service plan development
process also helps to ensure that the participant's goals, preferences and needs are met.

When developing or updating the person-centered service plan, the participant and their representatives
participate in all decisions regarding the types, amount and frequency of the services included on the
service plan. All services must be justified, based on need and available support services.

(e) The participant must choose a provider for each waiver service selected. During the service plan
development process, the DHS RN informs the participant or their legal guardian or family member of the
available services. The participant or guardian/family member may choose the providers from which to
receive services. Documentation verifying freedom of choice was assured is included in the participant's
record on the person-centered service plan, and on the provider list. Both documents reflect freedom of
choice was given to the participant. The freedom of choice form and all related documents are included in
the participant's record and reviewed during the DHS RN supervisory review process. Each service
included on the service plan is explained by the DHS RN. The amount, frequency, scope and provider of
each service is also discussed and entered on the service plan. The DHS RN sends a copy of the service
plan to the waiver provider, as well as the participant. The DHS RN tracks the implementation of each
service through the Start of Care form, which includes the date services begin.

(f) Implementation, compliance, and monitoring of the person-centered service plan is the responsibility
of DAABHS (Operating Agency), DMS (Medicaid Agency), and providers of ARChoices in Homecare
waiver services.

Service providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider Manual related to
monitoring, including types of monitoring, timeframes, reporting and documentation requirements.
Providers are required to report any change in the participant's condition to the DHS RN, who is the only
authorized individual who may adjust a participant's service plan. Providers agree to render all services in
accordance with the Arkansas Medicaid ARChoices in Homecare Home & Community Based Services
Waiver Provider Manual; to comply with all policies, procedures and guidelines established by
DAABHS; to notify the DHS RN immediately of any change in the participant's physical, mental or
environmental needs the provider observes or is made aware of that may affect the participant's eligibility
or necessitate a change in the participant's person-centered service plan; to continually monitor participant
satisfaction and quality of service delivery; and, to notify the DHS RN in writing within one week of
services being terminated, documenting the termination effective date and the reason for the termination.

Providers assure the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) that adequate
staffing levels are maintained to ensure timely and consistent delivery of services to all participants for
whom they have accepted an ARChoices in Homecare service plan. Providers acknowledge that they
may render and pursue reimbursement for services delivered in accordance with the service plan
developed by the DHS RN. Providers acknowledge that the DHS RN is the only authorized individual
who may adjust an ARChoices in Homecare waiver participant's service plan. Providers will implement
the service plan with the flexibility to schedule hours to best meet the needs of the participant and will be
monitored by DAABHS for compliance.

Service plans are revised by DHS RNs as needed between assessments, based on reports secured through
providers, waiver participants and their support systems.

(g) Each reassessment and person-centered service plan development is completed annually or more
often, if deemed appropriate by the DHS RN. The service plan may be revised at any time, based on

State: Request for Amendment: 58
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

information relevant to the participant's condition or circumstances. Changes are reported to the DHS RN
by the participant, the participant's family or representatives, service providers and Targeted Case
Managers. The DHS RN has sole authority for all development and revisions to the waiver service plan,
Service plan updates must be based on a change in the participant's status or needs.

D-1: (5 of 8) Risk Assessment and Mitigation

The Independent Assessment Contractor assesses a participant's needs, functional abilities, and
performance of activities of daily living during the assessment. The DHS RN assesses a participant’s
preferences, risks, dangers, and supports during the meeting with the participant to develop a person-
centered service plan. In addition, the service plan development process includes assessment of risk
factors and strategies to mitigate risk conducted in a manner that is sensitive to the waiver participant's
preferences and the responsibilities required to reduce risk. The risk mitigation includes factors regarding
the participant's functioning ability, ADL performance, support systems in place, risk of falls,
environmental factors, and other dangers. This information is included on the person-centered service
plan and in the participant's record. Services are started as soon as possible in order to mitigate risk.

The person-centered service plan also includes contact information for emergency care and backup plans.
The name of a backup caregiver, or the person responsible for the participant, must be included on the
person-ceniered service plan. Backup caregivers are often family members, neighbors or others familiar
with the participant,

Routine monitoring of ARChoices in Homecare participants also helps to assess and mitigate risk. DHS
RNs make at least annual contact with participants and take action to mitigate risks if an issue arises.
Targeted Case Managers are required to monitor the participant monthly at a minimum and must follow
frequency requirements as described in the Targeted Case Management Medicaid Provider Manual
regarding face-to-face or telephone contacts with the participant. Potential risks identified during these
monitoring contacts require the Targeted Case Manager to take action to mitigate the risk.

Also, providers, family members and others who have regular contact with participants are required to
report any change in participant condition, or perceived risk or other problem concerning the participant.
The DHS RNs also re-evaluate potential participant risks during monitoring visits. DHS RNs and
Targeted Case Managers refer any high-risk participants to Adult Protective Services immediately if it is
felt that the participant is in danger. DHS RN also provide patient education on safety issues during the
assessment and annual reassessment. The annual contact by the DHS RN is a minimum contact standard.
Visits are made as needed during the interim.

Service providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider manual related to
emergencies, including the emergency backup plan process and contact information for emergencies. The
provider assures DAABHS all necessary safeguards and precautions have been taken to protect the health
and welfare of the participants they serve. Providers agree to operate and provide services in full
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local standards including, but not limited to, fire, health,
safety and sanitation standards prescribed by law or regulations. Providers assure DAABHS that
conditions or circumstances which place a person, or the household of a person, in imminent danger will
be brought to the attention of appropriate officials for follow-up. Providers agree to inform the DHS RN
immediately of any change in the participant's physical, mental or environmental needs the provider
observes or is made aware of that may affect the participant's eligibility or would necessitate a change in
the participant's service plan.

Parucipants, family members or the participant's representative may also contact the DHS RN or Targeted
Case Manager any time a change is needed or a safety issue arises. Additional monitoring is performed

State: Request for Amendment: 59
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

by DMS as part of the validation review, by Office of Medicaid Inspector General audits, and in response
to any complaints received,

D-1: (6 of 8) Informed Choice of Providers

The participant must choose a provider for each waiver service selected. When a person-centered service
plan is developed, the DHS RN must inform the individual, their representative, or family member of all
qualified ARChoices in Homecare qualified providers in the individual's service delivery area. The
participant, representative, or guardian/family member may choose the providers from which to receive
services. The name of the providers chosen by the participant, representative, or family
member/representative must be included on the person-centered service plan prior to securing the
individual's signature. Along with signing the service plan, and the Freedom of Choice form, an up-to-
date provider listing from DPSQA must be signed and initialed. 1f a family member/representative
chooses a provider for the participant, the DHS RN must identify the individual who chose the providers
on the service plan and on the Freedom of Choice form. Documentation is also included in the
participant's record and reviewed during the DHS RN supervisory review process.

For reassessments, the participant or representative must sign the Freedom of Choice form to show that
no change in providers was made. The provider listing does not need to be initialed if there are no
changes in providers. However, if a participant wishes to change providers at reassessment, both the
Freedom of Choice form and provider listing must be signed and initialed indicating this change.
Participants may request a change of providers at any time during a waiver year.

The participant chooses the provider. However, the participant may invite his or her family members or
representative to participate in the decision-making process. Any decision made by a family member or
representative is done at the participant’s request and is documented.

DHS RNs and Targeted Case Managers leave contact information with participants at each visit. The
participant may contact the DHS RN at any time to find out more information about providers.

Appendix D: Participant -Centered Planning and Service Delivery

D-1: Service Plan Development (7 of 8)

g Process for Making Service Plan Subject to the Approval of the Medicaid Agency. Describe the
process by which the service plan is made subject to the approval of the Medicaid agency in
accordance with 42 CFR §441.301(b){L)}i):

All ARChoices in Homecare person-centered service plans are subject to the review and approval of
the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (Operating Agency), and
the Division of Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid Agency).

DMS does not review and approve all service plans prior to implementation; however, all are subject
to the Medicaid Agency’s approval and are made available by the operating agency upon request.
DMS reviews a validation sample of participants' records which includes the person-centered service
plan. Reviewed service plans are compared to policy guidelines, the functional assessment, and the
case notes detailing the participant's living environment, physical and mental limitations, and overall
needs.

A statistically valid random sample of service plans is determined, using the Raosoft software
calculations program, for review by the DHS RN supervisory staff. Records are reviewed to assess
the appropriateness of the service plan, to validate service provision, to ensure that services are

State: Request for Amendment: 60
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

meeting the waiver participant's needs and that necessary safeguards have been taken to protect the
health and welfare of the participant and to profile provider billing practices. In the event the service
plan is deemed inappropriate or service provision is lacking, the DHS RN addresses any needed
corrective action. In the event provider billing practices are suspect, all pertinent information is
forwarded to the Office of Medicaid Inspector General.

In addition, DMS completes a validation review of participant records reviewed by DAABHS. For
the validation review, DMS reviews 20% of the records reviewed by DAABEIS. For the provider file
sample, the Raosoft online calculator is used to determine a statistically valid sample size with a 95%
confidence level and a margin of error of +/- 5%. Every nth name is selected for review until the
sample size is reached. The sample is then divided into twelve groups for monthly review by DMS.

Information reviewed by both DAABHS and DMS during the record review process includes, but is
not limited to: development of an appropriate individualized person-centered service plan, completion
of updates and revisions to the service plan and coordination with other agencies as necessary to
ensure that services are provided according to the service plan.

D-1: Service Plan Development (8 of 8)

i. Maintenance of Service Plan Forms. Written copies or electronic facsimiles of service plans are
maintained for a minimum period of 3 years as required by 45 CFR §92.42. Service plans are
maintained by the following (check each that applies):

X Operating agency

Specify:

The service plan is maintained by the DHS RN in the participant's record and by the ARChoices
in Homecare waiver service providers.

D-2: Service Plan Implementation and Monitoring -

a. Service Plan Implementation and Monitoring. Specify: (a) the entity (entities) responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the service plan and participant health and welfare; (b) the
monitoring and follow-up method(s) that are used; and, (c) the frequency with which monitoring
is performed.

Waiver participants are monitored through a variety of means and all monitoring by the Division
of Aging, Adult. and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency) waiver staff,
Targeted Case Managers, and providers includes compliance with the service plan, the health and
welfare of the participant, access to services, effectiveness of backup plans, and complaints or
problems. Contact with ARChoices participants is maintained to ensure that services are
furnished according to the person-centered service plan and that the services meet the
participant's needs. Monitoring is an essential component of Targeted Case Management.
Targeted Case Managers are required to conduct routine monitoring and report to the DHS RN,
Targeted Case Managers must follow the monitoring guidelines and timeframes outlined in the
Medicaid Provider Manual.

DHS RNs:

DHS RNs monitor each waiver participant's status on an as-needed basis for changes in service
need, reassessment (if necessary), and reporting any participant's complaints of violations of rules
and regulations to appropriate authorities for investigation. If participants are unable to
participate in a monitoring contact, the participant may invite anyone they choose to participate in
the visit. Most often this is the participant's legal guardian, representative or family member.

State: ) Request for Amendment: 61
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

At each person-centered service planning meeting, the DHS RN provides the participant with
their contact information, an Adult Protective Services (APS) brochure to provide information
and the toll-free APS hotline for reporting abuse, maltreatment or exploitation. This information
may be utilized by the participant or guardians/family members to report any issues they deem
necessary, so that DAABHS can ensure prompt follow-up to problems.

ARCHOICES IN HOMECARE PROVIDERS:

Service providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider Manual related to
monitoring, including types of monitoring, timeframes, reporting, and documentation
requirements. Provider are required to report any change in the participant’s condition to the
participant's DHS RN.

TARGETED CASE MANAGERS:

Targeted Case Management is included on each ARChoices service plan, unless declined by the
participant.

Targeted Case Managers must maintain contact with participants as frequently as needed, with a
minimum of one contact monthly to help determine whether services are being furnished
according to the participant's person-centered service plan, the adequacy of the services in the
service plan, and changes in the participant's needs or status. These contacts may be face-to-face
or by telephone, according to established policy as outlined in the Targeted Case Management
Medicaid Provider Manual. Targeted Case Managers must give patticipants their office phone
numbers, and leave a business card or contact sheet in the participant’s home in case of concerns
or questions.

Targeted Case Managers must conduct monitoring according to current policy, including initial
meetings with participants to discuss the participant's needs and to determine who currently
provides for any or all of their needs. Following the initial home visit, Targeted Case Managers
must make unannounced face-to-face monitoring visits as required by current policy.

If the participant's circumstances remain stable, no provider changes are made and no problems
noted, unannounced face-to-face monitoring visits must continue according to current policy.
During months no face-to-face visit is conducted, a telephone contact must be made. An
ARChoices in Homecare Monitoring Form must be completed during face-to-face visits. A
contact is not considered a face-to-face monitoring contact unless the required monitoring form is
completed, dated and signed by the case manager and filed in the participant's record.
Documentation in the narrative of the participant's record will suffice for telephone contacts,
rather than completing the monitoring form. All face-to-face and telephone contacts must be
documented in the participant's case record for review and audit purposes.

During each home visit, the Targeted Case Manager must document the participant's condition,
the condition of the home, living environment, adequacy of the participant's person-centered
service plan, and overall success of service plan delivery. Any problems, changes, complainis,
observations, concerns or other participant issues {e.g., provider changes, information regarding
change of condition, hospital admissions, hospital discharges, address changes, telephone number
changes, deaths, any change in waiver or non-waiver services) must be documented in the
participant's record and reported immediately to the DHS RN via the Change of Client Status
form (AAS-9511) or email. The AAS-9511 may be transmitted via fax or email to the DHS RN.
Copies of required forms and/or communication must be maintained in the participant's record.

State:

Request for Amendment: 62

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Targeted Case Managers review the person-centered service plan with the participant during all
face-to-face visits to ensure that services are being provided according to the plan. The Targeted
Case Manager will also measure the participant’s progress toward service plan goals.

The contacts listed above are a minimum requirement. In an effort to assure health and safety,
compliance with the waiver person-centered service plan, and the integrity of services billed to
the Medicaid Program, it is the Targeted Case Manager's responsibility to visit, call and support
the waiver participant as much as is needed based on the individual's circumstances and the
stability of their services.

INFORMATION EXCHANGE:

Both DMS and DA ABHS perform reguiar reviews to support proper implementation and
monitoring of the person-centered service plan. Record reviews are thorough and include a
review of all required documentation regarding compliance with the service plan development
assurance. Reviews include, but are not limited to, completeness of the service plan; timeliness
of the service plan development process; appropriateness of all medical and non-medical services;
consideration of participants in the service plan development process; clarity and consistency;
and, compliance with program policy regarding all aspects of the service plan development,
changes and renewal.

The DHS RN maintains an established caseload, covering certain counties in Arkansas. Each
participant knows his or her DHS RN and has the DHS RN’s contact information. DHS RN
supervisors assist in the resolution of problems, monitor the work performed by the DHS RNs by
making periodic visits with each DHS RN, and assist in overall program monitoring and quality
assurance. Additionally, a record review process is conducted on a monthly basis by DHS RN
supervisors. Records are pulled at random and reviewed for accuracy and appropriateness in the
areas of medical assessments, service plans, level of care determinations and documentation,
Selection begins by reviewing the latest monthly report from the Arkansas Client Eligibility
System (ACES). This report reflects all active cases and includes each participant's waiver
eligibility date. Records are pulled for review based on established eligibility dates. A comparable
pull is made to review new eligibles, established eligibles, recent closures and changes. This
method results in all types of charts being reviewed for program and procedural compliance.
DAABHS supervisory staff uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the appropriate
sample size for record review with a 95% confidence level and a margin of error of +/-5%, and
selects every name on the list to be included in the sampie.

The following reports are used to compile monitoring information and reported as indicated:

1. Monthly Reports - compiled by each DHS RN and reported monthly to RN supervisor. All
monitoring visits are reported.

2. RN Supervisor Report - compiled by each RN supervisor and reported monthly to the Nurse
Manager. All monitoring visits are reported.

3. Monthly Record Reviews - performed monthly by RN supervisors and reported monthly to
Nurse Manager.

4. DMS Monthly Record Reviews - performed monthly by DMS and reported monthly to
DAABHS.

5. DMS Annual QA Report - compiled annually by DMS and reported to DAABHS.

State:

Request for Amendment: 63

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

D-2: Service Plan [mplementation and Monitoring

h.
X

Monitoring Safeguards, Select one:
Entities and/or individuals that have responsibility to monitor service plar implementation

and participant health and welfare may provide other direct waiver services to the participant.

The State has established the following safeguards to ensure that monitoring is conducting in the
best interests of the participant. Specify:

Service providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider Manual related to
emergencies, including the emergency backup plan process and contact information for
emergencies. Providers agree to inform the DHS RN immediately of any change in the
participant's physical, mental or environmental needs the provider observes or is made aware of
that may affect the participant's eligibility or would necessitate a change in the participant's
person-centered service plan.

ARChoices in Homecare providers agree to render all services in accordance with the Arkansas
Medicaid ARChoices in Homecare Home & Community-Based Services Waiver Provider
Manual; to comply with all policies, procedures and guidelines established by the Division of
Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency); to continually
monitor participant satisfaction and quality of service delivery; and, to notify the DHS RN in
writing within one week of services being terminated documenting the termination effective date
and the reason for termination.

ARChoices in Homecare providers assure the Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance (DPSQA) (operating agency) that adequate staffing levels are maintained to ensure
timely and consistent delivery of services to all participants for whom they have accepted an
ARChoices in Homecare waiver person-centered service plan. Providers acknowledge that they
may render and pursue reimbursement for services delivered in accordance with the service plan
developed by the DHS RN. Providers acknowledge that the DHS RN is the only authorized
individual who may adjust an ARChoices in Homecare waiver participant's service plan.
Providers accept full responsibility for the quality and number of service units provided to an
ARChoices in Homecare waiver participant by their staff, and assure DAABHS appropriate
management and supervision of services takes place at all times.

Person-centered service plans are revised by DHS RNs as needed between assessments, based on
information secured through providers, waiver participants and their support systems.

Targeted Case Managers monitor waiver participants' status as needed for changes in service
need, referring participants for reassessment if necessary and reporting any participant complaints
of violations of rules and regulations to appropriate authorities for investigation. If participants
are unable to participate in a monitoring contact, the participant's legal representative, gouardian or
family member may participate on their behalf. This oversight ensures that participants are
receiving the specified services to meet their needs and according to the person-centered service
plan.

DHS RNs and Targeted Case Managers must document all contacts (in person, telephone or
correspondence) with or on behalf of the participant in the participant's case record. If a
monitoring contact produces any information that warrants further action, DHS RNs and Targeted
Case Managers are responsible for following through and taking any action deemed appropriate.

State:

Request for Amendment: 64

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Appendix D: Participant-Centered Planning and Service Delivery
Quality Improvement: Service Plan
a. Methods for Discovery: Service Plan Assurance/Sub-Assurances

i.

Sub-Assurances
a. Sub-Assurance: Service plans address all participants’ assessed needs

(including health and safety risk factors) and personal goals, either by the
provision of waiver services or through other means.

Performance Measures:

Number and percent of participants reviewed who had service plans that
addressed risk factors. Numerator: Number of participants’ service plans
that address risk factors; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Number and percent of participants reviewed who had service plans that
were adequate and appropriate to their needs as indicated by the
assessment(s). Numerator: Number of participants with service plans that
address needs; Denominator; Number of records reviewed.

Number and percent of participants reviewed who had service plans
that addressed personal goals. Numerator: Number of service plans
that address personal goals; Denominator: Number of records
reviewed

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

. Sub-Assurance: The State monitors service plan development in accordance

with its policies and procedures.

Performance Measures:

Number and percent of service plan development procedures that are
completed as described in the waiver application. Numerator: Number of
participants’ service plans completed according to waiver procedures;
Denominator: Number of records reviewed.

Sampling Appreach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
systemn provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

. Sub-Assurance: Service plans are updated/revised at least annually or when

warranted by changes in the waiver participant’s needs.

Performance Measures:

Number and percent of service plans that were reviewed and updated by the
DHS RN according to changes in participants' needs before the waiver
participants' annual review date. Numerator: Number of participants’
service plans that were reviewed and revised by the DHS RN before annual
review date; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

State:

] Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 65



Regquest for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

State:

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

d.Sub-Assarance: Services are delivered in accordance with the service plan,

&,

including the type, scope. amount, duration and frequency specified in the
service plan. Performance Measures:

Number and percent of participants reviewed who received services in the
type, scope, amount, frequency and duration specified in the service plan.
Numerator: Number of participants’ service plans who received services
specified in the service plan; Denominator: Number of records reviewed,
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

Sub-Assurance: Participants are afforded choice: Between waiver services and
institutional care; and between/among waiver services and providers.
Performance Measures:

Number and percent of waiver participant records reviewed with an
appropriately completed service plan that specified choice was offered
between institutional care and waiver services and among waiver services.
Numerater: Number of participants’ service plans with choice between
institutional care waiver services and among waiver services; Denominator:
Number of records reviewed

Number and percent of waiver participant records reviewed with
appropriately completed and signed freedom of choice forms that specified
choice of providers was offered. Numerator: Number of participanis with
freedom of choice forms with cheice of providers; Denominator: Number of
records reviewed,

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Contidence lnterval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

If applicable, in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employved by the State to discover/identify problems/issues within the waiver
program. including frequency and parties responsible.

The state currently operates a system of review that assures completeness,
appropriateness, accuracy, and freedom of choice. This system focuses on
participant-centered service planning and delivery, participant rights and
responsibilities, and participant outcomes and satisfaction.

Effective Date

T Request for Amendment: 66
|




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Individual records are reviewed monthly by DAABHS for completeness and
accyracy and resulting data is made available for the production of the Record
Review Summary Report.

The state monitors service plan development in accordance with its policies and
procedures, and lakes appropriate action whea it identifies inadequacies in the
development process. Revisions and updates to records are made as changes in
participant needs necessitate. Remediation is performed on service plans that require
correction or revision. This is accomplished as discrepancies or inadequacies are
identified. Confirmation of remediation is verified by the RN supervisor and is a part
of the record review process.

DAABHS supervisory staff uses the Raosoft calculation system to determine
appropriate sample size for ARChoices in Homecare Record Review, and selects
every nth name on the list to be included in the sample.

Record reviews of the overall program files are thorough and include a review of all
required documentation regarding compliance with the service plan development
assurance and service plan delivery. Reviews include, but are not limited to,
completeness of the service plan; timeliness of the service plan development process;
appropriateness of all medical and non-medicai services; consideration of participants
in the service plan development process; clarity and consistency; compliance with
program policy regarding all aspects of the service plan development, changes, and
renewal.

Some measures have multiple factors that are reviewed to determine if the area is in
compliance. These measures are directly related to the CMS waiver assurance areas,
including service plan development and delivery of services. Initial verification of
service delivery is verified via the Start of Care form. This documentation is a part of
every record review.

Record reviews check for the presence of justification for requested changes and
proper decumentation, and data is summarized for the Record Review Summary.
Participants are afforded choice between waiver services and institutional care, and
between/among waiver services and providers. Records are reviewed to assure that a
Freedom of Choice form was presented to the participant and that a complete, up-to~
date Hist of providers has been made available to the participant.

The state monitors service plan development in accordance with its policies and
procedures, and takes appropriate action when it identifies inadequacies in the
development process. Revisions and updates to records are made as changes m
participant needs necessitate. Remediation is performed on person-centered service
plans that require correction or revision. This is accomplished as discrepancies or
inadequacies are identified. Confirmation of remediation is verified by the DHS RN
supervisor and is a part of the record review process.

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

I.  Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAIL methods for problem

State:

Request for Amendment: 67

Effective Date




Request for Amendment 1o a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

correction. Tn addition. provide information on the methods used by the State to document
these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS)
(operating agency, with primary responsibility for waiver program operations), the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (operating agency
with responsibility for provider certification and quality assurance), and the Division
of Medical Services (Medicaid agency) — all three of which are part of the Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS) - participate in team meetings as needed to
discuss and address individual problems related to service plans, as well as problem
correction and remediation. DAABHS, DPSQA, and DMS have an Interagency
Agreement that includes measures regarding qualified provider enrolled to provide
services under the waivet.

If a participant record lacks required documentation regarding this assurance,
DAABHS’s remediation includes completing the required documentation according
to policy and additional staff training in this area.

The tool used to review waiver participants' records captures and tracks remediation
in these areas.

Appendix F: Participant Rights

Appendix F-1: Opportunity to Request a Fair Hearing

Procedures for Offering Opportunity to Request a Fair Hearing. Describe how the individual {(or
his/her legal represemtative) is informed of the opportunity to request a fair hearing under 42 CFR Part
431, Subpart E. Specify the notice(s) that are used to offer individuals the opportunity to request a Fair
Hearing. State laws, regulations, policies and notices referenced in the description are available to CMS
upon request through the operating or Medicaid agency.

The form DCO-707 (Notice of Action) is issued by the DHS County Office to provide notice to an
applicant or waiver participant of any action taken with regard to Medicaid and program eligibility, such
as approval and eligibility effective dates, denial and denial effective dates, the reason for action taken,
and requests that further information be provided to the DHS County Office by the applicant or
participant.

Waiver applicants and participants are advised on the DCO-707 (Notice of Action) or the system-
generated Notice of Action by the DHS County Office when adverse action is taken to deny, suspend,
reduce, or terminate eligibility for ARChoices in Homecare. The notice explains the action taken, the
effective date of the action, the reason for the action, and explains the applicant's or participant's right to a
hearing if the individual disagrees with the action the DHS County Otfice plans to take, the 30-day
deadline for requesting a hearing, how to file for a hearing, and the applicant's or participant's right to
representation.

Fair hearings are the responsibility of the Departiment of Human Services, Appeals and Hearings Office.
This information and the contact information for the Appeals and Hearings Office is provided on the form
DCQ-707. The form is available in Spanish and large print formats, and advises the applicant or
participant of such.

DHS has set guidelines for retention of the form DCO-707 in the applicant's or participant's case record.
If the DCO-707 is a request for information only, the form may be discarded when all requested

State: Request for Amendment: 68
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

information is received by the LTSS Eligibility Caseworker. If the information requested is not received,
the form may be discarded five years from the month of origin of the request. All other DCO-707 forms
will be retained in the applicant's or participant's case record for five years from the date of the last
approval, closure or denial.

Participants also have the right to appeal if they disagree with a revision to their service plan, which
reduces or terminates services, while their eligibility remains active. Information regarding hearings and
appeals is included with the participant's service plan. The DHS Appeals and Hearings section is also
responsible for these types of appeals. Requests for appeals must be received by the DHS Appeals and
Hearings section no later than 30 days from the business day following the postmark on the envelope with
the service plan that contains a revision which the participant wishes to appeal.

ARChoices participants have the option of continuing Medicaid eligibility and services during the appeal
process. They are informed of their options when notified by the DHS county office of the pending
adverse action, if the findings of the appeal are not in the participant's favor, and the participant has
elected the continuation of benefits, the participant is liable for payment to the provider. If Medicaid has
paid the provider, DHS will consider the services that were provided during the period of ineligibility a
Medicaid overpayment and will seek reimbursement from the participant.

Participants have the right to appeal if they were not provided a choice in institutional care or waiver
services, or a choice of providers,

The service providers and the Department of Human Services county office inform the participant of their
potential payment liability if a participant has been denied eligibility for the program and if the
determination of an appeal is not in the participant's favor.

During the service plan development process, the DHS RN explains these rights to the participant, family
member or representative. Signatures on the service plan verify that the choice between waiver services
or institutional care was exercised. Also, during this process, participants choose a provider from a list
provided by the DHS RN. Choices of provider are documented on the Freedom of Choice form, and the
participant signs the list of providers showing that the choice was made.

NOTE: For reassessments, the freedom of choice form is utilized showing no changes are requested by
the participant. No signatures are required on the provider listing; however, the freedom of choice form is
signed by the participant or their representative.

State: Request for Amendment: 69
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Appendix F-3: State Grievance/Complaint System

b.

C.

Operational Responsibility. Specify the State agency that is responsible for the operation of the
grievance/complaint system:

Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health
Services (DAABHS) and Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA)

Description of System: Describe the grievance/complaint system, including: (a) the types of
grievances/complaints that participants may register; (b) the process and timelines for addressing
grievances/complaints; and, (c) the mechanisms that are used to resolve grievances/complaints.
State laws, regulations, and policies referenced in the description are available to CMS upon
request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable).

Any dissatisfaction written or verbalized regarding a HCBS program or service is to be
considered a complaint. Participants wishing to file a complaint or report any type of
dissatisfaction should contact the DAABHS Central Office or their DHS RN. When DAABHS is
contacted regarding a complaint or dissatisfaction, DAABHS explains the complaint process to
the participant, and completes the HCBS Complaint Intake Report electronically. Any DAABHS
staff receiving a complaint must complete the HCBS Complaint Intake report. DPSQA is
responsible for investigating complaints pertaining to provider quality or compliance.

The HCBS Complaint database, is used to track any dissatisfaction or complaint, including
complaints against DAABHS staff and DPSQA-certified providers (including individual
providers, provider organizations, and employees and contractors of provider organizations). The
record of complaint includes the date the complaint was filed.

The complaint database was designed to register different types of complaints. Based on the data
entered, the complaint can be tracked by type of complaint (service, provider, DAABHS, etc.)
and complaint source (participant, county office, family, etc.), and monitored for trends, action
taken to address complaint, access, quality of care, health and welfare. The complaint database
provides a means to address any type complaint filed by any source. The complaint database also
tracks resolution.

Information entered into the database includes the complaint source and contact information,
participant information, person or provider against whom the complaint is being made, the person
who received the complaint, the person to whom the complaint is assigned for investigation, the
complaint being made, and the action taken relative to investigation findings.

Complaints concerning abuse, neglect and exploitation are routed to Adult Protective Services
immediately for appropriate action. State law allows HCBS staff and APS staff to share
information concerning clients on a need to know basis, but that information may not be re-
disclosed to a third party. A.C.A. 12-12-1717(a)(9) allows disclosure of reports to “the
department” (DHS) for founded reports and A.C.A. 12-12-1718(a) and (b)}(1)(A) allow disclosure
of pending and screened out reports to “the department". All APS reports involving waiver
participants are reported on the monthly report and tracked by RN supervisory staff.

The HCBS Complaint Intake Report must be completed within five working days from when
DAABHS staff received the complaint. Complaints must be resolved within 30 days from the
date the complaint was received. 1f a complaint received by a DHS RN cannot be resolved by a
DHS RN supervisor, the information is forwarded to the DAABHS central office administrative
staff to resolve. To ensure that participants are safe during these time frames, the DHS RN may

State:

Request for Amendment: 70

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

put in place the backup plan on the participant’s service plan or report the situation to Adult
Protective Services, if needed.

DHS RNs and DHS RN supervisors work to resolve any complaints. This involves contacting all
parties involved to obtain all sides of the issue, a participant home visit and a review of the
participant's person-centered service plan, if necessary. The Nurse Manager at the DAABHS
central office may also be asked to assist. Based on the nature of the complaint, the Nurse
Manager will use their professional judgment on issues that must be resolved more quickly, such
as instances where the participant's heatth and safety are at risk. Compliance with this policy is
tracked and reported through the database. This issue continues to be tracked and reviewed by
the DHS RN Supervisors and the Medicaid Quality Assurance staff during the record review
process.

A follow-up call or correspondence is made to the reporter, if appropriate, to discuss how the

issue was resolved without violating confidentiality rules. The participant or representative is
informed of the right to appeal any decision and that filing a complaint is not a prerequisite or
substitute for a fair hearing.

If a participant is dissatisfied with the resolution of a complaint, a fair hearing request may be
made at the local DHS county office.

DHS RNs follow-up with participants after a complaint has been made at each reassessment or
monitoring contact. DHS RN supervisors may also participate in follow-up. Depending on the
type of complaint, the DHS RN may (ake action to assure continued resolution by revising the
participants service plan or assisting the participant in changing providers.

A complaint received on a DHS RN is reported to his or her supervisor, who investigates the
complaint.

Appendix G: Participant Safeguards
Appendix G-1: Response to Critical Events or Incidents
b. State Critical Event or Incident Reporting Requirements. Specify the types of critical events

or incidents (including alleged abuse, neglect and exploitation) that the State requires to be
reported for review and follow-up action by an appropriate authority, the individuals and/or
entities that are required to report such events and incidents and the timelines for reporting. State
laws, regulations, and policies that are referenced are available to CMS upon request through the
Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable).

Arkansas state law requires that suspected abuse, neglect, and exploitation of endangered and
impaired adults be reported to the Adult Maltreatment Hotline for investigation. The method of
reporting is primarily by phone to the Hotline; written reports of allegations will be entered into
the Adult Protective Services system or routed to the appropriate investigative department.

A.C.A. 12-12-1708(a) specifies mandatory reporters who are required to report suspected adult
maltreatment, including abuse, exploitation, neglect, or self-neglect of endangered or impaired
adults. Mandated reporters include all physicians, nurses, social workers, case managers, home
health workers, DHS employees, facility administrators or owners, employees of facilities, and
any employee or volunteer of a program or organization funded partially or wholly by DHS who
enters the home of, or has contact with an elderly person. ARChoices in Homecare waiver staff,
providers, and DAABHS contractors are mandatory reporters. The statute requires immediate

State: Request for Amendment: 71
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a $1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

reporting to Adult Protective Services when any mandated reporter has observed or has
reasonable cause to suspect adult maltreatment.

According to the statute, adult abuse includes intentional acts to an endangered or impaired adult
which result in physical harm or psychological injury; or credible threats to inflict pain of injury
which provoke fear or alarm; or unreasonable confinement, intimidation or punishment resulting
in physical harm, pain or mental anguish. Exploitation includes illegal or unauthorized use of the
person's funds or property; or use of the person's power of attorney or guardianship for the profit
of one's own self; or improper acts or process that deprive the person of rightful access to
benefits, resources, belongings and assets. Neglect is an act or omission by the endangered or
impaired person (self-neglect), or an act or omission by the person’s caregiver (caregiver neglect)
constituting failure to provide necessary treatment, care, food, clothing, shelter, supervision or
medical services; failure to report health problems and changes in health condition to appropriate
medical personnel; or failure to carry out a prescribed treatment plan.

Reporting requirements for providers:

In addition to statutory requirements, the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
(DPSQA), the licensing and certification agency, requires home and community-based services
(HCBS)/mon-institutional providers to report the following incident types:

(a) Abuse

(b) Neglect

(c) Exploitation or Misappropriation of Property

(d) Unnatural Death

(e) Unauthorized use of restrictive interventions

() Significant Medication Error

{g) Elopement/Missing Person

(h) Other: Includes but is not limited to abandonment, serious bodily injury,
incidents that require notification to police or fire department.

In accordance with DPSQA Policy 1001, the above events must be reported to the Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance by facsimile transmission to telephone number 501 -
682-8551 of the completed Incident & Accident Intake Form (Form DPSQA-731) no later
than 11:00 am. on the next business day following discovery by the provider. In addition to the
requirement of a facsimile report by the next business day, the provider must conduct a
thorough investigation of the alleged or suspected incident and complete an investigation
report and submit it to DPSQA on Form DPSQA-742 within five working days.

Reporting requirements for DHS employees and contractors:

DHS employees and contractors are required to report incidents in accordance with DHS Policy
1090 (Incident Reporting). Under this policy, any incident requiring a report to the DHS
Communications Director must be reported by telephone within one hour of the incident. All
other reports must be filed with the Division Director or Designee and the DHS Client Advocate
no later than the end of the second business day following the incident. Any employee not filing
reports within the specified time is subject to disciplinary action unless the employee can show
that it was not physically possible to make the report within the required time,

Telephone notifications and informational e-mails to Division Directors or Designees, the DHS
Client Advocate and other parties as appropriate for early reporting of unusual or sensitive

State:

Request for Amendment: 72

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

information are welcomed. All such reports must be followed with completion and submission of
Form DHS-1910.

If the incident alleges maltreatment by a hospital, a copy of the report will be sent to the Arkansas
Department of Health by the Division Director or Designee, who should note the notification in the
appropriate space on the Form DHS-1910, and forward the information to the DHS Client Advocate
as a follow up Incident Report.

Participant Training and Education. Describe how training and/or information is provided to
participants (and/or families or legal representatives, as appropriate) concerning protections from
abuse, neglect, and exploitation, including how participants (and/or families or legal
representatives, as appropriate) can notify appropriate authorities or entities when the participant
may have experienced abuse, neglect or exploitation.

The DHS RN provides waiver applicants and their families with an Adult Protective Services
(APS) brochure when initial contact is made. The brochure includes information on what
constitutes abuse, neglect or exploitation, as well as the signs and symptoms, the persons required
1o report abuse and how to report suspected abuse, including to the Adult Maltreatment Hotline
number. The Adult Maltreatment Hotline is accessible 24 hours a day, seven days a week. DHS
RNs review this information with participants and family members at the initial assessment and at
each annual reassessment. In addition, providers are required to post information about how to
report a complaint to APS and the Adult Maltreatment Hotline in a visible area on their premises.

Responsibility for Review of and Response to Critical Events or Incidents. Specify the entity
(or entities) that receives reports of critical events or incidents specified in item G-1-a, the
methods that are employed to evaluate such reports, and the processes and time-frames for
responding to critical events or incidents, including conducting investigations.

For incidents involving alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation regarding adult clients, Adult
Protective Services (APS) receives, investigates, evaluates, and resolves reports. Additionally, all
incidents defined in DPSQA Policy 1001 must be reported to Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance (DPSQA). These include alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation, unnatural
death, unauthorized use of restrictive interventions, significant medication error,
elopement/missing person, abandonment, serious bodily injury, and incidents requiring

APS visits clients within 24 hours for emergency cases or within three working days for non-
emergency cases. Emergency cases are instances when immediate medical attention is necessary
or when there is imminent danger to health or safety which means a situation in which death or
serious bodily harm could reasonably be expected to occur without intervention, according to
Ark. Code Ann. 12-12-1703(8). Non-emergency cases refer to situations when allegations do not
meet the definition of imminent danger to health or safety. APS fast tracks waiver participants so

As required by law, investigations are completed and an investigative determination entered
within 60 days. APS notifies the client and other relevant parties, including the offender, of the

d.
notification to the police or fire department.
Adult Protective Services (APS} Responsibilities;
they can be seen in 24 hours if possible.
determination.
State:

Request for Amendment: 73

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

APS communicates with the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services
(DAABHS) (operating agency) waiver program staff, as needed, on all appropriate and relevant
information, APS investigations include site visits and interviews with the client, offender,
reporter, doctors, family, police and other collateral witnesses that can be found. Operating
agency and waiver staff are also interviewed by APS and asked to provide any necessary
documentation for the investigation.

Reports to APS are logged into a database, and DPSQA uses this resource to monitor participants
of the waiver for critical incidents.

APS communicates with DAABHS waiver program staff, as needed, on all appropriate and
relevant information. APS investigations include site visits and interviews with the client,
offender, reporter, doctors, family, police and other collateral witnesses that can be found.
DPSQA and DAABHS staff are also interviewed by APS and asked to provide any necessary
documentation for the investigation.

Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) Responsibilities:

DPSQA receives and triages incidents to appropriate divisions for investigation. DPSQA will
investigate those incidents that relate to providers licensed and/or certified by DPSQA and
forwards incidents regarding clients to the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health
Services.

Reports to DPSQA are entered into a tracking system which DPSQA uses to determine if further
investigation is needed in the event of multiple complaints at one provider locations or facility.
DPSQA uses this resource to monitor active participants of the waiver for critical incidents.

As required by statute, investigations are completed and an investigative determination entered
within 60 days.

Unexpected client deaths must be reported immediately to the DPSQA contact using the DHS
Client Unexpected Death Report. The DPSQA contact investigates the report within two days of
receiving the notice of the occurrence and prepares a report of the investigation within 30 days of
receiving the notice of the occurrence. The investigation includes reviewing a written report of
the facts and circumstances of the unexpected death and documentation listing the client’s
condition, including diagnoses, prescriptions and service plan.

The DPSQA contact will determine the facts and circumstances of the occurrence. DPSQA's role
includes performing a thorough investigation, reviewing current policy, making corrections if
necessary and identifying patterns during the process. Final results of investigations are
electronically made available to .

All reports to the Adult Maltreatment Hotline and instances of unexpected client deaths are
investigated and addressed by DPSQA. Incidents reported to the DHS Incident Reporting
Information System (IRIS), a system which enables online submission and transmittal of incident
reports, are investigated depending on the type of incident reported.

e. Responsibility for Oversight of Critical Incidents and Events. Identify the State agency
(or agencies) responsible for overseeing the reporting of and response to critical incidents or
events that affect waiver participants, how this oversight is conducted, and how frequently.

State:

Request for Amendment: 74

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

The Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance assumes responsibility for compiling all
incident reports from providers for review and action. Incidents are reported to DPSQA staff
through submission of Form DPSQA-731.

DPSQA staff review the reports as incidents occur and identify patterns and make systematic
corrections when necessary. Current policy is reviewed at each occurrence and revisions may be
made if necessary.

The Adult Protective Services unit tracks APS incidents. APS informs DPSQA of the outcomes
of incidents reported to APS applicable to waiver participants. There is a Memorandum of
Understanding between DPSQA and APS unit detailing the relationship and activities of each
unit, as they relate to the waiver program.

Final results of APS investigations, final results of unexpected death findings, and results of
incident reports are electronically made available to DPSQA.

Appendix G-2: Safeguards Concerning Restraints and Restrictive Interventions (1 of 3)

a.

Use of Restraints. (Select one): (For waiver actions submitted before March 2014, Fesponses in
Appendix G-2-a will display information for both restraints and seclusion. For most waiver
actions submitted after March 2014, responses regarding seclusion appear in Appendix G-2-c.)
X The state does not permit or prohibits the use of restraints

Specify the State agency (or agencies) responsible for detecting the unauthorized use of restraints
and how this oversight is conducted and its frequency:

The Division of Aging, Adult and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) is responsible for
detecting unauthorized use of restraints. This oversight is conducted through incident reports
received; monitoring of the participant by the DHS RN, if needed; and monitoring by the
Targeted Case Manager.

DHS RNs reassess participants annually.

Targeted Case Managers make regular contact with the waiver participant, at least monthly, and a
face-to-face monitoring contact with the waiver participant must be completed once every three
months. The Targeted Case Manager is required to immediately contact the DHS RN regarding
any concerns for the participant’s health and welfare.

Appendix G-2: Safeguards Concerning Restraints and Restrictive Interventions (2 of 3)

X The state does not permit or prohibits the use of restrictive interventions
Specify the State agency (or agencies) responsible for detecting the unauthorized use of
restrictive interventions and how this oversight is conducted and its frequency:

The Division of Aging. Adult and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) is responsible for
detecting unauthorized use of restrictive interventions. This oversight is conducted through
incident reports received; monitoring of the participant by the DHS RN, if needed; and

b. Use of Restrictive Interventions. (Select one):
monitoring by the Targeted Case Manager.
I3HS RNs reassess participants annually.
State:

Request for Amendment: 75

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1§F15(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Targeted Case Managers make regular contact with the waiver participant, at least monthly, and a
face-to-face monitoring contact with the waiver participant must be completed once every three
months. The Targeted Case Manager is required to immediately contact the DHS RN regarding
any concerns for the participant’s health and welfare.

Appendix G-2: Safeguards Concerning Restraints and Restrictive Interventions (3 of 3)

a.

Use of Seclusion. (Selecr onej: (This section will be blank for waivers submirted before Appendix
G-2-¢ was added 1o WMS in March 2014. and responses for seclusion will display in Appendix
G-2-a combined with information on resiraints.)

X The state does not permit or prohibits the use of seclusion

Specify the State agency (or agencies) responsible for detecting the unauthorized use of seclusion
and how this oversight is conducted and its frequency:

The Division of Aging, Adult and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) is responsible for
detecting unauthorized use of seclusion. This oversight is conducted through incident reports
received; monitoring of the participant by the DHS RN, if needed; and monitoring by the
Targeted Case Manager,

DHS RNs reassess participants annually.

Targeted Case Managers make regular contact with the waiver participant, at least monthly, and a
face-to-face monitoring contact with the waiver participant must be completed once every three
months. The Targeted Case Manager is required to immediately contact the DHS RN regarding
any concerns for the participant’s health and welfare.

Appendix G-3: Medication Management and Oversight (1 of 2)

This Appendix must be completed when waiver services are furnished to participants who are served in
licensed or unlicensed living arrangements where a provider has round-the-clock responsibility for the
health and welfare of residents. The Appendix does not need 10 be completed when waiver participants
are served exclusively in their own personal residences or in the home of a family member.

i. Responsibility. Specify the entity (or entities) that have ongoing responsibility for monitoring
participant medication regimens. the methods for conducting monitoring, and the frequency

The allowed provider types for Respite Care include licensed facilities that may provide
respite care in a licensed facility on a round-the-clock basis for a period of time.

Medication oversight or administration must be conducted in accordance with state law
and the licensure and scope of praciice requirements applicable to the particular type of

ii. Methods of State Oversight and Follow-Up. Describe: (a) the method(s) that the State uses
to ensure that participant medications are managed appropriately, including: (2) the
identification of potentially harmful practices (e.g.. the concurrent use of contraindicated
medications): (b) the method(s) for following up on potentially harmful practices; and, (c) the
State agency (or agencies) that is responsible for follow-up and oversight.

The allowed provider types for Respite Care include licensed facilities that may provide
respite care in a licensed facility on a round-the-clock basis for a period of time.
Medication oversight or administration must be conducted in accordance with state law
and the licensure and scope of practice requirements applicable to the particular type of

b. Medication Management and Follow-Up.
of monitoring.
facility and staff.
facility and staff.
State:

Request for Amendment: 76

Effective Date




-

Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
_ARChoices in Homecare

Appendix G: Participant Safeguards
Quality Improvement: Health and Welfare
a. Methods for Discovery: Health and Welfare

ii.

| State:

Sub-Assurances

a. Sub-Assurance: The state demonstrates on an ongoing basis that it identifies,
addresses and seeks to prevent instances of abuse, negleci, exploitation and
unexplained death. (Performance measures in this sub-assurance include all Appendix
G performance measures for waiver actions submitted before June 1, 2014.)
Performance Measures:
Number and percent of critical incidents reviews/investigations that were initiated
and completed according to program policy and state law. Numerator: Number of
critical incident investigations initiated/completed according to policy/law;
Denominator: Number of critical incidents reviewed.
Number and percent of critical incidents requiring review/investigation where the
state adhered to the follow-up methods as specified. Numerator: Number of
critical incident reviews/investigations that had appropriate follow-up;
Denominator: Number of critical incidents reviewed.
Number and percent of participant records reviewed where the participant and/or
family or legal guardian received information about how to report abuse, neglect,
exploitation and other critical incidents as specified in the waiver application.
Numerator: Number of participants receiving information on abuse, neglect,
exploitation and critical incidents; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Number and percent of critical incidents that were reported within required time
frames. Numerator: Number of eritical incidents reported within required time
frames; Denominator: Number of critical incidents reviewed.
Case Record Review
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Representative Sample
Confidence Interval =
DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of error.

d.Sub-Assurance: The State establishes overall health care standards and monitors
those standards based on the responsibility of the service provider as stated in the
approved waiver,
Performanee Measures
Number and percend of changes in Level of Care Tier Levels and ISB Levels.
Numerator - number of changes in Level of Care Tier Levels and ISB Levels.
Denominator - Number of records reviewed.
Case Record Review
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Representative Sample
Confidence Interval =
DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of error.

If applicable, in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employed by the State to discover/identify problems/issues within the waiver
program, including frequency and parties responsible.

i Request for Amendment: 77

| Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Hoinecare

Arkansas addresses this assurance with a three-step process that involves record review,
ongoing communication with Adult Protective Services (APS), and Division of Medical
Services (DMS) audits of waiver participants' records. Monthly record reviews are
performed by DHS RN supervisors to assure that DHS RNs report incidences of abuse or
neglect, and that safety and protection are addressed at each assessment and reassessment
and reported in the Record Review Summary Report. APS reports specific cases of abuse
and neglect affecting waiver participants to DAABHS waiver staff. Findings are reported
to DMS.

DAABHS staff are required to review the APS information with participants and other
interested parties at each assessment and reassessment. This must include providing APS
brochures, as well as information on how to identify possible abuse and neglect and a
toll-free number for reporting abuse. Compliance with this requirement is documented in
the participant record and reviewed by RN supervisors during each record review.
Compliance is a part of the record review and annual reporting process.

Policy requires compliance and mandates the DHS RN to report alleged abuse to APS
and/or the DPSQA Office of Long Term Care (OLTC). All reports of alleged abuse,
follow-ups and actions taken to investigate the alleged abuse, along with all reports to
APS or OLTC must be documented in the nurse narrative. Record reviews include
verification of this requirement and are included on the annual report.

The process for reporting abuse as established in Arkansas Code Annotated 12-12-1701
et seq (the Adult and Long-Term Care Facility Resident Maltreatment Act) is as follows:
The Department of Human Services (DHS) maintains a single statewide telephone
number that all persons may use to report suspected adult maltreatment and long-term
care facility resident mattreatment. Upon registration of a report, the Adult Maltreatment
Hotline refers the matter immediately to the appropriate investigating agency. Under this
statute, a resident of an assisted living facility is identified as a long-term care facility
resident, and for the purposes of the statute is presumed to be an impaired person. A
report for a long-term care facility resident is to be made immediately to the local law
enforcement agency for the jurisdiction in which the long-term care facility is located,
and to OLTC under the regulations of that office. DHS has jurisdiction to investigate all
cases of suspected maltreatment of an endangered person or an impaired person. The
APS unit of DHS shall investigate all cases of suspected adult maltreatment if the act or
omission occurs in a place other than a long-term care facility; and all cases of suspected
adult maltreatment if a family member of the adult person is named as the suspected
offender, regardless of whether or not the adult is a long-term care facility resident. The
OLTC unit of DHS shall investigate all cases of suspected maltreatment of a long-term
care facility resident.

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

1,

Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL metheds for problem
correction. In addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to
document these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (operating agency) and the
Division of Medical Services (Medicaid agency) participate in team meetings to discuss

State:

Request for Amendment: 78

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

and address individual problems related to participant health and welfare, as well as
problem correction and remediation. DAABHS and DMS have an Interagency
Agreement that includes measures related to participant health and welfare for the
waiver.

DAABHS’s remediation efforts in cases where participants or their family members or
legal guardians have not received information about how to report abuse, neglect,
exploitation or critical incidents include providing the appropriate information te the
participant and family member/legal guardian upon discovery that this information was
not provided, providing additional training for DHS RNs and considering this
remediation as part of RNs® performance evaluations.

In cases where critical incidents were not reported within required time frames,
DAABHS provides remediation, including reporting the critical incident immediately
upon discovery, and providing additional training and counseling to staff,

If critical incident reviews and investigations are not initiated and completed according to
program policy and state law, DAABHS’s remediation includes initiating and completing
the investigation immediately upon discovery, and providing additional training and
counseling to staff. When appropriate follow-up to eritical incidents is not conducted
according to methods discussed in the waiver application, DAABHS provides immediate
follow-up to the incident and staff training as remediation.

DAABHS provides remediation in cases of investigation and review of unexplained,
suspicious and untimely deaths that did not result in identification of preventable and
unpreventable causes to include staff and provider training, implementing additional
services and imposing provider sanctions. The Unexpected Death Report ensures that
remediation of preventable deaths is captured and that remediation data is collected
appropriately.

The DAABHS complaint database collects complaints, the outcomes and the resolution
for substantiated complaints. Remediation for complaints that were not addressed during
the required time frame includes DAABHS addressing the complaint immediately upon
discovery, and providing additional staff training and counseling.

All substantiated incidents are investigated by the DAABHS Deputy Director or his/her
designee. DAABHS plans to continue this process and reviewing remediation plans
remains in development.

Appendix H: Quality Improvement Strategy (2 of 2)
H-1: Systems Improvement
a. System Improvements
i Describe the process(es) for trending, prioritizing, and implementing system improvements
(i.e., design changes) prompted as a result of an analysis of discovery and remediation
information.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating
agency) analyzes all discovery and remediation results to determine if a system improvement
is necessary. If a possible system improvement is identified, the Division of Medical Services
{DMS) (Medicaid agency) will meet with the operating agencies (DAABHS and the Division
of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA)) to discuss what system or program
changes are necessary, if any, based on the nature of the problem (health and safety issue,

State:

Request for Amendment: 79

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

etc.), complexity of the solution (does it require an amendment to the waiver application), and
the financial impact. If it is determined that a system change is needed, a computer service
request will be submitted to the Medicaid Management Information and Performance Unit
(MMIP) within DMS and a priority status is assigned. MMIP prioritizes system changes to
MMIS and coordinates implementation with the state fiscal agent. An action plan is
developed and information is shared with the appropriate stakeholders for comment.
Implementation of the plan is the final step. The MMIP Unit and DMS monitor the system
changes.

As a result of the discovery processes:

The interagency agreements were revised to provide a more visible product to clarify roles
and responsibilities between DMS, DAABHS. and DPSQA.

The agreement between the three divisions has been modified and is updated at least
annually.

Medicaid related issues are documented by DAABHS waiver staff and reviewed by DMS,
and recorded on a monthly report to identify, capture and resolve billing and claims
submission problems. Error reports are worked and billing issues are resolved by DAABIHS
waiver staff and DMS. DMS reviews reports for proper resolution. These activities occur on a
daily basis, and reviews occur monthly by DMS.

b. System Design Changes

1.

it

Describe the process for monitoring and analyzing the effectiveness of system design
changes. Include a description of the various roles and responsibilities involved in the
processes for monitoring & assessing system design changes. If applicable, include the State's
targeted standards for systems improvement.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) and the Division
of Medical Services (DMS) both employ staff to assist in system design. When an issue arises
that requires development of a Computer Service Request (CSR), meetings with the DHS
information technology consultants, DMS Program Development and Quality Assurance
staff, DMS Program Integrity staff, and DAABHS waiver staff are held to address needs and
resolve issues, including developing new elements and testing system changes. Meetings are
scheduled on an as-needed basis with the assigned DHS information technology consulting
firm, the Medicaid program’s fiscal agent, the DAABHS Deputy Director, DMS staff, and
others as may be appropriate depending on the issue for discussion.

Describe the process to periodically evaluate, as appropriate, the Quality Improvement
Strategy.

DAABHS and DMS monitor the Quality Improvement Strategy on an ongoing basis and
review the Quality Improvement Strategy annually. A review consists of analyzing reports
and progress toward stated initiatives, resolution of individual and systematic issues found
through discovery and notating desired outcomes. When change in the strategy is indicated, a
collaborative effort between DMS and DAABHS is set in motion to complete a revision to
the Quality Improvement Strategy which may include submission of a waiver amendment.
DMS utilizes the Quality Improvement Strategy during all levels of QA reviews.

State:

Request for Amendment: 80

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to EQ 15(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Appendix I: Financial Accountability
I-1: Financial Integrity and Accountability

Financial Integrity. Describe the methods that are employed to ensure the integrity of payments
that have been made for waiver services, including: (a) requirements concerning the independent
audit of provider agencies; (b) the financial audit program that the state conducts to ensure the
integrity of provider billings for Medicaid payment of waiver services, including the methods,
scope and frequency of audits; and, (c) the agency (or agencies) responsible for conducting the
financial audit program. State laws, regulations, and policies referenced in the description are
available to CMS upon request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if
applicable).

MMIS claims data are audited periodically for program policy alignment, and claims processing
worksheets are audited, processed and returned on a daily basis. Discovery and monitering also
includes an ongoing review of annual CMS-3728 reports and quarterly CMS-64 reports. Division
of Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid agency) reviews are validation reviews of 20% of the
records reviewed by the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS)
(operating agency) and include a review of the services billed and paid when compared with the
services listed on a participant's person-centered service plan.

The Arkansas Office of Medicaid Inspector General (OMIG) conducts an annual random review
of HCBS waiver programs. If the review finds errors in billing, OMIG recoups the money from
the waiver provider. If fraud is suspected, the Office of Medicaid Inspector General refers the
waiver provider to the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit and Arkansas Attorney General's Office for
appropriate action.

Appendix 1: Financial Accountability
Quality Improvement: Financial Accountability

Methods for Discovery: Financial Accountability Assurance:
i.  Sub-Assurances
a. Sub-Assurance: The State provides evidence that claims are coded and paid for in

accordance with the reimbursemem methodology specified in the approved waiver and
only for services rendered. (Performance measures in this sub-assurance include all
Appendix G performance measures for waiver actions submitted before June 1, 2014.)
Performance Measures:
Number and percent of reviewed claims with services specified in the participant's
service plan. Numerator: Number of claims with services specified in service plan;
Denominator: Number of claims
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Other
Specity =
DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS during the
Chart Record Review process.

b.Sub-Assurance: The State provides evidence that rates remain consistent with the
approved rate methodology throughout the five year waiver cvcle.
Performance Measures;
Number and percent of waiver claims that were paid using the correct rate as
specified in the waiver application. Numerator: Number of claims paid at correct
rate; Denominator: Number of claims
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

State:

Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 81




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

X Other

Specify =

DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS during the
Chart Record Review process.

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

i.  Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
cotrection. In addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to document
these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult and Behavioral Health Services (operating agency) and the
Division of Medical Services (Medicaid agency) participate in team meetings as needed to
discuss and address individual problems related to financial accountability, as well as
problem correction and remediation. DAABHS and DMS have an Interagency Agreement
that includes measures related to financial accountability for the waiver.

The performance measure for number and percent of waiver claims paid using the correct rate
specitied in the waiver application will always result in 100% compliance because the rates
for services are already set in MMIS; therefore, claims will not be paid at any other rate.

DAABHS’ remediation for failed MMIS checks not corrected to assure appropriate payment
includes correcting the issue upon discovery, making system changes and training staff.

DAABHS remediation for claims for services not specified in the participant’s service plan
includes adding services to the participant's service plan if necessary, recouping payment to
the provider, imposing provider sanctions, training providers and conducting a participant
monitoring visit.

The tool used for record review captures and tracks remediation in these areas.

I-2: Rates, Billing and Claims (1 of 3)

a,

Rate Determination Methods. In two pages or less. describe the methods that are employed to
establish provider payment rates for waiver services and the entity ot entities that are responsible for
rate determination. Indicate any opportunity for public comment in the process. If different methods
are employed for various tvpes of services, the description may group services for which the same
method is employed. State laws, regulations, and policies referenced in the description are available
upon request to CMS through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable).

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency) is
responsible for the rate determination with oversight conducted by the Division of Medical Services
(DMS) (Medicaid agency) Financial Section prior to implementation. There is an established
procedure followed by both divisions that ensures DMS reviews and approves all reimbursement rates
and methodologies. As ARChoices is not a participant-directed program, payment rates are not
routinely sent separately to waiver participants. Rates are published for comment and are made
available to all providers. Additionally, providers are notified any time a rate changes via a Provider
Information Memorandum from DAABHS and/or an Official Notice from DMS. The public is
afforded an opportunity to comment on the rate determination process through the DMS website, in

State: Request for Amendment: 82

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

the Proposed Rules for Public Comment section. Upon certification, new providers are referred to the
Medicaid Provider Manual, which lists rate information.

Various methodologies are used for rate determination depending on the waiver service. The
following are the methods used for rate setting for the ARChoices waiver services:

Attendant Care - Attendant Care service is a fee-for-service rate established and approved by DMS
and 1s equivalent to a rate modeled by actuaries under contract with DMS. The assumptions used o
develop the model rate are based on feedback from DAABHS and DPSQA and on responses to
provider surveys developed by the contracted actuaries. The rate is consistent with efficiency,
economy, and quality of care and is sufficient to enlist a sufficient number of providers.

Adult Day Health — Adult Day Health is a fee-for-service rate established and approved by DMS and
is equivalent to a rate modeled by actuaries under contract with DMS. The assumptions used to
develop the model rate are based on feedback from DAABHS and DPSQA and on responses to
provider surveys developed by the contracted actuaries. The rate 18 consistent with efficiency,
economy, and quality of care and is sufficient to enlist a sufficient number of providers.

Respite - Respite service is a fee-for-service rate established and approved by the Division of Medical
Services (Medicaid agency) and 1s equivalent to a rate modeled by actuaries under contract with
DMS, The assumptions used to develop the model rate are based on feedback from DAABHS and
DPSQA and on responses to provider surveys developed by the contracted actuaries. The rate is
consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care and is sufficient to enlist a sufficient number
of providers.

Adult Day Services —Adult Day Services is a fee-for-service rate established and approved by DMS
and is equivalent to a rate modeled by actuaries under contract with DMS, The assumptions used 10
develop the model rate are based on feedback from DAABHS and DPSQA and on responses to
provider surveys developed by the contracted actuaries. The rate 1s consistent with efficiency,
economy, and quality of care and is sufficient to enlist a sufficient number of providers.

Home-Delivered Meals - The home delivered meal rate was established using the cost for the meal,
plus the cost for delivery. The rate is sufficient to secure a sufficient number of providers.

Personal Emergency Response System (PERS) - The rate for the PERS service was established using
usual and customary rates and is sufticient to secure a sufficient number of providers.

Prevocational Services -- Prevocational services is a fee-for-service rate established and approved by
DMS and 1s equivalent to the rate established for state plan supportive employment services that are
services similar to prevocational services. The rate is consistent with efficiency, economy, and
quatity of care and is sufficient to enlist a sufficient number of providers.

Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment - A maximum amount of $7,500 per
lifetime of each active participant was approved by the Medicaid agency to cover this service. The
amount may be utilized all at once or for separate services. The amount was estabiished utilizing
usual and customary charges for adaptive equipment and environmental accessibility adaptations. The
rate is consistent with efficiency, economy and quality of care, and is sufficient to enlist plenty of
providers.

I-2: Financial Integrity and Accountability

State: ] Request for Amendment: 83
Effective Date




Request tfor Amendment 1o a §1913(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

d. Billing Validation Process. Describe the process for validating provider billings to produce the
claim for federal financial participation, including the mechanism(s) to assure that all claims for
payment are made only: (a) when the individual was eligible for Medicaid waiver payment on
the date of service; (b) when the service was included in the participant's approved service plan:
and, (¢) the services were provided:

The MMIS verifies participant waiver eligibility and current provider Medicaid enrollment for the
date of service prior to paying a waiver claim. Division of Aging. Adult, and Behavioral Health
Services (DAABHS) (operating agency) staff verifies services were provided according to the
person-centered service plan through an internal monthly monitoring system. When claims are
paid incorrectly, adjustments are made, recoupments are initiated, or case is referred to the Office
of Medicaid Inspector General.

All waiver claims are processed through the MMIS, using all applicable edits and audits, to
assure claims are processed appropriately, timely, and compared to the Medicaid maximum
allowable.

I-5: Exclusion of Medicaid Payment for Room and Board

b. Method for Excluding the Cost of Room and Board Furnished in Residential Settings. The
following describes the methodology that the State uses to exclude Medicaid payment for room and
board in residential settings:

Facility-Based Respite care is available in licensed facilities, as indicated in Appendix C,
Reimbursement does not include the cost for room and board. Rates are a fee for service, 1 unit
equals 15 minutes of service as described in the service definition.

Appendix J: Cost Neutrality Demonstration

J-1: Composite Overview and Demonstration of Cost-Neutrality Formula

Composite Overview, Complete the fields in Cols. 3, 5 and 6 in the following table for each waiver vear.
The fields in Cols. 4, 7 and 8 are auto-calculated based on entries in Cols 3, 5, and 6. The fields in Col. 2
are auto-calculated using the Factor DD data from the J-2-d Estimale of Factor D tables. Col. 2 fields will
be populated ONLY when the Estimate of Factor D tables in J-2-d have been completed.

Level(s) of Care: Nursing Facility

Col. 1 Col. 2 J Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8
Difference
. Total: Factor Total:
Year Factor D Factor D D+D Factor G el G+G' {Col 7 less
Columnd)
1 8504.21 9666.00 | 18i70.21 47580.00 | 2520.00 | S0100.00 | 3192979
2 7726.73 9934.00 17660.73 48898.00 | 2590.00 | 51488.00 | 33827.27
3 8248.90 10209.00 18437 90 50252.00 | 2662.00 | 52914.00 34456.10
4 4704.78 10492.00 15196.78 51644.00 | 2735.00 | 54379.00 39182.22
5 5503.42 10782.00 16285.42 53075.00 | 2811.00 | 55886.00 | 39600.58
State: Request for Amendment: 84

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (1 of 9)

a. Number Of Unduplicated Participants Served. Enter the total number of unduplicated participants
from Item B-3-a who will be served each year that the waiver is in operation. When the waiver serves
individuals under more than one level of care, specify the number of unduplicated participants for each
level of care:

Table: J-2-a: Unduplicated Participants
Total Distribution of Unduplicated Participants by Level of Care
Unduplicated (if applicable)}
Waiver Year N““‘"_’E" of Level of Care:
Participants - =
(from Item Nursing Facility
B-3-a) Year 1
Year 1 11350
Year 2 11350
Year 3 11350
Year 4 11350
Year 5 11350

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (3 of 9)
c. Derivation of Estimates for Each Factor. Provide a narrative description for the derivation
of the estimates of the following factors.

i. Factor D Derivation. The estimates of Factor D for each waiver year are located in Item J-2-d.
The basis for these estimates is as follows:

For Waiver Years 1 through 3, historic ulilization and cost data from SFYs 2011, 2012 and 2013
were used to derive utilization rates and cost for the eldetly in home-based settings (ElderChoices
waiver - EC), and adults with physical disabilities in home-based services (Aliernatives for
Adults with Physical Disabilities waiver - AAPD). The utilization rates for the existing EC and
AAPD wete used to estimate the future utilization of these services for individuals, assuming that
the elderly will have similar utilization rates to those found among adults with physical
disabilities and vice versa.

For Waiver Years 4 and 3, the average costs/unit for Adull Day Health, Respite In-Home, Adult
Day Services, Personal Emergency Response System (PERS) Unit Monitoring, and Attendant
Care Services were modified to reflect the new payment rates to be eftective January 1, 2019. The
number of users for Adult Day Health was modified to reflect expected use based on experience
to date, and the number of users for Attendant Care was modified to reflect changes expecled due
1o the expected fransition of service hours to state plan Personal Care services and moditications
made to the Attendant Care service definitions. The auinber of users for the new service of
Prevocational Services was projected as 1% of the unduplicated cap. and the average units/user
was projected as the maximum number of units permitted for this service under the limits on
amount, Irequency, and duration identified in Appendix C-1/C-3 for this service. The number of
users and average units per user for all components of Adult Family Home were changed to 0 to
reflect the elimination ol that service effective with Waiver Year 4.

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (4 of 9)

State;

Request for Amendment: 85

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Hotecare

Component management for waiver services. If the service(s) below includes two or more discrele
services that are reimbursed separately, or is a bundled service, each component of the service must be
listed. Select “maunage components™ 1o add these components.

Respite

‘Waiver Services

Adult Day Health

Adult Day Services

AdultEamily Home-[delete from table]

Prevocational Services [Add to table]

Attendant Care Services

Home-Delivered Meals

Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive
Equipment

Personal Emergency Response System (PERS)

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (5 of 9)

d. Estimate of Factor D.
ii. Conecurrent §1915(b)/§1915(c) Waivers, or other authorities utilizing capitated arrangements
(i.e., 1915(a), 1932(a), Section 1937). Complete the foilowing table for each waiver year. Enter data into
the Unit, # Users, Avg. Units Per User. and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component
items. If applicable. check the capitation box next to that service. Select Save and Calculate to
automatically caleulate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs fields. All fields in this table
must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fieids in the J-1 Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year:
Year 1

Effective Date

. - _— Avg, Ave.
Waiver Service/ (,a.pl- Unit # Units Per Cost/ Component Total Cost
Component tation Users eir Unit Cost
Adult Day Health 799606.08
Total: S
Adult Day Hialth - 63 | 406800 | 312 | 7evs0s0s
Minutes
Respite Total: 644177360
Respite In-Home 15 1147 | 122800 | 450 | c338322.00
Minutes |
Respite Short-Term 15 | R
Facility-Based Minutes 75 | 779.00 1.68 98154.00
State: Request for Amendment: 86



‘Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Respite Long-Term 15
Facility-Based Minutes 10 | 946.00 0.56 5297.60
Adult Day Services
Total: 2176785.00
Adult Day Services 15. 234 | 3721.00 2.50 | 2176785.00
| Minutes
Adult Family Home
Total; { 12000.40
Adult Family H -
e Vi s Day 1 76.00 | 56.25 427500
Adult Family H -
Levele o Day 1| 7600 4822| 36647
Adult Family H -
L;el g Yo Day 1 76.00 53.43 4060.68
Attendant Care
Services Total: TTO57590.50
Attendant Care 15
Services Minutes 6577 | 2291.00 4.50 | 67805581.50
Self-directed Attendant 15
Care Transitioning- [st . 1050 | 3806.00 243 | 9m1009,00
Year Minutes
e g IMonth | 1050 | 600 7000 | 44100000
Environmental
Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive 71586400

Eyuipment Total:

Environmental
Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive
Equipment

Package 172 1.00 | 4162.00 | 71586400

Home-Delivered
Meals Total: 6927038.76

pome-Delivered Meal 5422 | 214.00 597 | 6927038.76

Personal Emergency
Response System 1492092.96
{PERS) Total:

PERS Installation e 938 100| 2990 | 2804620
Installment

PERS Unit Monitoring Day 5324 | 257.00 1.07 | 146404676

Prevacational
Services Total: 0.00

Prevacational - Skills 15
Development Minutes 0 ¢.00 0.01 0.00

Prevocational - Career 15
Exploration Minutes 0 0.00 0.01 0.00

GRAND
TOTAL: 96522751.30
Total: Services
included in
capitation:
Total: Services
not included in
capitation: 96522751.30
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants: 11350
IFactor D
{Divide total by
number of
participants): 8504.21

_State: -
Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 87

L1




Reque;t for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Services
included in
capitation: 0
Services not
included in

capitation: 8504.21
Average Length
of Stay on the

Waiver: 276

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (6 of 9)

d. Estimate of Factor D.

ii. Concurrent §1915(b)/§1915(c) Waivers, or other authorities utilizing capitated arrangements
(i.e., 1915(a), 1932(a). Section 1937). Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into
the Unit, # Users, Avg. Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component
items. [f applicable, check the capitation box next to that service. Select Save and Calculate to
automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs fields. All fields in this table
must be completed ia order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1 Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year:

Year 2
; : : Avg. Avg.
Waiver Service/ Capi-tation Unit i Units Per Cosif Cotaphirent Total Cost
Component Users User Unit Cost
Adult Day Health
Total: 79960608
Adult Day Health 15 63 | 4068.00 |  3.12 | 7ovsv6.08
Minutes
Respite Total: 6574397.60
Respite In-Home 15 1171 | 122800 | 450 | 647094600
Minutes
Respite Short-Term 15 -
Facility-Based Minutes 75 779.00 1.68 98154.00
Respite Long-Term 15
Pt Ei Minutes 10| 94600 | 056| s5297.60
Adult Day Services
Total: | 2176785,00
Adult Day Services B o | m4|37m2100| 250 | 2w67s0o
A‘dult Family Home 12000,40
Total:
Adult Family Home -
ek Day | 1| 7600 | se2s | ase
Adult Family Home -
Level C Day 1 76.00 48.22 664,72
Adult Family Home - 5w
Level B Day 1 76.00 53.43 460,68
Attendant Care
Services Total: 68857150.50
Attendant Care 15 .
: . 6679 | 2291.00 4.50 | 68857150.50
Services Minutes
Self-directed Attendant 15
Care Transitioning-1st . 0 0.00 0.01 000
Year Minutes
CSM Transition Costs-
| Lst Year 1 Month 0 0.00 0.01 0.00
Environmental
Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive 753322.00
Equipment Total: I S
State: i Request for Amendment: 88
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Envirogm;ntal
e Package 181 | 1.00 | 4162.00 | 753322.00
Eiuipment I
Home-Delivered |
Meals Total: . 7033077.90
- kil Meal 5505 | 214.00 | 597 | 7337750
Personal Emergency
Response System 1492092.96
_IPERS) Total: |
- . One
S Instaliation 938 1.00 29.90 28046,20
Installment
PERS Unit Monitoring Day 5324 | 257.00 1.07 | 1464046.76
Prevocational
Services Total: 0.00
Prevocational - Skills 15
Development Minutes 0 0.00 0.01 0.00
Prevocational - Career 15
Exploration Minutes 0 0.00 0.01 0,00
GRAND
TOTAL: 576984324 87698432.44
Total: Services
included in
capitation:

Total: Services
not included in  87698432.4
capitation: 87698432.44
Total Estimated
Unduplicated 11350
Participants: 11350
Factor D
(Divide total by 7726.73
number of
participants): 7726.73
Services
included in
capitation: 0
Services not
included in 7726.73

capitation: 7726.73
Average Length
of Stay on the

Waiver: 276

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (7 of 9)

d. Estimate of Factor D.

ii. Concurrent §1915(b)/§1915(c) Waivers, or other authorities utilizing capitated arrangements
(i.e., 1915(a), 1932(a), Section 1937). Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into
the Unit, # Users, Avg, Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component
items. [f applicable, check the capitation box next to that service. Select Save and Calculate to
automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs fields. All fields in this table
must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1 Composite Overview table,

Waiver Year:
Year 3

State: Request for Amendment: 89
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver

ARChoices in Homecare

. . . Avg, Avg,
WalveeStrrice! ||| 'Cume Unit H | UnitsPer | Costy | Componment Total Cost
Component tation Users User Unit Cost
'.n\_dult bPay Health FEES
Total;
Adult Day Health l 5. 68 | 4068.00 3.12 | 86306688
Minutes
Respite Total: 670702160
Respite in-Home 1 5 1195 | 1228.00 4,50 6603570.00
Minutes
Respite Short-Tern 15
Facilitv-Based Minutes 75 | 779.00 1.68 98154,00
Respite Long-Term 15
Facility-Based Minutes 10 | 946.00 0.56 5297.60
Adult Day Services 232326750
Total:
Adult Day Servioes 15 239 | 372100 | 250 | 2z
Minutes
Adult Family Home T
Total:
Adult Family Home -
Level A Day 2 76.00 56.25 8550,00
Adult Family Home -
Level C Day 2 76.00 48.22 T7329.44
Adult Family Home -
Level B Day 2 76.00 533.43 B8121.36
Attendant Care
Services Toial: 74331495.00
Attendant Care 15
‘ . 7210 | 2291.00 4,50 | 74331495.00
Services Minutes
Self-directed Attendant 15
Care Transitioning-1st . 0 0.00 0.01 0.00
Year Minutes
CSM Transitiog Costs- 15
= . R ) 0,00
Lst Year Minutes 0 0.00 0.01
Enviroumental
Accessibility
Adaptatioens/ Adapfive 844886.00
Equipment Total:
Environienial
Accessibility
Adaptationz: Adaptive Package 203 1.00 | 4162.00 8448386.00
Equipent
ome-Delivered
Meals Total: - 7139117.04
N Meal 5588 | 214.00 | 597 | 713911704
Personal Ewevgency
Response System 1492092.96
|PERS) Total:
PERS Instailation fl)lrslfal]men[ 938 1.00 20 .90 28046.20
PERS Unit Monitoring Day 5324 | 257.00 1.07 | 1464046.76
Prevocational
Services Total: 0.00
Prevocational - Skills 15
Development Minutes 0 0.00 0.0t 0.00
Prevocational - Career 15
Exploration Minutes 0 0.00 0.01 0.00
GRAND
TOTAL: 93624977.78
State: Request for Amendment: 90

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Total: Services
included in
capitation:
Total: Services
not included in
capitation: 93624977.78
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants: 11350
Factor D
(Divide total by
number of
participants): 8248.90
Services
included in
capitation: 0
Services not
included in

capitation: 8248.90
Average Length
of Stay on the

Waiver: 276

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (8 of 9)

d. Estimate of Factor D.

ii. Concurrent §1915(b)/§1915(c) Waivers, or other authorities utilizing capitated arrangements
(i.e., 1915(a), 1932(a), Section 1937). Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into
the Unit, # Users, Avg. Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component
items. If applicable, check the capitation box next to that service. Select Save and Calculate to
automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs fields. All fields in this table
must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1 Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year: Year 4

Waiver Service/ Component Capi-tation Unit # Users AP\;g‘: :‘II:‘::S Av%.]n(if:bst/ Conép:;?ent Total Cost
Adult Day Health Total: 983561.04
Adult Day Health 15 Minutes 77 | 4068.00 3.14 983561.04
Respite Fotal: 7223886.80
Respite In-Home 15 Minutes 1280 1228 4.53 | 712043520
e 15 Minutes 75 779 1.68 | 9815400
Respite Long: Term Facility- 15 Minutes 10 946 0.56 | 529760
Adult Day Services Total: B I 2343671.85
Adult Day Services 15 Minutes 255 3721 2.47 | 234367185
Adutt Family Home Total: 0.00
Adult Family Home - Level A Day 0 0.00 56.25 0.60
Adult Family Home - Level C Day 0| 0.00 438.22 0.00
Adult Family Home - Level B Day 0 .00 53.43 000
Prevocational Services Total: 283084,80
Ef:;f,??ﬁ:ﬂ - suls 15 Minutes 114 268 6.40 195533.00
State: Request for Amendment: 91
Effective Date




Request for Amendment 10 a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
ARChoices in Homecare

Prevocationat - Career
Exgloration

15 Minutes 114 120 6.40

87552.00

Attendant Care Services Total:

32724720.00

Attendant Care Services

15 Minutes 4200 1720 453

32724720.00

Self-directed Attendant Care
Transitioning-1st Year

15 Minutes 0 0 0.01

0.00

CSM Transition Costs-1st Year

1 Month ] 0 0.01

! 0.00

Environmental Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive
Eqguipment Total:

915640.00

Environmental Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive
Eijuipment

Package 220 1 4162

Home-Delivered Meals Total:

915640.00

7429127.20

Home-Delivered Meals

Meal 5815 214 5.97

7429127.20

Personal Emergency Response
Swvstem (PERS] Total:

1495348.24

PERS Installation

One
Installment 938 1 29.9

28046.20

PERS Unit Monitoring

Month 5324 8.45 32.62

1467502.04

GRAND TOTAL:
Total: Services included
in capitation:

Total: Services not
included in capitation:
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants:

Factor D (Divide total
by number of
participants):

Services included in
capitation:

Services not included in
capitation:

Average Length of
Stay on the Waiver:

53399240.43

53399240.43

11350

4704.78

0

4704.78

276

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (9 of 9)
d. Estimate of Factor D,

ii. Concurrent §1915(b)/§1915(c) Waivers, or other authorities utilizing capitated arrangements
(i.e., 1915(a), 1932(a), Section 1937). Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into
the Unit, # Users, Avg. Units Per User. and Avg, Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component

items. It applicable, check the capitation box next to that service. Select Save and Calculate to

automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs fields. All fields in this table

must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1 Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year: Year 5

Effective Date

. . Capi- . Avg. Uniis Avg. Cost/ Component
Waiver Service/ Component tation Unit # Users Por User Unit Cost Total Cost
Adult Day Health Total: 956334.50
Adult Day Health 15 Minutes 78 | 4068.00 3.14 996334.56
Respite Total: 3030498.60
State: Request for Amendment: 92




ARChoices in Homecare

Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver

Respite In-Home 15 Minutes 1425 1228 4,53 7927047.00
Respite Short-T Facility- :
P 15 Minutes 75 779 1.68 98154.00
Respite Long-T Facility- .
elientnein il 15 Minutes 10 946 0.56 5297.60
Adulf Day Services Total: 2499916.64
Adult Day Services 15 Minutes 272 3721 2.47 2499916.64
Adult Family Home Total: 0.00
Adult Family Home - Level A Day 0 0.00 56.25
Adult Family Home - Level C Day 0 0 0.00 48.22
Adult Family Home - Level B Day 0 .00 53.43
Prevocational Services Total: 283084.80
Prevocational - Skiils o
Develotment 15 Minutes 114 268 6.40 195532.80
Prevocational - Career n
Excilaration 135 Minutes 114 120 6.40 87552.00
Attendant Care Services Total: 4051632000
Attendant Care Services 15 Minutes 5200 1720 4.53 40516320.00
Self-directed Attendant Care .
Transitioning-1st Year 13 Minutes 0 0 0.01 0.00
CSM Transition Costs-1st Year 1 Month 0 (¢ 0.01 0,00
Environmental Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive 1040500.00
Equipment Total:
Environmental Accessibility
Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment Package 250 1 4162.00 1040500.00
Home-Delivered Meals Total: 7601601.00
Home-Delivered Meals Meal 5950 214 597 7601601,00
Personal Emergency Response
System (PERS) Total: i
PERS Installation One 938 | 29.90 28046.20
Installment
PERS Unit Monitoring Month 5324 8.45 32.62 1467502.04

GRAND TOTAL:

Total: Services included
in capitation:

Total: Services not
included in capitation:
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants:

Factor D (Divide total
by number of
participants):

Services included in
capitation:

Services not included in
capitation:

Average Length of Stay
on the Waiver:

62463803.84

62463803.84

11350

5503.42

0

5503.42

276

State:

Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 93







RECEIVED

NOV 15 2018

ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

!!!|!!! | |!! !ESEARCH

200.000 ARCHOICES IN HOMECARE (ARCHOICES) HCBS
WAIVER PROGRAM GENERAL INFORMATION

201.000 Arkansas Medicaid Certification Requirements for ARChoices 1-1-16
HCBS Waiver Program

All ARChoices Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waiver providers must meet the
Provider Participation and enrollment requirements contained within Section 140.000 of this
manual as well as the following criteria to be eligible to participate in the Arkansas Medicaid
Program:

ARChoices HCBS Waiver providers must be licensed and/or certified by the Division of Provider

Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) Aging-and-Adult-Services{DAAS) as having met all

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved provider criteria for the service(s)
they wish to enroll to provide.

Certification by the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance Aging-and-Adult
Services-does not guarantee enroliment in the Medicaid program.

All providers must maintain their provider files at the Provider Enrcllment Unit by submitting
current certification, licensure, all DPSQADAAS-issued certification renewals and any other
renewals affecting their status as a Medicaid-eligible provider, etc.

Copies of licensure/certifications and renewals required by DPSQADAAS must be maintained by
DPSQABAAS to avoid loss of provider certification. These copies must be submitted to
DPSQABAAS Provider Certification. View or print the Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance Aging-and-AdultServices Provider Certification contact information.
Payment cannot be authorized for services provided beyond the certification period.

Section -1



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section

201.100 Providers of ARChoices HCBS Waiver Services in Bordering and 1-1-16
Non-Berdering States

An ARChoices provider must be physically located in the State of Arkansas or physically iocated
in a bordering state and serving a trade-area city. The trade-area cities are limited to Monroe
and Shreveport. Louisiana; Clarksdale and Greenville, Mississippt; Poplar Bluff and Springfield,
Missoun; Poteau and Sallisaw, Oklahoma; Memphis, Tennessee; and Texarkana, Texas.

All providers must be licensed and/or certified by their states’ appropriate licensing/certifying
authorities. Copies of all appropriate licenses and certifications must be submitted to
DPSQABAAS for certification as a potential ARChoices provider.

Arkansas Medicaid does not provide ARChoices Waiver services in non-bordering states.

201.105 Provider Assurances 10-1-16

A, Agency Staffing

The Provider agrees that he or she will maintain adequate staffing levels to ensure timely
and consistent delivery of services to ali beneficiaries for whom they have accepted an
ARChoices Waiver Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP).

The Provider agrees:

Section lI-2



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section il

1.

Personnel responsible for direct service delivery will be properly trained and in
compliance with all applicable licensure requirements. The Provider agrees to
require personnel to participate in any appropriate training provided by, or requested
by, the Department of Human Services. The Department of Human Services (DHS),

s i i Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance (DPSQA), requires mandatory training. The provider must
attend one of the two provider workshop trainings in the calendar year. "Provider” in
this context means at least one provider representative who will be able to inform the
rest of the provider staff of what was covered in training. Failure to attend one of
these trainings could jeopardize the provider's licensure or certification for the waiver.
The Provider acknowledges the cost of training courses for certification andfor
licensure is not reimbursable through DHS. Direct care workers must be trained prior
to providing services to an ARChoices beneficiary.

Each service worker possesses the necessary skills to perform the specific services
required to meet the needs of the beneficiary he/she is to serve.

Staff is required to attend orientation training prior to allowing the employee to deliver
any ARChoices Waiver service(s). This orientation shall include, but not be limited
to:

a.  Description of the purpose and philosophy of the ARChoices Waiver Program;

b. Discussion and distribution of the provider agency's written code of ethics:

C. Discussion of activities which shali and shall not be performed by the
employee;

d.  Discussion, including instructions, regarding ARChoices Waiver record keeping
requirements;

e.  Discussion of the importance of the PCSP;

f. Discussion of the agency’s procedure for reporting changes in the beneficiary’s
condition;

9.  Discussion, including potential legal ramifications, of the beneficiary's right to
confidentiality;

h.  Discussion of the beneficiary's rights regarding HCBS Settings as discussed in
C of this section.

B. Code of Ethics

The Provider agrees to follow and/or enforce for each employee providing services to an
ARChoices Waiver beneficiary a written code of ethics that shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

No consumption of the beneficiary's food or drink;
No use of the beneficiary's teiephone for personal calls;

No discussion of one’s personal problems, religious or political beliefs with the
beneficiary;

No acceptance of gifts or tips from the beneficiary or their caregiver;

No friends or relatives of the employee or unauthorized beneficiaries are to
accompany the employee to beneficiary’s residence;

No consumption of alcoholic beverages or use of non-prescribed drugs prior to or
during service delivery;

No smoking in the beneficiary’s residence;
No solicitation of money or goods from the beneficiary;
No breach of the beneficiary’s privacy or confidentiality of records.

Section il-3



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section 1l

C.

Home and Community-Based Services {HCBS) Settings

All providers must meet the foliowing Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS)
Settings regulations as established by CMS. The federal regulation for the new rule is 42
CFR 441.301(c) (4)-(5).

Settings that are HCBS must be integrated in and support full access of beneficiaries
receiving Medicaid HCBS to the greater community, including opportunities to seek
employment and work in competitive integraied settings, engage in community life, control
personal resources and receive services in the community, to the same degree of access
as beneficiaries not receiving Medicaid HCBS.

HCBS settings must have the following characteristics:

1.

Chosen by the individual from among setting options including non-disability specific
settings (as well as an independent setting) and an cption for a private unitin a
residential setting

a. Choice must be identified and included in the PCSP.

b.  Choice must be based con the individual's needs, preferences and, for
residential settings. resources available for room and hoard.

Ensures an individual's rights of privacy. dignity and respect and freedom from
coercion and restraint.

Optimizes, but does not regiment, individual initiative, autonomy and independence
in making life choices, including but not limited to, daily activities, physical
environment and with whom to interact.

Fagcilitates individual choice regarding services and supports and who provides them.

The setting is integrated in and supports full access of beneficiaries receiving
Medicaid HCBS to the greater community, including opportunities to seek
employment and work in competitive integrated settings. engage in community life,
control personal resources and receive services in the community. to the same
degree of access as beneficiaries not receiving Medicaid HCBS.

In a provider-owned or controlled residential setting {e-g—Adult Family-Homes}, In
addition to the gualities specified above, the following additional conditions must be

met:

a.  The unit or dwelling is a specific physical place that can be owned, rented. or
occupied under a legally enforceable agreement by the individual receiving
services, and the individual has. at a minimum, the same responsibilities and
protections from eviction that tenants have under the landlord/tenant law of the
State, county, city, or other designated entity. For settings in which landlord
tenant laws do not apply, the State must ensure that a lease, residency
agreement or other form of written agreement will be in place for each HCBS
participant and that the document provides protections that address eviction
processes and appeals comparable to those provided under the jurisdiction’s
landlord tenant law.

b.  Each individual has privacy in their sleeping or living unit:

i.  Units have entrance doors lockable by the individual, with only
appropriate staff having keys to doors.

ii.  Beneficiaries sharing units have a choice of roommates in that setting.

ii.  Beneficiaries have the freedom to furnish and decorate their sleeping or
living units within the lease or other agreement.

C. Beneficiaries have the freedom and support to control their own schedules and

activities and have access to food at any time. .

d. Beneficiaries are able to have visitors of their choosing at any time.

Section 114



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section ll

e.  The setting is physically accessible to the individual.

f. Any modification of the additional conditions specified in items 6.a. through
6.de. above must be supported by a specific assessed need and justified in the
PCSP. The following requirements must be documented in the PCSP:

i. Identify a specific and individualized assessed need.

ii. Document the positive interventions and supports used prior to any
modifications to the PCSP.

ii.  Document less infrusive methods of meeting the need that have been
tried but did not work.

iv.  Include a clear description of the condition that is directly proportionate to
the specific assessed need.

v.  Include regular collection and review of data to measure the ongoing
effectiveness of the modification.

vi. Include established time limits for periodic reviews to determine if the
madification is still necessary or can be terminated.
vii. Include the informed consent of the individual.
viii. Include an assurance that interventions and supports will cause no harm

to the individual.

210.000 PROGRAM COVERAGE

211.000 Scope 1-1-16

The Arkansas Medical Assistance (Medicaid) Program offers certain home and community-
based cutpatient services as an alternative to nursing home placement. These services are
available to persons age 21 through 64 who are determined to have a physical disability through
the Social Security Administration or the DHS Medical Review Team (MRT) and require an
intermediate level of care in a nursing facility, or are 65 years of age or older and require an
intermediate level of care in a nursing facility. The community-based services offered through
the ARChoices Home and Community-Based Waiver, described herein as ARChoices, are as
follows:;

Lol FamibHarmes

Attendant Care Services
Home-Delivered Meals

Personal Emergency Response System
Adult Day Services

Adult Day Health Services
Prevocational Services

Respite Care

r @ m m o o w >

Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment

These services are designed to maintain Medicaid eligible beneficiaries at home in order to
preclude or posipone institutionalization of the individual.

In accordance with 42 CFR 441.301(b) (1) (ii) ARChoices services may not be provided to
inpatients of nursing facilities, hospitals or other inpatient institutions except for inpatient respite
services.

Section II-5



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

212.000
A

Eligibility for the ARChoices Program 10-1-16

To qualify for the ARChoices Program, a person must be age 21 through 64 and have
heen whe-are determined to have a physical disability through the Social Security
Administration or the Department of Human Services (DHS) Medical Review Team (MRT)
and require an intermediate level of care in a nursing facility, or be 65 years of age or older
and require an intermediate level of care in a nursing facility. Persons determined to meet
the skilled level of care, as determined by the Office of Long Term Care, are not eligible for
the ARChoices Program.

The ARChoices Program processes for beneficiary intake, assessment, and service plan
development include:

1.  Determination of categorical eligibility;

Determination of financial eligibility;

Determination of nursing facility level of care;
Development of a person-centered service plan {(PCSP),

Development of an individual services budget (1SB);

o ok W N

Notification to the beneficiary of his or her choice between home- and community-
based services and institutional services; and

7.  Choice by the beneficiary among certified providers.

Applicants for participation in the program (or their representatives) must make application
for services at the DHS office in the county of their residence. Medicaid eligibility is
determined by the DHS Division of County Operations seunty-office, the results of the
independent assessment, and the BAAS-erg-Term-Sepdcesand Suppors{LTSS)
Program DPSQA Office of Long Term Care (OLTC) Eligibility Specialist, and is based on
non-functional and functional criteria. Income and resources comprise the non-functional
criteria. The individual must be an individual with a functional need.

To be determined an individual with a functional need: an individual must meet at least one
of the following three criteria, as determined by a licensed medical professional:

1.  The individual is unable to perform either of the following:

a. Atleast 1 of the 3 activities of daily living (ADLs) of transferring/locomotion.
eating or toileting without extensive assistance from, or total dependence upon
ancther person; or

b. Atleasi2 of the 3 ADLs of transferring/locomotion, eating. or toileting without
limited assistance from another person; or

2_ Lnetinnal accacoian esiite-in h o a) orm
Seale The individual has a primary or secondary diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease or
related dementia and is cognitively impaired so as to require substantial supervision
from another individual because he or she engages in inappropriate behaviors which
pose serious health or safety hazards to himself or others; or,

Section II-6



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver

Section Il

3.

Al mta = malnla - - Ranca s e a
SO HTH e oo < R et = 3

- The individual has a
diagnosed medical condition which requires monitoring or assessment at least once

a day by a licensed medical professional and the condition, if untreated, would be
life-threatening.

Section II-7



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

D. Individuals who require a skilled level of care as defined in Department of Human Services
regulations are not eligible for the ARChoices waiver.

E. The Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) is the assessment instrument used by
registered nurses of the Independent Assessment Contractor to collect information used in
determining level of care and developing the person-centered service plan. The ARIA system
assigns tiers designed to help further differentiate individuals by need. Each waiver
applicant or participant is assigned a tier level (0, 1, 2, or 3) following each assessment or
re-assessment. The tiers are intended to help inform waiver program oversight and

Section II-8



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

administration and person-centered service planning. Tier levels are also a population-
based factor used in determining participants’ prospective individual services budgets. The
tiers do not replace the Level of Care criteria described in Section C above, waiver
eligibility determinations, or the person-centered service plan process.

1. Tier O (zero) and Tier 1 (one) indicate the individual's assessed needs, if any, do not
support the need for either ARChoices waiver services or nursing facility services.

2. Tier 2 (two) indicates the individual's assessed needs are consistent with services
available through either the ARChoices waiver program or a licensed nursing facility.

3. Tier 3 (three) indicates the individual needs skilled care available through a licensed
nursing facility and therefore is not eligible for the ARChoices waiver program.

These indications notwithstanding, the final determination of Level of Care and functional
eligibility is made by the Office of Long-Term Care (OLTC).

For more information on ARIA, please see the ARIA Manual.

DF  No individual who is otherwise eligible for waiver services shall have his or her eligibility
denied or terminated solely as the result of a disqualifying episodic medical condition that
is temporary and expected to last no more than 21 days. However, that individual shall not
receive waiver services or benefits when subject to a condition or change of condition that
would render the individual ineligible if the condition or change in condition is expected to
last more than 21 days.

EG. Beneficiaries diagnosed with a serious mental illness or intellectual disability are not
eligible for the ARChoices Program unless they have medical needs unrelated to the
diagnosis of mental illness or intellectual disability and meet the other qualifying criteria. A
diagnosis of severe mental iliness or intellectual disability must not bar eligibility for
beneficiaries having medical needs unrelated to the diagnosis of serious mental illness or
intellectual disability when they meet the other qualifying criteria.

FH.  Eligibility for the ARChoices Waiver program begins the date the DHS Division of County
Operations ceunty-officeDAAS-LTSS-Program-Speeialist approves the application unless
there is a provisional plan of care. (If a waiting list is implemented in order to remain in
compliance with the waiver application as approved by CMS, the eligibility date
determination will be based on the waiting list process.)

Gl. The ARChoices Waiver provides for the entrance of all eligibie persons on a first-come,
first-served basis, once beneficiaries meet all functional and financial eligibility
requirements. However, the waiver dictates a maximum number of unduplicated, and
active, beneficiaries who can be served in any waiver year. Once the maximum number of
unduplicated, or active, beneficiaries is projected to be reached considering the humber of
active cases and the number of pending applications, a waiting list will be implemented for
this program and the following process will apply:

1. Each ARChoices application will be accepted and medical and financial eligibility will
be determined.

2. Ifall waiver slots are filled, the applicant will be notified of his or her eligibility for
services, that all waiver slots are filled and that the applicant is number X in line for
an available slot.

3. Entry to the waiver will then be prioritized based on the following criteria:

a.  Waiver application determination date for persons inadvertently omitted from
the waiver waiting list due to administrative error,;

b.  Waiver application determination date for persons being discharged from a

Section II-9
*



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section i

212.050

A

A«

nursing facility after a 60- day stay; waiver application determination date for
persons residing in an approved Level Il Assisted Living Facility for the past six
months or fonger;

¢c.  Waiver application determinaticn date for persons in the custody of DHS Adult
Protective Services (APS),

d.  Waiver application determination date for all cther persons.

Definitions

ARIA ASSESSMENT TOOL means the Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA)
instrument used by registered nurses of the Independent Assessment Contractor to
collect information used in determining level of care and developing the person-
centered service plan.

DHS RN means a registered nurse authorized by DHS to develop the person-centered
service plan for a participant.

EATING means the intake of nourishment and fluid, excluding tube feeding and total

parenteral (outside the intestines) nutrition. This definition does not include meal
preparation.

EXTENSIVE ASSISTANCE means that the individual would not be able to perform or
complete the activity of daily living (ADL) without another person to aid in performing
the complete task, by providing weight-bearing assistance.

INDEPENDENT ASSESSMENT CONTRACTOR means the DHS vendar responsible
for administering the ARIA assessment tool for the purpose of collecting information
used in determining level of care and developing the person-centered service plan.

LICENSED MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL means a licensed nurse, physician, physical
therapist, or occupational therapist.

LIMITED ASSISTANCE means that the individual would not be able to perform or
complete the activity of daily living (ADL) three or more times per week without ancther
person to aid in performing the complete task by guiding or maneuvering the limbs of
the individual or by other non-weight bearing assistance.

LOCOMOTION means the act of moving from one location to another, regardless of
whether the movement is accomplished with aids or devices.

INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES means a level of intellectual
disability as described in the American Association on Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities’ Manuai on Intellectual Disability: Definition Classification, and systems
and supports. For further clarification, see 42 CFR § 483.100 - 102, Subpart C -
Preadmission Screening and Annual Resident Review (PASARR) of Individuals with
Mental lliness and Intellectual Disability.

PCSP means a person-centered service plan.

SERIOUS MENTAL ILLNESS OR DISORDER means schizophrenia, mood, paranoid,
panic or other severe anxiety disorder; somatoform disorder; personality disorder; or
other psychotic disorder. For further clarification, see 42 CFR § 483.100 - 102,
Subpart C - Preadmission Screening and Annual Resident Review (PASARR) of
Individuals with Mental lliness and Intellectual Disability.

SKILLED LEVEL OF CARE means the following services when delivered by licensed
medical personnel in accordance with a medical care plan requiring a continuing
assessment of needs and monitoring of response to plan of care; and such services
are required on a 24-hour/day basis. The services must be reasonable and necessary
to the treatment of the individual's illness or injury, i.e., be consistent with the nature
and severity of the individual's illness or injury, the individual's particular medical
needs, accepted standards of medical practice and in terms of duration and amount.

Section I-10



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

1. Intermuscular or subcutaneous injections if the use of licensed medical personnel
is necessary to teach an individual or the individual's caregiver the procedure.

2. Intravenous injections and hypodermoclysis or intravenous feedings.
3. Levin tubes and nasogastric tubes.
4. Nasopharyngeal and tracheostomy aspiration.

5. Application of dressings involving prescription medication and aseptic
technigues.

6. Treatment of Stage Il or Stage IV decubitus uicers or other widespread skin
disorders that are in Stage Il or Stage IV.

7. Heat treatments which have been specifically ordered by a physician as a part of
active treatment and which require observation by nurses to adequately evaluate
the individual's progress.

8. Initial phases of a regimen involving administration of medical gases.

8. Rehabilitation procedures, including the related teaching and adaptive aspects of
nursing/therapies that are part of active treatment, to obtain a specific goal and
not as maintenance of existing function.

10. Ventilator care and maintenance.

11. The insertion, removal and maintenance of gastrostomy feeding tubes.

M. SUBSTANTIAL SUPERVISION means the prompting, reminding or guidance of
ancther person to perform the task.

N.  TOILETING means the act of voiding of the individual's bowels or bladder and includes
the use of a toilet, commode, bedpan or urinal; transfers on and off a toilet, commode,
bedpan or urinal; the cleansing of the individual after the act; changes of incontinence
devices such as pads or diapers; management of ostomy or catheters and adjustment
to clothing.

O. TOTAL DEPENDENCE means the individual needs another person to completely and
totally perform the task for the individual.

P.  TRANSFERRING means the act of an individual in moving from one surface to another

and includes transfers to and from bed, wheelchairs, walkers and other locomative aids
and chairs.

Section 11-11



ARChoices in Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section i

2B
CA2
AL
JFite]
A
Behazral EEO
Rroblems BA2
Bad
Redusad Fhysical  RBEOS
Funehen PEo

¢
5_%%%1&8%1538ﬂg%%fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%gﬁﬁgg

Section 112



ARChoices [n Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section |l

Section 1l-13



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section |l

Section 1114



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section I

Section 1I-15



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Section il-16



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Section 117



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section |l

Section 1118



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

212.200 Prospective Individual Services Budget

A

Individual Services Budget {ISB):

In the ARChoices in Homecare program, there is a limit on the maximum dollar amount of
waiver services that may be authorized for or received by each specific participant. This limit
is cailed the Individual Services Budget (ISB) and applies to all participants and ail waiver
services available through the ARChoices program.

Each ARChoices person-centered service plan shall include an Individual Services Budget,
as determined by DAABHS for the specific participant during the service plan development
process. The projected total cost of all authorized services in any ARChoices person-
centered service plan (including provisional plans) shall not exceed the participant’s
Individual Services Budget applicable to the time period covered by the service plan.

Each participant’s Individual Services Budget shall be explained when the DHS RN consults
with the individual on the person-centered service plan. This may be done through written
information.

Each participant shall also receive written notice of their Individual Services Budget that
includes notice of the right to request a Fair Hearing if they are denied waiver services as a
result of a dollar limit.

Adjustments, Considerations, and Safeguards Regarding Individual Services Budgets:

During the development of each person-centered service plan, after considering the
participant's assessed needs, priorities, preferences, goals, and risk factors, and to ensure
that the cost of all ARChoices services for each participant does not exceed the applicable
Individua! Services Budget amount, the DHS RN shall, as necessary:

a. Limit and modify the type, amount, frequency, and duration of waiver services
authorized for the participant (notwithstanding any service-specific limits established
in Appendix C: Participant Services); and

b. Make referrals to appropriate services available through the Medicaid State Plan or
another waiver program, Medicare, the participant's Medicare Advantage (MA) plan
(including targeted and other supplemental benefits the MA plan may offer), the
participant’s Medicare prescription drug plan, and other federal, state, or community
programs.

Section 11-19



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section li

2. Should the DHS RN determine that the ARChoices waiver services authorized for the
participant within the limit of the applicable Individual Services Budget, other Medicaid or
Medicare covered services, and other available family and community supports, when taken
together, are insufficient to meet the participant’s needs, the DHS RN shall counsel the
participant on Medicaid-covered services in other settings that are available to meet their
needs (e.g., nursing facility services and assisted living facility services) and make
appropriate referrals. The DHS RN may also order a re-assessment of the participant.

3. In the event that a participant’s ISB requires changes or limitations to ARChoices services
(that otherwise could be authorized for the person in the absence of the ISB) to ensure that
the applicable 1SB amount is not exceeded, during the person-centered service plan process
the participant will be given the opportunity to choose a different mix, type, or amount of
ARChoices covered services. (For example, the participant could decide to forego a day of
adult day health services in order to have additional attendant care hours.) Any such
participant-requested changes and substitutions are subject to the following:

a. The services chosen by participant are otherwise covered and reimbursable under
ARChoices and do not exceed any applicable service limitations;

b. The services chosen by participant are necessary and appropriate for the individual and
consistent with the results of the independent assessment;

¢. The cost of all ARChoices waiver services authorized for or received by the participant,
including any participant-requested changes and substitutions, do not exceed the
applicable ISB amount; and

d. The DHS RN determines the changes are reasonable and necessary for the individual
and reflected in the approved person-centered service plan.

4. If waiver services are or become limited due to the application of the Individual Services
Budget, the affected participant may request an exception in the form of a temporary
increase in the person’s ISB amount applicable to a period not to exceed one year.
Exception requests shall be reviewed and acted on by DAABHS using a panel of at least
three registered nurses. This exceptions process is intended as a safeguard to address
exceptional circumstances affecting a participant's health and welfare and not as means to
circumvent the application of the Individual Services Budget policy or permit coverage of
services not otherwise medically necessary for the individual, consistent with their level of
care, assessment results, and waiver program policy. Approval of an exception request and
associated temporary increase in a participant’s Individual Services Budget amount for a
period not to exceed one year is subject to the following criteria:

a. In the professional opinion of the nurse panel, unique circumstances indicate that
additional time is reasonably needed by the participant (or the participant's family on
his or her behalf) to (1) adjust waiver service use costs to within the applicable
Individual Services Budget (1ISB) amount, (2) arrange for the start of or increase in
non-Medicaid services (such as informal family supports and Medicare-covered
services), and/or (3) arrange for placement in an alternative residential or facility-
based setting.

b. Such unigue circumstances must be (1) specific to the individual; (2) supported by
documentation provided to the nurse panel; (3) relevant to the individual's assessed
needs and risk factors; (4) relevant to the temporary need for additional, medically
necessary coverable waiver services in excess of the person’s pre-exception ISB
amount; and (5) not the result of a need for skilled services or other services not
covered under the waiver.

Section 11-20



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section It

¢. Such unique circumstances may include (1) recent major life events not known at the
time the current person-centered service plan was approved, including without
limitation death of a spouse or caregiver, and loss of a home or residential
placement; and (2) A temporary increase in care needs, for a period not to exceed
ninety (90) days after a discharge from inpatient acute treatment or post-acute care.

d. If the exception request is due to the participant (or participant’s family on his or her
behalf) encountering delays or difficulties in arranging new care arrangements or an
alternative residential or facility-based placement in the state, an exception may be
granted if the nurse panel determines reasonable efforts are being made and the
delays or difficulties experienced are exceptional or due to rural or remote location of
the participant's home.

e. The factors considered by the nurse panel must be reasonably relevant to the
necessity for additional waiver services in total cost in excess of the person's pre-
exception ISB amount and for a temporary period of time not to exceed one year.

5. I the projected cost of services identified in an individual's person-centered service plan
(whether such plan is under development, provisional, or final or renewed, amended, or
extended) is less than the applicable Individual Services Budget amount, this shall not be
construed to permit, suggest, or justify approval, coverage, or reimbursement of different or
additional waiver services (including changes in amount, frequency, or duration); coverage
and reimbursement of any medically unnecessary Medicaid State Plan or waiver services; or
other actions to increase spending to use the remaining “unused” portion of the ISB amount.

6. The Individual Services Budget shall not apply to environmental accessibility
adaptations/adaptive equipment.

C. Transition Process:
1. The Individual Services Budget limit shall apply to the following:
a. New ARChoices participants, including individuals determined newly eligible for
ARChoices following a period of ineligibility for this or another HCBS waiver
program, when they are determined waiver eligible, and effective for their first
person-centered service plan and thereafter; and

b. Existing ARChoices participants immediately upon any of the following events,
whichever may occur first:

. Waiver eligibility is re-evaluated;
i.  The Level of Care is reaffirmed or revised;
iii. A new independent assessment or re-assessment is performed;

iv. Expiration, renewal, extension, or revision of the participant's person-
centered service plan occurs; or

v.  Admission to or discharge from an inpatient hospital, nursing facility, assisted
living facility, or residential care facility, or transfer from a hospice facility
OCCUrs.

2. For all other ARChoices participants not ctherwise identified above, the Individual Services
Budget limit shall apply no later than 60 days after the effective date of this waiver
amendment.

Section lI-21



ARChoices In Homiecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section I

3.

For the following ARChoices participants, the DAABHS deputy director (or his/her designee)
may on a case-by-case basis extend the effective date of the participant’s first Individual
Services Budget by a maximum of 60 days per participant upon written request of the
participant (or legal representative) or the participant's personal physician, if:

i. The specific participant’s recent pattern of waiver service expenditures exceeds the
average Individual Services Budget amount by an estimated twenty-five (25) percent or
more; and/or

ii. DAABHS determines that unique, intervening circumnstances indicate that additional
time is reasonably needed by the participant and the participant's family and providers.
Examples of unique, intervening circumstances include the death of the spouse, loss of
home, or unexpected difficulties in accessing or arranging care or placement, among
others.

Methodology for Determining Individual Services Budgets:

The Individual Services Budget amount for a participant is based on that participant’s ISB
Level. The ISB Level is determined by DAABHS based on a review of the participant’s
Independent Assessment. The three ISB Levels are:

a. Intensive: The participant requires total dependence or extensive assistance from
another person in all three areas of mobility, feeding, and toileting.

b. Intermediate: The participant requires total dependence or extensive assistance from
another person in two of the areas of mobility, feeding, or toileting.

c. Preventative: The participant meets the functional need eligibility requirements for
ARChoices in Section 212.000 but does not meet the criteria for the ISB Levels of
Intensive or Intermediate.

The maximum Individual Services Budget for a participant, except as modified by the
Transitional Allowance in subsection {3) below, is as follows:

a. For an individual with an assessed ISB Level of Intensive, the Individual Services Budget
is $30,000 annually.

b. For an individual with an assessed ISB Level of Intermediate, the Individual Services
Budget is $20,000 annually.

c. Foran individual with an assessed ISB Level of Preventative, the Individual Services
Budget is $5,000 annually.

For a participant with total waiver expenditures of more than $30,000 fer calendar year 2018:

a. The participant will be granted a Transitional Allowance for one year, increasing the
participant's maximum Individual Services Budget to the amount of the participant’s total
waiver expenditures for calendar year 2018.

b. Inthe year following the Transitional Allowance, the participant's maximum Individual
Services Budget will be 95% of the participant's total waiver expenditures for calendar
year 2019,

¢. For purposes of this subsection (3), “total waiver expenditures” for a calendar year shall
be calculated as the sum total of the vaiue of all waiver services authorized for the
participant in the person-ceniered service plan as of December 31, and then modified by:

Section 11-22



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

212.300
A

i.  If the cumulative expenditures are for less than 12 months, annualizing the total to
reflect what the expenditures would have been if the participant had received the
same monetary amount of services for 12 consecutive months; and

ii. Excluding amounts expended for environmental accessibility adaptations/adaptive
equipment services.

For purposes of determining the projected cost of all waiver services in an individual's
person-centered service plan, DAABHS shall assume that;

a. The individual will receive or otherwise use all services identified in the service plan
and in their respective maximum authorized amounts, frequencies, and durations:
and

b. There are no interruptions in the provision of waiver services due to possible future
events such as an inpatient admission, nursing facility admission, or short-term
admission to another facility setting.

Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP) 10-1-16

Each beneficiary in the ARChoices Program must have an individualized ARChoices
PCSP. The authority to develop an ARChowes PCSP is given to the Medicaid State
agency’s designee, the DHS RN

At the discretion of the beneficiary, the ARChoices PCSP is developed
with the ARChoices beneficiary, representative, the participant's family or anyone
requested by the participant, including the provider, if requested by the beneficiary. At the
request of the beneficiary or their representative, the DAASDHS RN can assist in
coordinating and inviting any requested beneficiaries.

When developing the waiver PCSP, the beneficiary may freely choose a family member or
individual to appoint as a representative. The beneficiary and representative may
participate in all decisions regarding the types, amount and frequency of services included
in the PCSP. The representative may participate in choosing the provider(s) for the
beneficiary. If anyone other than the beneficiary chooses the provider, the BAASDHS RN
will identify that individual on the PCSP. Should the self-directed service delivery model be
selected by an rnd|V|duaI other than the beneﬁcnary, that individual may not be the pald

The ARChoices PCSP developed by the BAASDHS RN includes, but is not limited to:

1. Beneficiary identification and contact information, including full name and address,
phone number, date of birth, Medicaid number and the effective date of ARChoices
Waiver eligibility;

Contact person;
3. Physician's name and address;

4. The amount, frequency and duration of ARChoices Waiver services to be provided
and the name of the service provider chosen by the beneficiary or representative to
provide the services. Note: Attendant Care, Respite Care, and State Plan
Personal Care hours are authorized en—the—wawer—PCSP based on the number
of hours calculated by application of the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour
Standards (THS) whlch is descrlbed below in Sectlon L aReseurseXilzation

e g : ment. Attendant Care,

Resplte Care and State Plan Personal Care hours are authonzed in a monthly

amount on-in the waiver PCSP Ihe—prewde#and—beneﬁemry—detennme—howto

preferenees— The beneflclary s chosen Medlcald-certlfled prowder is

Section 1I-23



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section It

responsible for properly delivering Attendant Care, Respite Care, and State
Plan Personal Care services to support the needed activity of daily living (ADL)
and instrumental activity of daily living (IADL) tasks, consistent with the
approved PCSP, this manual, and other applicable Arkansas Medicaid policy.

5. Qther services outside the ARChoices services, regardless of payment source.
identified and/or ordered to meet the beneficiary's needs including the option for the
self-directed service delivery model,

The election of community seivices by the waiver beneficiary or representative; and:

The name and title of the BAASDHS RN responsible for the development of the
beneficiary’s PCSP; and

8. Theindividual services budget for the participant.
D. Task and Hour Standards (THS):
1.  Background on THS

The Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards (“THS") is the written methodology
used by the DHS RNs as the basis for calculating the number of Attendant Care,
Respite Care, and State Plan Personal Care hours that are reasonable and medically
necessary to perform needed ADL and IADL tasks.

The current DAABHS-approved THS is located on the web at [insert website
address]

The THS includes the following four components, described in a grid format:
a. The participant's Needs Intensity Score (0, 1, 2, or 3) for each task;

b. The number of minutes within the minute range for the Needs Intensity Score that
are reasonable to perform the particular task at the respective Needs Intensity Score;

The frequency with which a task is necessary and reasonably performed; and

The amount of assistance with ADLs and IADLs provided by other sources, such as
(A) informal caregivers (e.g., relatives, neighbors, and friends), (B) community-based
agencies such as Meals on Wheels, and (C) Medicare or a Medicare Advantage
health plan.

The THS provides a standardized process for calculating the amount of reasonable,
medically necessary Attendant Care, Respite Care, and State Plan Personal Care services
hours, with the minute ranges and frequencies providing DHS nurses with the ability to
adjust PCSPs based on unigue factors related to a given beneficiary’s needs, preferences,
and risks.

The number of Attendant Care, Respite Care, and State Plan Personal Care hours/minutes
that are authorized for each necessary task by week/month are calculated by the DHS RN
consistent with the THS grid and based on:

a. Responses by the participant and their representatives to certain relevant questions in
the ARIA assessment instrument, and

b. As appropriate, information obtained by the DHS RN during their PCSP meeting with
the participant and participants' representatives or from participant's physician.

The Arkansas THS methodology has been reviewed and approved by DHS nurse
leadership and is based on Texas Form 2060 Task/Hour Guide, which has been used to
determine personal attendant service hours in Texas Medicaid home and community-
based services programs for over 20 years.

The Arkansas THS is also used to calculate the reasonable quantity of hours to perform
medically necessary tasks covered under IndependentChoices self-directed personal
assistance or State Plan personal care services for adults aged 21 or older.

Section 11-24



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section |l

DAABHS will periodically review the THS grid and may revise it based on, for example,
experience; information from the ARIA assessments and electronic visit verification
system; DPSQA audits of providers; and beneficiary and provider feedback. These
revisions could result in different, broader, or narrower minute ranges, frequencies per task
type, and Needs Intensity Scores.

2. Needs Intensity Score:

For each task, the DHS RN will assign a Needs Intensity Score to the participant based
on the participant’s and/or representative’s responses to questions during the ARIA
assessment and information collected by the DHS RN during the PCSP meeting with the
participant. The four Impairment Scores are defined as follows:

Needs Intensity Score 0 — The participant has no functional impairment with regard
to the task and can perform it without assistance.

Needs Intensity Score 1 (Mild): Minimal/mild functional impairment. The participant is
able to conduct activities with minimal difficulty and need minimal assistance.

Needs Intensity Score 2 (Severe): Extensivelsevere functional impairment. The
participant has extensive difficulty carrying out activities and needs extensive
assistance.

Needs Intensity Score 3 (Total): The participant is completely unable to carry out any
part of the activity.

A Needs Intensity Score is separate and distinct from a Tier Level under the ARIA system.
3. Number of minutes allowed for each Needs Intensity Score for each task

The THS grid specifies a minute range for each Needs Intensity Score for each task. For
example, for the bathing task, at Needs Intensity Score 2 the minute range is 15-20 minutes,
and the minute range for the grooming task at Needs Intensity Score 1 is 10-20 minutes. The
DHS RN preparing the PCSP will determine the number of minutes within the range that are
appropriate for the participant based on conditions specific to the participant. For example, if
a participant has cognitive or behavioral issues, the DHS RN may find that the maximum
number of minutes in the range for bathing is warranted. On the other hand, assigning the
maximum number of minutes for grooming might not be appropriate for a participant who is
bald.

If the participant has extenuating circumstances and requires time outside the range (either
more or less) for the task, the DHS RN must obtain supervisory approval. For supervisory
approval, the DHS RN must document the participant's extenuating circumstances and
justify the need for minutes outside the range. The justification of need must be based solely
on the participant’s assessed or observed medical needs, and may not be for the
convenience of a service provider or attendant. The request must be in writing (written or
email) and the supervisor's approval or disapproval must be in writing. If the extenuating
circumstances are expected to be temporary, the PCSP must identify a date by which the
deviation from the minute range will cease. Documentation of the request and the
approval/disapproval must be filed with the PCSP.

4. The frequency with which a task is performed

The THS methodology takes into account the frequency with which each ADL and IADL is
performed and reasonably necessary. The frequency with which a given task is performed
for a beneficiary will be determined based on the ARIA assessment results and information
collected by the DHS RN during the PCSP meeting with the participant.

5. The amount of assistance with ADLs and IADLs provided by other sources

ARChoices does not cover assistance that is needed but provided by other sources.
Therefore, the THS grid includes fields, by task, for the number of minutes of support
provided by other sources.

Section II-25



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

If instances of a needed assistance with an ADL or IADL are generally provided through
another source, then ARChoices attendant care is not necessary and no time for that task is
included in the PCSP. When another source is available to provide assistance with a
needed ADL or IADL task, the time associated with the assistance from that other source is
deducted from the iotal minutes per week.

The amount of support with ADLs and IADLs provided by other sources is informed by the
ARIA assessment results and information gathered by the DHS RN during the PCSP
meeting with the participant.

Other sources include informal caregivers (e.g., daughter or neighbor), community-based
services such as Meals on Wheels, and services available through Medicare {e.g., Medicare
home health aide services) or a Medicare Advantage health plan (e.g., supplemental
services). Other support is calculated for each task based on how much support is provided
with the task. For example, the participant's daughter may bathe her mother once a week
and prepare ali meals on weekends, eliminating the need for an attendant care aide to
perform those tasks. For this participant, the total minutes per week for the tasks of bathing
and meal preparation would be adjusted by the minutes associated with an aide assisting
with one bath and six meals per week.

6. Calculation of total hours of attendant care per month

The final step in the methodology is to add up the total minutes per week for each task. That
total is converted to hours per week by dividing the number of minutes by 60. Monthly total
hours can be calculated by multiplying the total weekly hour amount by 4.334. This monthly
hourly value is the maximum number of attendant care hours approved for the participant for
a month. The projected total cost of attendant care plus all other authorized services in
the PCSP (including provisional plans) shall not exceed the participant’s Individual
Services Budget applicable to the time period covered by the service plan.

E. If waiver eI|g|b|I|ty is approved by the DHS D|V|S|on of County Operahons eeunty—efﬁee =rd
h o st a copy

of the PCSP S|gned by the DAASDHS RN and the waiver benefumary or representatlve will
be forwarded to the beneficiary or representative and the Medicaid enrolled service
provider(s) included in the PCSP. The service provider and the ARChoices beneficiary
must review and follow the signed authorized PCSP. Services cannot begin until the
Medicaid provider receives the authorized PCSP from the BAASDHS RN. The criginal
PCSP will be maintained by the BAASDHS RN.

The implementation of the PCSP by a provider must ensure that services are:

Individualized to the beneficiary’s unique circumstances.
Provided in the least restrictive environment possible;

Developed within a process ensuring participation of those concerned with the
beneficiary’s welfare;

4. Monitored and adjusted as needed, based on changes authorized and reported by
the BAASDHS RN regarding the waiver PCSP;

5. Provided within a system that safeguards the beneficiary’s rights to quality services
as authorized on the waiver PCSP; and,

6. Documented carefully. with assurance that required information is recorded and
maintained.

NOTE: Each service included on the ARChoices PCSP must be justified by the
BAASDHS RN, This justification is based on medical necessity, the
beneficiary’s physical, cognitive and functional status, other support
services available to the beneficiary and other factors deemed appropriate
by the DAASDHS RN.

Section 11-26



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Each ARChoices service must be provided according to the beneficiary PCSP. For services
included in the waiver PCSP, Medicaid reimbursement is limited to the amount and frequency
that is authorized in the PCSP, subject to the participant’s individual services budget. As
detailed in the Medicaid Program provider contract, providers may bill only after services are
provided.

NOTE: PCSPs are updated annually by the DAASDHS RN and sent to the ARChoices
provider prior to the expiration of the current PCSP. However, the provider has
the responsibility for monitoring the PCSP expiration date and ensuring that
services are delivered according to a valid PCSP. At least 30 and no more than
45 days before the expiration of each PCSP, the provider shall notify the
DAASDHS RN via emall and copy the RN supervisor of the PCSP expiration date.

Services are not compensable unless there is a valid and current PCSP in effect
on the date of service.

REVISIONS TO A BENEFICIARY PCSP MAY ONLY BE MADE BY THE DAASDHS RN.

NOTE: All revisions to the waiver PCSP must be authorized by the DAASDHS RN. A
revised PCSP will be sent to each appropriate provider. Regardless of when
services are provided, unless the provider and the service are authorized on an
ARChoices PCSP, services are considered non-covered and do not qualify for
Medicaid reimbursement. Medicaid expenditures paid for services not authorized
on the ARChoices PCSP are subject to recoupment.

All revisions to the PCSP must be consistent with and not exceed the
participant’s applicable individual services budget.

212.305 Targeted Case Management Services (Non-Waiver Service) 1-1-16

Each ARChoices PCSP will include Targeted Case Management, unless refused by the waiver
beneficiary. The Targeted Case Manager is responsible for monitoring the beneficiary’s status
on a regular basis for changes in their service need, referring the beneficiary for reassessment, if
necessary, and reporting any beneficiary complaints and changes in status to the BAASDHS RN
or Nurse Manager immediately upon learning of the change.

NOTE: As stated in this manual, the service provider and the ARChoices beneficiary
must review and follow the signed authorized PCSP. Each setvice included on
the ARChoices PCSP must be justified by the DAASDHS RN. This justification is
based on medical necessity, the beneficiary’s physical, mental and functional
status, other support services available to the beneficiary and other factors
deemed appropriate by the DAASDHS RN,

For ARChoices beneficiaries whose waiver PCSP includes TCM at the time the
DAASDHS RN signs the PCSP, the ARChoices PCSP, signed by a DAASDHS RN,
will serve as the authorization for TCM services for one year from the date of the
DAASDHS RN’s signature, as described above.

212.310 Provisional Person-Centered Service Plan {PCSP) 10-1-16

The ARChoices registered nurse (DAASDHS RN) may develop a provisional PCSP pricr to
establishment of Medicaid eligibility, based on information obtained during the in-home functional
assessments administered by the Independent Assessment Contractor and the DHS RN, when
recommending functional approval based on the nursing home criteria. The DAASDHS RN must
discuss the provisional PCSP policy and have the approval of the applicant prior to completing
and processing the provisional PCSP. The PCSP will be developed by the applicant and the
BAASDHS RN and signed by the applicant or the applicant’s representative and the DAASDHS
RN.

Section 1I-27



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

The provisional PCSP will include all current PCSP information, except for the waiver eligibility
date and the Medicaid beneficiary 1D number.

The provisional PCSP will be mailed to the waiver applicant and each provider included on the
PCSP. If the beneficiary and the provider accept the risk of ineligibility, the provider must begin
services within an established time frame as determined by the Bhdsion-of-Aging-and-Adudlt
Services{DAAS} Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) and notify
the BAASDHS RN, via Start Services form AAS-9510, that services have started. The
DAASDHS RN will frack the start of care dates and give the applicant options when services are
not started.

The provisional PCSP will expire 80 days from the date signed by the applicant and the
DAASDHS RN. A PCSP that has been approved with a Medicaid number and waiver eligibility
date must be in place no later than the expiration date of the provisional PCSP.

A. A provisional PCSP may be developed and sent to providers only when the assessment
outcome indicates functional eligibility and the DAAS DPSQA-Office of Long Term Care
determines based on the results of the ARIA assessment, believes;in-his-erher
professionaljudgment; that the applicant meets the level of care criteria for an adult with a
functional need, as explained in Section 212,000, Eligibility for the ARChoices Program.

The waiver eligibility date will be established retroactively, effective on the day the
provisional PCSP was signed by the applicant or applicant’s representative and the
DAASDHS RN, if:

1. Atleast one waiver service begins within 30 days of the development of the
provisional PCSP

AND
2. The waiver application is approved by the Division of County Operations.

B. If waiver services begin within 31 through 60 days of the development of the provisional
PCSP. the retroactive eligibility date will be the effective date that a waiver service is
started.

C. If waiver services do not begin within 60 days from the date the provisional PCSP is signed
by the DAASDHS RN the DHS Division of County Operatlons eeunty—e#ﬁee
e g will establish the waiver
ellglblllty date as the date the appllcatlon is entered into the system as an approved
application. There will be no retroactive eligibility.

D. Provisional PCSPs are subject to the participant’s individual services budget.

Provisional PCSPs may not include the non-waiver self-directed service delivery model

212.311 Denied Eligibility Application 10-1-16

A.  If the DHS Division of County Operations county-effice,
and—&+ppeﬁs—(—l§FSS—)—P—FegFam—EhgrbH4y—SpeGlah-5t denies the Medicaid eligibility
application for any reason, Medicaid and waiver services provided during a period of
ineligibility will be the financial responsibility of the applicant. The DHS Division of County

Operations seunty-office DAAS-L-‘FSS—P-Feg;anq-Ehgmnw—Speelahst will notify the
DAASDHS RN. The BAASDHS RN will notify the providers via form AAS-9511

immediately upon learning of the denial. Reasons for denial include but are not limited to:
Failure to meet the nursing home admission criteria

Failure to meet financial eligibility criteria

Withdrawal of the application by the applicant

O

Death of the applicant when no waiver services were provided

Section 11-28



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section

NOTE: I waiver services were provided and the applicant dies prior to
approval of the application, waiver eligibility will begin (if all other
eligibility requirements are met) on the date waiver service(s) began
and end on the date of death.

B.  The applicant has the right to appeal by filing for a fair hearing. When an appeal ruling is
made in favor of the applicant, the actions to be taken by the DHS Division of County

Operations esunty-office are as follows:

1. Ifthe individual has no unpaid ARChoices Waiver charges, Medicaid coverage will
begin on the date of the appeal decision. However, the waiver portion of the case
will not be approved until the date the DHS Division of County Operations ceunty

office-and-the-DAAS- LTSS Program-Eligibility Spescialist completes the case.

2. Ifthe individual has unpaid waiver charges and services were authorized by the
DAASDHS RN, eligibility for both Medicaid and waiver services will begin on the date
service began unless the hearing decision sets a begin date.

NOTE: Under no circumstances will waiver eligibility begin prior to the date of
application or the date the provisional PCSP is signed by the
BAASDHS RN and the applicant or the applicant’s representative,
whichever is later.

212.312 Comprehensive Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP) 10-1-16

Prior to the expiration date of the provisional PCSP, the BAASDHS RN will send the
comprehensive PCSP to the waiver beneficiary and all providers included on the PCSP. The
comprehensive PCSP will replace the provisional PCSP. The comprehensive PCSP will include
the Medicaid beneficiary ID number, the waiver eligibility date established according to policy
and the comprehensive PCSP expiration date.

The comprehensive PCSP expiration date will be 365 days from the date of the BAASDHS RN’s
signature on form AAS-9503, the ARChoices PCSP. Once the application is either approved or
denied by the DHS Division of County Operatlons zotiioHise, BALE Long-Tem-Sardces—and

the providers will be notified by the BAASDHS RN.
The notification for the approval will be in writing via a PCSP that includes the waiver eligibility
date and Medicaid 1D number. The notification for a denial will be via a form AAS-9511 reflecting
the date of denial.

212.313 ARChoices Applicants Leaving an Institution 1-1-16

The policy regarding retroactive eligibility applies to applicants entering the waiver program from
the community and to applicants entering the program from an institution. The same process
and the same policy determining the waiver eligibility date will apply to applications of each type.

EXCEPTION: No waiver eligibility date may be established prior to an applicant's discharge
date from an institution. Therefore, if a provisional PCSP is developed while an applicant is a
resident of a nursing home or an inpatient in an institution, the earliest waiver eligibility date will
be the day the applicant is discharged from the facility.

NOTE: For inpatients, if a waiver application is filed at the local DHS Division of County
Operations eounty-office, prior to discharge AND if a provisional PCSP is
developed by the BAASDHS RN prior to discharge, it may be possible to establish
retroactive eligibility back to the date the applicant returned to his or her home if
the applicant is ultimately found eligible for the program. (Note: Medicaid
beneficiaries in nursing facilities do not have to complete a new application when
applying for ARChoices. Their signature on the PCSP electing waiver services
serves as the application.)

Section 11-29



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Comrmunity-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

if no waiver application is filed and no functional assessment or provisional
PCSP is completed by the Independent Assessment Contractor and BAASDHS
RN prior to an applicant’s discharge from an institution, retroactive eligibility will
not be possible back to the date the applicant returned to his home.

Functional assessments and PCSPs may be completed during a period of
institutionalization; however, a discharge date must be scheduled. Since the
purpose of the assessment and the PCSP is to depict the applicant’s condition
and needs in the home, premature assessments and PCSP development do not
meet the intent of the program.

This policy applies to applicants leaving hospitals or nursing facilities.

212.320 Authorization of The ARChoices Person-Centered Service Plan 11416
(PCSP) with Personal Care Services

The following applies to individuals receiving both personal care services and ARChoices
services.

A The BAASDHS RN is responsibie for developing an ARChoices PCSP that inciudes both
waiver and non-waiver services. Once developed. the PCSP is signed by the- BAASDHS
RN authorizing the services.

B. A PCSP developed on or after the effective date of this Provider Manual may not include
attendant care services unless the PCSP provides for at least 64 hours per month of
perscnal care services. Attendant care services are intended to supplement personal care
services available under the Medicaid state plan.

C. The ARChoices PCSP signed by the BAAS DHS RN will suffice as the “Personat Care
Authorization” for services required in the Personal Care Program. The personal care
service plan developed by the Personal care provider is still required.

The responsibility of developing a personal care service plan is not placed with the BAAS
DHS RN. The personal care provider is still required to complete a service plan, as
described in the Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care Provider Manual.

NOTE: For ARChoices participants who have chosen to receive their personal care
services through the IndependentChoices Program, the ARChoices PCSP,
signed by a DAASDHS RN, will serve as the authorization for personal care
services for one year from the date of the BAASDHS RN’s signature, as
described above,

D. The ARChoices PCSP is effective for one year, onc

e sighed by the BAAS DHS RN-the

a
ol 1LA A

Section lI-30



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

212.400

Temporary Absences from the Home 10-1-16

Once an ARChoices eligibility application has been approved, waiver services must be provided
in a home and community-based services setting for eligibility to continue. Unless stated
otherwise below, the DHS Division of County Operations Geuﬂiy—Bepathent—ef-Human-Sepﬂees
{bHS}-effice must be notified |mmediately by the Division-of Agingand-Adult Services
hurse-(BAASDHS RN} when waiver services are discontinued and action will be initiated by the

BAAS LTSS Program-Eligibility Specialist DHS Division of County Operations ceunty-office to
close the waiver case. Providers will be notified by the DAASDHS RN.

A.

Absence from the Home due to Institutionalization

An individual cannot receive ARChoices Waiver services while in an institution. The
following policy applies to any inpatient stay where Medicaid pays the facility for the date of
admission, i.e., hospitals, nursing homes, rehab facilities, etc., for active waiver cases
when the beneficiary is hospitalized or enters a nursing facility for an expected stay of
short duration.

1.

When a waiver beneficiary is admitted to a hospital, the BAAS LTSS Program
EligibilitySpecialist DHS Division of County Operations eounty-office, will not take
action to close the waiver case unless the beneficiary does not return home within 30
days from the date of admissfon. If, after 30 days, the beneficiary has not returned
home, the BAASDHS RN wili notify the DAAS LTSS Program-Eligibility Specialist
DHS Division of County Operations ceunty-effice and action will be initiated to close
the waiver case.

If the DHS Division of County Operations csunty-cffice becomes aware that a
beneficiary has been admitted to a nursing facility and it is anticipated that the stay
will be short {30 days or less), the waiver case will be closed effective the date of the
admission, but the Medicaid case will be left open. When the beneficiary returns
home, the waiver case may be reopened effective the date the beneficiary returns
home. A new assessment and medical eligibility determination will not be required
unless the last review was completed more than 6 months prior to the beneficiary’s
admission to the facility.

NOTE: Nursing facility admissions, when referenced in this section, do not include

ARChoices beneficiaries admitted to a nursing facility to receive facility-
based respite services.

Section II-31



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section I

NOTE: The Arkansas Medicaid Program considers an individuai an inpatient of a
facility beginning with the date of admission. Therefore, payment to the
inpatient facility begins on the date of admission. Payment to the inpatient
facility does not include the date of discharge.

Payment for ARChoices services may be allowed for the date of a
beneficiary’s admission to an inpatient facility if the provider can provide
verification that services were provided before the beneficiary was admitted.
In order for payment to be allowed, providers are responsibie for obtaining
the following:

+ Copies of claim forms or timesheets listing the times that services were
provided

¢ A statement from the inpatient facility showing the time that the
beneficiary was admitted

e This information must be submitted to BAAS DAABHS within 10
working days of receiving a request for verification.

If providers are unable to provide proof that ARChoices services were
provided before the beneficiary was admitted to the inpatient facility, then
payments will be subject to recoupment. ARChoices services provided on
the same day the beneficiary is discharged from the inpatient facility are
billabie when provided according to policy and after the beneficiary was
discharged.

B. Absence due to Reasons Other than Institutionalization

When a waiver beneficiary is absent from the home for reasons other than
institutionalization, the BAAS-LTSS-Program-Eligibility-Specialist DHS Division of County
Operations eeunty-officewill not be notified unless the beneficiary does not return home
within 30 days. If, after 30 days, the beneficiary has not returned home and the providers
can no longer deliver services as authorized on the Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP)
{e.g., the beneficiary has left the state and the return date is unknown), the BAASDHS RN
will notify the BAAS LTSS Program-Eligibility-Spesialist DHS Division of County Operations

county-office. Action will be taken by the BAAS LTSS Program-Eligibility Specialist DHS
Division of County Operations esunty-offise to close the waiver case.

NOTE: It is the responsibility of the provider to notify the BAASDHS RN
immediately via form AAS-9511 upon learning of a change in the
beneficiary’s status.

212.500 Reporting Changes in Beneficiary’s Status 10-1-16

Because the provider has more frequent contact with the beneficiary, many times the provider
becomes aware of changes in the beneficiary’s status sooner than the Bivisien-ef-Aging-and
AeluLt-SepAees-(-DAAS} Regu-:—teﬁeel-NHse-(-DMSDHS RN} or Case Manager-orDAAS Leng-

It is the provider's
responsibility to report these changes immediately so proper actlon may be taken. Providers
must complete the Waiver Provider Communication — Change of Participant Status Form (AAS-
9511) and send it to the DAASDHS RN. A copy must be retained in the provider's beneficiary
case record. Regardless of whether the change may result in action by the DHS Division of
County Operations ceunty-office, BAAS- LTSS-Rrogram-Eligibility Spesialist, providers must
immediately report all changes in the beneficiary’s status to the BAASDHS RN.

The Targeted Case Manager is responsible for monitoring the beneficiary’s status on a regular
basis for changes in service need, referring the beneficiary for reassessment if necessary and

Section 11-32



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

reporting any beneficiary complaints and changes in status to the BAASDHS RN, or DAASDHS
RN Supervisor immediately upon learning of the change.

212.600 Relatives Providing ARChoices Services 1116

All ARChoices services-exsept-for-Adult-Family-Homes; may be provided by a beneficiary’s
relatlve unless stated othervwse in this manual Ne—AdH#—Fam#y—Heme-pFewder—empleyee-eF

For the purposes of this section, a relative or family member shall be defined as all persons
related to the beneficiary by virtue of blood, marriage, or adoption.

The following is appiicable for all waiver services:

A. Under no circumstances may Medicaid payment be made for any waiver service rendered by
the waiver beneficiary's:

1. Spouse

2. Legal guardian of the person

3. Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary's care

B. All providers, including relatives, are required to meet all ARChoices provider certification

requirements, Arkansas Medicaid enroilment requirements and provide services according to
the beneficiary’'s PCSP and any established benefit limits for that specific service.

213.000 Description of Services

Section II-33



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Section I1-34



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

213.210 Attendant Care Services 10-1-16
Procedure Code Modifier = Description
85125 U2 Attendant Care Services
S5125 Attendant Care Self-Directed Maodel

Attendant Care services are designed to reduce or prevent inappropriate institutionalization by
maintaining, strengthening or restoring an eligible beneficiary's functioning in his or her own
home or elsewhere in the community where the beneficiary engages in activities, including work-
related activities. Attendant Care services may be provided in a beneficiary’s home or while
accompanying the beneficiary to other locations, including without limitation for medical
appointments or community activities, subject to the restrictions on travel time in section
213.220.

Attendant Care services consists of assistance with activities of daily living (ADLs), instrumental
activities of daily living (IADLs) and health-related tasks through hands-on assistance,
supervision and/ or cueing.

Hands-on assistance, supervision and/or cueing are defined as:

A.  "Hands-on assistance” means a provider physically performs all or part of an activity
because the individual is unable to do so.

B.  "Set-up", a form of hands on assistance, means getting personal effects, supplies, or
equipment ready so that an individual can perform an activity.

Section II-35



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section

C. “Supervision” means a provider must be near the individual to observe how the individua
is completing a task.

D. “Cueing and/or reassurance” means giving verbal or visual clues and encouragement
during the activity to help the individuai complete activities without hands-on assistance.

E. "Monitoring", a form of supervision, means a provider must observe the individual to
determine if intervention is needed.

F.  “Stand-by", a form of supervision, means a provider must be at the side of an individual
ready to step in and take over the task should the individua! be unable to complete the task
independently.

G. "Support”" a form of supervision, means to enhance the environment to enable the
individual to be as independent as possible.

H. The following forms of assistance combine elements of Hands-on assistance, supervision
and/or cueing:

l. "Redirection’, a form of supervisicn or cueing, means to divert the individual to another
more appropriate activity.

J. *Memory care support”, a blend of supervision, cueing and hands-on assistance. Includes
services related to observing behaviors, supervision and intervening as appropriate in
order to safeguard the service beneficiary against injury, hazard or accident. These
specific supports are designed to support beneficiaries with cognitive impairments.

Activities of dally living include:
A Eating

B Bathing
C Dressing
D

Personal hygiene (grooming, shampooing, shaving, skin care, oral care, brushing or
combing of hair, and menstrual hygiene, etc.)

m

Toileting

F.  Mobilityfambulating, including functional mobility (moving from seated to standing, getting
in and out of bed) and mastering the use of adapiive aids and equipment

Instrumental activities of daily living inciude:

A.  Meal planning and preparation of meals consumed only by the participant
B. |leragirgfraness
G——Laundry for the participant or incidental to the participant’s care

D- C. Shopping and-errands for food, clothing, and other essential items required specifically for
the health and maintenance of the participant;

E ¢ N
F—TFraveling
D. Housekeeping (cleaning of furniture, floors, and areas directly used by the participant)

H. E. Assistance with medications (to the extent permitted by nursing scope of practice laws)

Section 11-38



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Health-related tasks are limited to the following activities:

A. Performing and recording simple measurements of body weight, blood glucose, heart pulse,
blood pressure, temperature (forehead, tympanic, or oral), respiratory rate, and blood oxygen
saturation, if in physician’s order or medical plan of care. Attendant must use an appropriate
weight scale and FDA-approved, hand-held personal health monitoring device(s);

B. Additional assistance with self-administration of prescribed medications: and/or

C. Emptying and replacing colostomy and ostomy bags.
Health-related tasks must be:

A. Consistent with all applicable State scope of practice laws and regulations;

B. Within the documented skills, training, experience, and other relevant competencies of the
attendant performing the task;

C. For the care and safety of the participant, do not require monitoring or supervision of the
attendant by a licensed physician, nurse, or therapist:

D. Necessary to meet specific needs of the participant consistent with a written plan of care by
a physician or registered nurse; and

E. Tasks that the participant is unable to perform for themselves without hands-on assistance,
direct supervision, and/or active cueing of the attendant.

The provision of assistance with ADLs IADLs, or health-related tasks does not entail nursing
care.

Attendant care services tasks must be:

A. Reasonable and medically necessary, supported by the individual’s latest independent
assessment, and consistent with the individual's Level of Care;

B. Not available from another source (including without limitation family members, a member of
the participant’s househoid, or other unpaid caregivers; a Medicaid State Plan covered
service; the Medicare program; the participant’'s Medicare Advantage plan or Medicare
prescription drug plan; or private long-term care, disability, or supplemental insurance
coverage),

C. Expressly authorized in the individual's person-centered service plan;

D. Not in excess of or otherwise inconsistent with limits on the amount, frequency, or duration of
services;

E. Provided by qualified, Medicaid-certified providers and in compliance with all appiicable
Arkansas Medicaid program regulations and provider manuals; and

F. Provided in compliance with all applicable Arkansas scope of practice laws and regulations
pertaining to nurses, physicians, skilled therapists, and other professionals.

Attendant care services exclude all of the following:

A. Medical, skilled nursing, pharmacy, skilled therapy services, medical social services, or
medical technician services of any kind, including without limitation: aseptic or steriie
procedures; application of dressings; medication administration; injections, observation and

Section 11-37



ARChoices in Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver

assessment of health conditions, other than as permitted for health-related tasks above;
insertion, removal, or irrigation of catheters; tube or other enteral feedings; tracheostomy
care; oxygen administration; ventilator care; drawing blood; and care and maintenance of
any medical equipment;

Services within the scopes of practice of licensed cosmetologists, manicurists, electrologists,
or aestheticians, except for necessary assistance with personal hygiene and basic grooming;

Services provided for any person other than the participant, including without limitation a
provider, family member, household resident, or neighbor;

Companion, socialization, entertainment, or recreational services or activities of any kind
(including without limitation game playing, television watching, arts and crafts, hobbies, and
other activities pursued for pleasure, relaxation, or fellowship);

Cleaning of any spaces of a home or place of residence (including without limitation kitchen,
bathroom, living room, dining room, family room, and utility or storage rooms, and the floors,
furnishings, and appliances therein) shared by the participant with one or more adults who
are, together or separately, physically able to perform housekeeping of these areas; and

Habilitation services, including assistance in acquiring; retaining, or improving self-help,
socialization, and/or adaptive skills.

Participants may choose to receive authorized attendant care services through any of the following:

A

B.

C.

Home health agency licensed as Class A by the Arkansas State Board of Health, certified
by DPSQA, and enrolled as a2 Medicaid provider;

Home health agency licensed as Class B by the Arkansas State Board of Health, certified
by DPSQA, and enrclled as a Medicaid provider;

Private care agency licensed by the Arkansas State Board of Health, certified by DPSQA,
and enrolled as a Medicaid provider; or

Consumer-directed attendant care through IndependentChoices, the Arkansas self-directed
personal assistance benefit under section 1915(j) of the Social Security Act, provided the
individual is capable of self-directing the assistance and subject to the requirements of the
IndependentChoices provider manuai and applicable provider qualifications and certification.

The aggregate amount, frequency, and duration of attendant care services must be consistent with
the aggregate amounts, frequencies, and durations calcuiated by DHS fer the beneficiary in
asccordance with the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards (“THS”), as issued by DAABHS
and posted publicly on the DHS website with the ARChoices waiver provider manual. DAABHS will
publish and periodically update the THS as necessary, following a public notice and comment
process. The THS specifies limits on each ADL, IADL, and health-related task at the intensity of
human assistance needed for the task, including maximum frequency (by day or week or month},
maximum minutes per task allowable, and maximum hours by day, week, month, and year. Any
aggregate amounts, frequencies, or durations in excess of the wseldy or monthly imits calcuiated by
DHS for the beneficiary in accordance with the THS are not covered.

Attendant care services are not available (not covered and not reimbursable) through the ARChoices
program when and to the extent any of the following may apply:

A

When reasonably comparable or substitute services are available to the individual through
an Arkansas Medicaid State Plan benefit including without limitation personal care services,
home health services, and private duty nursing services;

Section l1-38

Section 1l



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section |l

B. When assistance with the equivaient ADL, IADL, or health-related task(s) is covered under
an Arkansas Medicaid State Plan benefit but determined as medically unnecessary for the
individual during adjudication of a prior authorization request or utilization review;

C. When assistance with the comparable ADL, IADL, or health-related task(s) is available
through targeted or supplemental benefits offered by the participant’s Medicare Advantage
plan;

D. When attendant care services delivered through a home health agency or private care
agency are provided by the waiver beneficiary’s (i) spouse; (ii) legal guardian of the person;
or (i) attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary’s care;

E. On dates of service when the participant:

1. Receives Medicare home health aide services, whether through traditional Medicare fee-
for-service or a Medicare Advantage plan of any kind for the same tasks:

2. Receives targeted or other supplementa! benefits from a Medicare Advantage plan of
any kind, where such supplemental services are reasonably comparable to or duplicative
of attendant care services, personal care services, or self-directed personal assistance;

3. Spends more than five hours at an adult day services or adult day health services facility,
unless prior approved in writing by the DHS RN;

4. Receives long-term or short-term facility-based respite care; and/or

5. Receives services from an inpatient hospital, nursing facility, assisted living facility,
hospice facility, or residential care facility, unless approved in writing by a DHS RN as
reasonable and necessary given the time of day of the facility admission or discharge,
the need for transition assistance, or an inpatient hospital admission incident to an
emergency department visit or direct inpatient admission by the attending physician;

F When a duplicate claim for the same performance of the same task is paid or submitted for
personal care services, self-directed personal assistance, or home health aide services
under the Medicaid State Plan; and/or

G For a task that was not actually performed.

Beneficiaries may choose to self-direct this service through Arkansas's IndependentChoices
program under 1915(j) authority; or may receive services through an agency. The
IndependentChoices Medicaid Provider Manual describes the self-directed service delivery
model.

Attendant Care services must be provided according to the beneficiary ARChoices written
PCSP.

A brief description of the service(s) provided, including the signature and title of the individual
rendering the service, must be documented in the beneficiary’s case record. See Section
214.000 for additional documentation requirements.

Benefit limits will be determined on a client basis based on application of the Arkansas Medicaid
Task and Hour Standards (THS) and the service limitations described in this manual. the

Section 1-39




ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

DAABHS will update the Person-Centered Service Plan to take into account any changes in the
participant's condition and/or living arrangements that would affect the number of hours of
attendant care that could be approved under the Task and Hour Standards.

Fifteen (15) minutes of service equals one (1) unit.

An ARChoices beneficiary who spends more than five (5) hours (20 units) at an adult day
services or adult day health services facility or who is receiving short-term, facility-based respite
care will not be eligible for Attendant Care services on the same date of service unless
authorized by the BAASDHS RN.

An ARChoices beneficiary receiving iong-term, facility-based respite care is not eligible for
Attendant Care services on the same date of service.

213.220 Travel Time of Attendant Accompanying Participant 1-1-19
A. The Attendant Care benefit only covers aitendant travel time whan all of the following apply:

1 The attendant accompanies the participant in the same vehicle as the participant
travels to and returns from a community location for medical appointment or
community activity;

2. The travel time bilted is selely for necessary time in transit from the partictpant's
home to the community focation and the return travel from the community lccation to
the participant's home,

3. The participant’s participation in the lccal community activity is for the bensfit of the
participant and to maet the participant's geals for independeant living in the
community, and the travel, including stops. is not for the benefit or conversence of
any other person (including the attendant, a farmily member, the driver, or ather
passengers),

4. The traveling activity itself is for practical transit within the community and not for
diversional or recreational purposes of any kind,

5 The participant's approved patient-centered service plan includes Attendant Care
service hours for one or both of the following activities of daily living (ADLs}. teileting
and mobility / ambuating,

@

While In transit to and from the community location, the participant requires, or 1s
likely to need given assessed functional limitations, hands-on assistance with the
ADL task of toileting or the ADL task of mobility / ambulating; and

7. The travel time is reasonable given driving distances, traffic conditions, and weather
with time and iocations documented.

B Travel time is not reimbursable if any other adult person accompanying {or driving) the
participant is a family member and is reasonably abie to assist the participant in transit if
needed.

C. Travel ime accompanying a participant will count against the total nurber of Attendant Care
hours per month authorized in the participant's person-centered service plan.

D Requesting Hours for Travel Time of Altendant Accompanying Participant:

Participants vary in their medical appeintments, participation in community activities, the
availabitity of family or other assistance they may need while traveling, and the time involved
when iraveling to medical appointments and local communily activities. YWhen covered,
travel time of an attendant accompanying a participant is incident to but itself not the ADL
task of toileting or the ADL task of mobiiity / ambulating Therefore. the Task and Hour
Standards are not currently used to help determine the number of Attendant Care hours, if

Section 11-40



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section il

213.230

any, associated solely with travel time of an attendant accompanying a participant to a
medical visit or community activity. During the home visit to discuss the person-centered

service plan, the participant (or their legal representative) should inform the DHS nurse of the
individual’'s community activities, need for an attendant to accompany them, and the
distances and roundtrip travel times typically involved. Based on this information, consistent
with the above requirements, and within the person’s applicable Individual Services Budget,
the DHS nurse may increase the number of Attendant Care hours per month covered in the
PCSP to reasonably accommodate the travel time of an attendant accompanying the

participant

Attendant Care Services Certification Requirements 1-1-18

The following requirements must be met prior to certification by the Division of Provider Services

and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) Aging-and-Adult Services{DAAS) by providers of attendant

care services. The prowder must:

A

Hold a current Arkansas State Board of Health Class A and/or Class B license, Or Private
Care Agency license.

All owners, principals, employees, and contract staff of an attendant care services provider
must have comply-withnational and state criminal background checks and central registry
checks. Criminal background and central registry checks must comply with aseordirg-to
Arkansas State-Law-at Code Annotated §§ 20-33-213 and 20-38-101 et seq. Criminal
background checks shall be repeated at least once every five years. Central registry
checks shall include the Child Maltreatment Central Registry; the Adult and Long-Term
Care Facility Resident Maltreatment Central Registry; and the Certified Nursing
Assistant/Employment Clearance Registry.

Employ and supervise direct care staff who:

1. Prior to providing an ARChoices service, have received instruction regarding the
general needs of the elderly and adults with physical disabilities;

2. Possess the necessary skills to perform the specific services required to meet the
needs of the beneficiary the direct care staff member is to serve; and

3. Are placed under bond by the provider or are covered by the professional medical
liability insurance of the provider.

Each provider must maintain adequate documentation to support that direct care staff meets the
training and, as applicable, testing requirements according to licensure, agency policy and
PAASDPSQA certification.

Attendant Care service providers who hold a current Arkansas State Board of Health Class A
and/or Class B license or Prlvate Care Agency Ilcense must recertify W|th DPSQA annually

213.240

Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment 10-1-16

Section 11-41



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section il

Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment services enable the individual to
increase, maintain andf/or improve his or her functional capacity to perform daily life tasks that
wouild not be possible otherwise. Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment
is physical adaptations to the home that are necessary to ensure the heaith, welfare and safety
of the beneficiary, to function with greater independence in the home and preclude or postpone
institutionalization. Adaptive equipment also enables the ARChoices beneficiary to increase,
maintain and/or improve his/her functional capacity to perform daily life tasks that would not be
possible otherwise and perceive, control or communicate with the environment in which he or
she lives.

Exciuded are adaptations or improvements to the home which are of general utility and are not of
direct medical or remedial benefit to the individual, such as carpeting, roof repair, air conditioning
and others. Adaptations which add to the total square footage of the home are excluded from
this benefit. All services must be in accordance with applicabie state or locatl building codes. All
dwellings that receive adaptations must be in good repair and have the appearance of sound
structure.

Permanent fixtures are not allowed on rented or leased properties.

Reimbursement is not permitted for Environmental Accessibility Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment
services provided by 2 walver beneficiary’s:

1 Spouse;
2. legal guardian of the person; or
3 Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary’s care

213.280 Provider Qualifications Environmental Accessibility 1-1-16
Adaptations/Adaptive Equipment

Individuals or businesses seeking certification by the Division of Provider Services and Quality

Assurance (DPSQA) Aging-and-Adult-Services{DAAS} and enrolliment as Medicaid providers of

environmental accessibility adaptations/adaptive equipment services must meet the following
criteria:

A The provider of services must be a builder, tradesman or contracter.

B.  The provider must be licensed (where applicable) as appropriate for home improvement
contracting or adaptation and equipment provided.

C. The provider must certify that his or her work meets state and local building codes.
D. The provider must obtain all applicable permits.

E. The provider must be knowledgeable of and comply with the Americans with Disabilities
Act Accessibility Guidelines.

F.  Contractors are required to adhere to the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards.

NOTE: All environmental modifications requiring electrical or plumbing work must
be completed by a an appropriately licensed professional. If the proposed
work requires a plumbing or electrical license, the contractor must submit a
copy of the contractor’s plumbing or electrical license with the claim form.

Section [1-42



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

If a contractor subcontracts with an electrician or plumber, the contractor
must submit a copy of the subcontractor's license with the claim form.

213.290 Envirocnmental Modifications/Adaptive Equipment 10-1-16

Prior to payment for this service, the waiver beneficiary is required to secure 3 separate itemized
bids for the same service. Each bid must itemize the work to be done and must specifically
|dent|fy any work that requires a plumbmg or electrical license. The bids are reviewed by the
Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health
Services (DHSBAAS RN) or designee prior to submission for Medicaid payment. If only two bids
can be secured due to a shortage of qualified providers in the service area, documentation
attesting to the attempt to secure bids and the shortage of providers must be provided. All
modification funds must be verified by DAABHS the DAAS Rrovider Certification-Unit prior to

receiving services,

Each claim must be signed by the provider, the waiver beneficiary and BAASDHS RN, or
designee. A statement of satisfaction form must be signed by the waiver beneficiary prior to any
claim being submitted. Al claim forms, bids and client satisfaction statement forms must be

submitted to DAABHS the-DAAS-PreviderGerification-Unit prior to submission for payment.

NOTE: The Environmental Modification provider's Alternatives for Adults with
Physical Disabilities {AAPD) certification will be valid as an ARChoices
Environmental Modification provider under the ARChoices Waiver program.
The provider will not be required to recertify until the expiration of the
previous certification under AAPD.

213.310 Hot Home-Delivered Meals 1-1-16

Hot Home-Delivered Meals provide one meal per day with a nutritional content equal to 33 1/3
percent of the Dietary Reference Intakes established by the Food and Nutrition Board of the
National Academy of Sciences. The meals must comply with the Dietary Guidelines for
Americans and with the BAASDAABHS Nutrition Services Program Policy Number 206.

Hot Home-Delivered Meal services provide one daily nutritious meal to eligible beneficiaries who
are homebound. Homebound is defined as a person with normal inability to leave home without
assistance (physical or mental) from another person; a person who is frail, homebound by
reason of iliness or incapacitating disability or otherwise isolated; or for whom leaving home
requires considerable and taxing effort by the individual and absences from the home are
infrequent, relatively short in duration or are attributable to the need to receive medical
treatment.

Additionally, the beneficiary must;
A.  Be unable to prepare some or all of his or her own meals;
B. Have no other individual to prepare his or her own meals; and

C.  Have the provision of the Home-Delivered Meais included on his or her PCSP

The provision of a Home-Delivered Meal is the most cost-effective method of ensuring a
nufritiously adequate meal.

The Home-Delivered Meals provider must maintain a log sheet signed by the beneficiary that
includes date and time of delivery each time a meal is delivered to document receipt of the meal.

Hot Home-Delivered Meals must be provided according to the beneficiary’s written ARChoices
PCSP

Section 11-43



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section li

. Procedure Required Description
Code Modifier
S5170 u2 Hot Home-Delivered Meal
85170 — Frozen Home-Delivered Meal
S5170 U1 Emergency Home-Delivered Meal -
213.311 Hot Home-Delivered Meal Provider Certification Requirements 1-1-18

To be certified by the Division-of Aging-and-Adult-Services{DAAS) Division of Provider Services
and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) as a provider of Hot Home-Delivered Meal services, a provider
must:

A.  Be a nutrition services provider whose kitchen is approved by the Department of Health,
and whose meals are approved by a Registered Dietitian who has verified by nutrient
analysis thal meals provide 33 1/3 percent of the Dietary Reference Intakes established by
the Food and Nulrition Board of the National Academy of Sciences and comply with the
Dietary Guidelines for Americans and BAASDAABHS Nutrition Services Program Policy
Number 206.*

B. Comply with all federal, state, county and local laws and regulations concerning the safe
and sanitary handling of food, equipment and supplies used in the storage, preparation,
handling, service, delivery and transportation of meals;*

C. Ifapplicable, assure that the provider's intermediate source of delivery meets or exceeds
federal, state and local laws regarding food transportation and delivery;*

D.  Procure and have available all necessary licenses, permits and food handlers’ cards as
required by law:*

*NOTE: For providers located in Arkansas, all requirements must meet applicable
Arkansas laws and regulations. For Home-Delivered Meal providers located
in bordering states, all requirements must meet their states’ applicable laws
and regulations.

E. Al owners, principals, employees, and contract staff of a hot, home-delivered meal
services provider must comply have comph-with national and state criminal background
checks and central registry checks. Criminal background checks and central registry
checks must comply with aceording-te Arkansas State-taw-at Code Annotated §§ 20-33-
213 and 20-38-101 et seq. Criminal background shall be repeated at least once every five
years. Central registry checks shall include the Child Maltreatment Central Registry; the
Adult and Long-Term Care Facility Resident Maltreatment Central Registry; and the
Certified Nursing Assistani/Employment Clearance Registry.

F.  Notify the BAASDHS RN immediately if:

1. There is a problem with delivery of service
2. The beneficiary is not consuming the meals
3. Achange in the individual's condition is noted

NOTE: Changes in service delivery must receive prior approval by the DAASDHS
RN who is responsible for the individual’s Person-Centered Service Pfan
(PCSP). Requests must be submitted in writing to the DAASDHS RN. Any
changes in the individual’s circumstances must be reported to the
BAASDHS RN via form AAS-9511.

Section 11-44



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Home-Delivered Meals, hot or frozen, shall be included in the beneficiary’s PCSP only when they
are necessary to prevent the institutionalization of an individual.

Hot Home-Delivered Meals providers must recertify with

LiLS-everhresyeake;
howeverDAAS must-maintain. DPSQA annually, and the provider shall attach a copy of the

agency’s current Food Establishment Permit at-all-times to the annual recertification.

213.320 Frozen Home-Delivered Meals 1-1-16

Frozen Home-Delivered Meals service provides one meal per day with a nutritional content egual
to 33 1/3 percent of the Dietary Reference intakes established by the Food and Nutrition Board
of the National Academy of Sciences. The meals must comply with the Dietary Guidelines for
Americans and with BAASDAABHS Nutrition Services Program Policy Number 206,

The goal of the Frozen Home-Delivered Meals service is to supplement, not replace, the Hot
Home-Delivered Meal service by providing one daily nutritious meal to homebound persons at
risk of being institutionalized who:

A.  Reside in remote areas where daily hot meals are not available;
B. Choose to receive a frozen meal rather than a hot meal; or

C.  Are at nutritional rigsk and are certified to receive a meal for use on weekends or holidays
when the hot meai provider is not in operation.

NOTE: While the individual has freedom of choice regarding this service, it is the
responsibility of the BAASDHS RN developing the PCSP to ensure the
appropriateness of the service. A hot meal delivered daily remains the food
service of choice, when available. Therefore, a frozen meal must be
approved by the DAASDHS RN. The service must be included on the PCSP.
If the individual responsible for developing the PCSP does not think the
frozen meais are appropriate for the individual, other options will be
considered. Those options include removing the Home-Delivered Meal
service rather than authorizing a frozen meal.

Itis the certified provider’s responsibility to deliver the meals regardless if
they are hot or frozen. Meals may not be left on the doorstep. The meals
cannot be mailed to the individual via United States Postal Service or
delivered by paid carrier such as Fed Ex or UPS.

213.321 Beneficiary Requirements for Frozen Home-Delivered Meals 1-1-16

The beneficiary must;
A.  Be homebound, which is defined by the following requirements;

1. The person is normally unable to leave home without assistance (physical or mental)
from another person;

2. The person is frail, homebound by reason of iliness or incapacitating disability or
otherwise isolated;

Leaving home requires considerable and taxing effort by the individual; and

Absences of the individual from home are infrequent, of relatively short duration or
attributable to the need to receive medical treatment.

Section I1-45



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section li

8.

C.

Be unabie to prepare some or all of his or her meals or reguire a special diet and be
unable to prepare it.

Have no other individual available to prepare his or her meals and the provision of a
Frozen Home-Delivered Meal is the most cost-effective method of ensuring a nutritionally
adequate meal.

Have adequate and appropriate storage and be able to perform the simple tasks
associated with storing and heating a Frozen Home-Delivered Meal or have made other
appropriate arrangements approved by BAASDAABHS.

Have the provision of frozen meals included on his or her PCSP as developed by the
appropriate BAASDHS RN.

Frozen Home-Delivered Meals must be documented on the ARChoices PCSP by the BAASDHS
RN and must be provided in accordance with the beneficiary's written ARChoices PCSP.

213.323

Frozen Home-Delivered Meal Provider Certification Requirements 1118

In order to become approved providers of frozen meals, providers must meet ail applicable

requirements of the Aging-and-Adult Services{BAAS) DAABHS Nutrition Services Program
Policy Number 206.

To be certified by DAASDPSQA as a provider of Home-Delivered Meal services, a meal provider

must:

A

Be a nutrition services provider whose kitchen is approved by the Department of Health.
and whose meals are approved by a Registered Dietitian who has verified by nutrient
analysis that meals provide 33 1/3 percent of the Dietary Reference Intakes established by
the Food and Nutrition Board of the National Academy of Sciences and comply with the
Dietary Guidelines for Americans and BAASDAABHS Nutrition Services Program Policy
Number 206.*

Comply with all federal, state, county and local laws and regulaﬂons concerning the safe
and sanitary handling of food. equipment and supplies used in the storage, preparation,
handling, service, delivery and transportation of meals;*

If applicable. ensure that intermediate sources of delivery meet or exceed federal, state
and local laws regarding food transportation and delivery*

Procure and have available ali necessary licenses, permits and food handlers’ cards as
required by law*

*NOTE: For providers located in Arkansas, all requirements must meet applicable
Arkansas laws and regulations. For Home-Delivered Meal providers located
in bordering states, all requirements must meet their states’ applicable laws
and regulations.

All owners, principals, employees, and contract staff of a home-delivered meal services
provider must have cormply-with national and state criminal background checks and central
reglstry checks Crlmmal background checks and central reglstry checks must comply with
200 = ’ al-bac hecks-acsordingte-Arkansas Code
Annotated §§ State—l:aw-at 20-33-213 and 20 38 101 et seq Criminal background shall be
repeated at least once every five years. Central registry checks shall include the Child
Maltreatment Central Registry; the Adult and Long-Term Care Facility Resident
Maltreatment Central Registry; and the Certified Nursing Assistant/Employment Clearance
Registry.

Section lI-46



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section ||

F.

E=G.

EJ

Provide frozen meals that:

1. Were prepared or purchased according to the Department of Health and BAAS
DAABHS Nutrition Services Program Policy guidelines in freezer-safe containers that
can be reheated in the oven or microwave.

2. Are kept frozen from the time of preparation through placement in the individual’'s
freezer.

3. Have a remaining freezer life of at least three months from the date of delivery to the
home.

Are part of a meal cycle of at least four weeks (i.e., four weeks of menus that differ).

Are properly labeled, listing food items included and non-frozen items that are
delivered with the frozen components to complete the meal (which must include
powdered or fluid milk, whichever is preferred by the ARChoices beneficiary), menu
analysis as required by DAABHSDAAS Nutrition Services Program Policy if other
than DAABHSBAAS menus are used and both packaging and expiration dates.

NOTE: The milk must be delivered to the beneficiary at least seven (7) days prior to
its expiration date.

Instruct each individual, both verbally and in writing, in the handling and preparation
required for frozen meals and provide written re-heating instructions with each meal,
preferably in large print.

- Ensure that meals that are not commercially prepared but produced on-site in the

production kitchen:

1. Are prepared and packaged only in a central kitchen or on-site preparation kitchen;
Are prepared specifically to be frozen;

Are frozen as quickly as possible;

Are cooled to a temperature of below 40 degrees Fahrenheit within four hours;

o oh @ N

Have food temperatures taken and recorded at the end of food production, at the
time of packaging and throughout the freezing process, with temperatures recorded
and kept on file for audit;

6. Are packaged in individual trays, properly sealed and [abeled with the date, contents
and instructions for storage and reheating;

7. Are frozen in a manner that allows air circulation around each individual tray;
8.  Are kept frozen throughout storage, transport and delivery to the beneficiary; and
9.  Are discarded after 30 days.

- Verify quarterly that ali beneficiaries receiving Frozen Home-Delivered Meals continue to

have the capacity to store and heat meals and are physically and mentally capable of
performing simple associated tasks unless other appropriate arrangements have been
made and approved by BAASDAABHS. Any changes in the individual’s circumstances
must be reported to the BAASDHS RN via form AAS-9511.

Notify the appropriate BAASDHS RN immediately if:
1. There is a problem with delivery of service
2. Theindividual is not consuming the meals

3. Achange in an individual's condition is noted

NOTE: Changes in service delivery must receive prior approval by the DAASDHS
RN who is responsible for the individual’s Person-Centered Services Plan

Section 11-47



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

(PCSP). Requests must be submitted in writing to the- BAASDHS RN, Any
changes in the individual’'s circumstances must be reported to the
BAASDHS RN via form AAS-9511.

K.  Contact each individual daily Monday through Friday, either in person or by phone, to
ensure the individual's safety and well-being. This is not required for:

1. Individuals receiving Frozen Home-Delivered Meals only for weekends; or

2. Individuals who receive Attendant Care services or Personal Care services at least
three {3) times per week.

Home-Delivered Meals, hot or frozen, shall be included in the beneficiary’s PCSP only when they
are necessary to prevent the institutionalization of an individual.

Frozen Home-Delivered Meals providers must recertify with DPSQA annually-BAAS-every-thres
years; however, BAASDPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency’s current Food Establishment
Permit at all times.

213.330 Limitations on Home-Delivered Meals (HDMs) 10-1-16

One unit of service equals one meal. The maximum number of HDMs eligible for Medicaid
reimbursement per month equals 31 meals. This includes hot, frozen or a combination of the
two. There is no separate benefit limit for frozen meals.

The maximum number of emergency meals per State Fiscal Year is four (4)

Frozen HDMs may be provided daily to eligible beneficiaries. A maximum of seven (7) meals
may be delivered at one time.

HDM providers may deliver more than seven meals at one time, if:

A.  The waiver beneficiary receives Attendant Care services or Personal Care services at least
three (3) limes per week,

B. Frozen HDMs are ordered on the Person-Centered Services Plan (PCSP),

C. The waiver beneficiary has the means of storing 14 frozen meals (as verified by the
BAASDHS RN).

HDM providers delivering frozen meals may deliver 14 at one time if the BAASDHS RN
enters 14 meals delivery approved in the comments section of the HDM entry on the
PCSP. If this statement is not on the PCSP, or if any of the other factors above are not in
place, the meal providers cannot deliver more than seven (7) meals at one time.

An ARChoices beneficiary may not be provided with a Hot or Frozen HDM on any day during
which the individual receives more than five (5) hours of in-home or facility-based Respite care
or more than five (5) hours of Adult Day Services or Adult Day Health Services. (Licensure
mandates that providers of these services provide a meal or meals; therefore, a HDM on these
dates is a duplicative service and prohibited under waiver guidelines.)

NOTE: Medicaid reimbursement for HDMs is not allowed on the same day to
beneficiaries who are also attending Adult Day Services, Adult Day Health
Services, or facility-based Respite care for more than five (5) hours. When
applying this policy, the time of day the beneficiary receives day services or

Section [I-48



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section II

respite services are alsc a factor. Whether there is duplication of services will be
determined by comparing the time of day during which services occur.

When considering whether a HDM is billable for an individual receiving Adult Day Services, Adult
Day Health Services or facility-based Respite services, on a specific date of service, the
following must be applied:

If an ARChoices beneficiary is receiving Adult Day Services, Adult Day Health Services or
facility-based Respite at any time between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 1:30 p.m. and the noon
meal is routinely served to others at the facility during this timeframe, the noon meal must also
be served to this individual. A HDM is not allowable on the same date of service. This is true
regardless of the total number of Adult Day Services, Aduilt Day Health Services or
Respite hours provided.

213.340 Combination of Hot and Frozen Home-Delivered Meals 1-1-16

In instances where the ARChoices beneficiary wishes to receive a combination of hot and frozen
meals, the BAASDHS RN shall evaluate the beneficiary's situation based on the criteria set forth
in Section 213.320, Frozen Home-Delivered Meals. If the criteria are met, the-DAASDHS RN
may prescribe on the PCSP a combination of hot and frozen meals to be delivered.

213.350 Emergency Meals 10-1-16

Beneficiaries may receive up to four (4) emergency meals per state fiscal year. The meals must:

A, Contain 33 1/3 percent of the Dietary Reference intakes established by the Food and
Nutrition Board of the National Academy of Sciences and comply with the Dietary
Guidelines for Americans and Diviei j j
(DAABHSBAAS) Nutrition Services Program Pelicy Number 208.

Be labeled “Emergency Meal” in large print, with instruction on use of the meal.

C.  Be used within the limits of their shelf life, usually within six months.

213.400 Personal Emergency Response System 1-1-16

Procedure Code Required Modifier  Description
85161 UA PERS Unit

S5160 — PERS Installation

The Personal Emergency Response System (PERS) is an in-home, 24-hour electric support
system with two-way verbal and electronic communication with an emergency control center.
PERS enables an elderly, infirm or homebound individual fo secure immediate help in the event
of a physical, emoticnal or environmental emergency.

PERS is specifically designed for high-risk beneficiaries whose needs have been carefully
determined based on their level of medical vulnerability, functional impairment and social
isolation. PERS is not intended to be a universal benefit. The DAASDHS RN must verify that
the individual is capable, both physically and mentally, of operating the PERS unit.

PERS must be included in the beneficiary's written ARChoices PCSP.

PERS providers must contact each beneficiary at least once per month to test the system’s
operation. The provider shall maintain a log of test calls that includes the date and time of the
test, specific test results, corrective actions and cutcomes.

Section 1l-49



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section I

A log of all beneficiary calls received must be maintained by the emergency response center.
The log must reflect the date, time and nature of the call and the response initiated by the center.
All calls must be documented in the beneficiary’s record. See Section 214.000 for other
documentation requirements

One (1) unit of service equals cne (1) day month, PERS is limited to a maximum of thirke-cne
£2H-unitspermonth twelve (12) units per year

The instailation of PERS will be allowed once per lifetime or period of eligibility. Claims
submitted for the installation of PERS should use procedure code 85160. Procedure code
$5160 may be billed for ARChoices beneficiaries who are accessing PERS services for their first
time or for the current period of re-eligibility for ARChoices Waiver Services. In the event of
extenuating circumstances that result in the need for reinstallation, the provider may contact the
Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services ef-Agingand-Adult-Serdees for
extension of the benefit.

213.410 Personal Emergency Response System {PERS) Certification 10-1-16
Requirements

To be certified by Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance {(DPSQA) Agingand-Adult
Services{DAAS) as a provider of personal emergency response services, a provider must:

A.  Provide, install and maintain Federal Communications Commission (FCC) approved
equipment which meets all Underwriter Laboratories Safety Siandards;

B. Designate or operate an emergency response center to receive signals and respond
according to specified operating protocol;

C. Establish a response system for each beneficiary and ensure responders receive
necessary instruction and training; and

D. Ensure that equipment is installed by qualified providers who also provide instruction and
training to beneficiaries.

PERS providers must recertify annually with DPSQADAAS.

213.500 Adult Day Services 10-1-16

Procedure Required Description

Code Modifier
S5100 U1 Adult Day Services, 8-20 Units Per Date of Service
$5100 — Adult Day Services, 21-40 Linits Per Date of Service

Adult day services facilities are licensed by the Cffice-of-LorgTFerm-Care{OLTS) Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) to provide care and supervision to meet the

needs of four (4) or more functionally impaired aduits for periods of less than 24 hours but more
than two (2) hours per day, in a place other than the beneficiaries’ own homes.

Section II-56



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

When provided according to the beneficiary’s written ARChoices Person-Centered Service Plan
(PCSP), ARChoices beneficiaries may receive adult day services for 8 or more units (2 or more
hours) per day, not to exceed 40 units (10 hours) per day, according to the beneficiary’s written
PCSP. Adult day services of less than 8 units (2 hours) per day are not reimbursable by
Medicaid. Adult day services may be utilized up to 200 units (50 hours} per week, not to exceed
920 units {230 hours) per month. One (1) unit of service equals 15 minutes.

As required, beneficiaries who are present in the facility for more than 20 units (5 hours) a day
(procedure code $5100) must be served a nutritious meal that equals one-third of the
Recommended Daily Allowance. Therefore, ARChoices beneficiaries are not eligible to receive
a home-delivered meal on the same day they receive more than 20 units (5 hours) of adutt day
services. Additionally, beneficiaries who attend an adult day service for more than 20 units (5
hours) are not eligible to receive Attendant Care services on the same date of service unless

authorized by the Bivisien-ef-Aging-and-Aduli- Services Registered-Nurse-{DAASDHS RN).

NOTE: As stated in this manual, home-delivered meals may not be provided on the same
day for an individual who attends adult day services, adult day health services, or
facility-based respite care for more than 20 units {5 hours). The time of day the
beneficiary is receiving day services, day health services or respite services is
also a factor in the application of this policy. The time of day services are
received will be reviewed by the DAASDHS RN and/or Department of Human
Services (DHS) audit staff and considered when determining any duplication in
services for beneficiaries participating in the ARChoices Program.

Providers must consider the following to determine whether a home-delivered meal is billable for
an individual receiving day services, day health services or facility-based respite services on a
specific date of service.

If an ARChoices beneficiary is receiving day services, day health services or facility-based
respite between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 1:30 p.m. and the noon meal is routinely served to
others at the facility during this time frame, the noon meal must also be served to this individual.
A home-delivered meal is not allowable on the same date of service. This is true regardless of
the total number of day services or respite units provided.

Adult day services and day health services providers are required to maintain a daily attendance
log of beneficiaries. Section 214.000 contains information regarding additional documentation
requirements.

213.510 Adult Day Services Certification Requirements 10-1-16

To be certified by the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance {DPSQA) Aging-and
Adult-Services{BAAS) as a provider of adult day services in Arkansas, a provider must be a
person, corporation, partnership, association or organization licensed by the Arkansas
Department of Human Services, Office-oflorgFerm-Care Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance as a long-term adult day care facility. Providers in the designated trade area
cities in states that border Arkansas must be licensed and/or certified by the appropriate state
agency as an Adult Day Care Facility.

In order to be certified by BAASDPSQA, Adult Day Services providers must meet the Home and
Community-Based Services (HCBS) Settings rules found in section C of 201.105.

Adult Day Services providers must recertify with BAAS everythree years DPSQA annually,
however, BAAS DPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency’s current Adult Day Care license at
all times.

In order to be recertified by DPSQABAAS, Aduit Day Services providers must meet the HCBS
Settings rules found in section C of 201.105.

Providers are required to submit copy of renewed license to DPSQADAAS

Section II-51



ARChoices in Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section il

213.600 Adult Day Health Services (ADHS) 10-1-16

Procedure Required

Code Modifier Description
S5100 TD, U1 Adult Day Health Services, 8-20 Units Per Date of Service
S5100 TD Adu't Day Health Services, 21-40 Units Per Date of Service

Adult day health services facilities are licensed to provide a continuing, organized program of
rehabilitative, therapeutic and supportive health services. sociai services and activities to
beneficiaries who are functionally impaired and who, due to the severity of their functional
impairment, are not capable of fully independent living.

Adult day health services programs provide rehabilitative and health services directed toward
meeting the health restoration and maintenance needs of the beneficiary that cannot be provided
by aduit day care programs. Adult day health services are appropriate cniy for beneficiaries
whose facility-developed care plans specify one or more of the following heaith services:

A Rehabilitative therapies (e.g., physical therapy, occupational therapy),
B. Pharmaceutical supervision,

C. Diagnostic evaluation or

D. Health monitoring

ARChoices beneficiaries may receive adult day heaith services for 8 or more units (2 or maore
hours} per day. not to exceed 40 units (10 hours) per day when the service is provided according
to the beneficiary’s written ARChoices Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP). Aduit day heaith
services of less than 8 units (2 hours) per day are not reimbursable by Medicaid., Adult day
health services may be utilized up to 200 units (50 hours) per week, not tc exceed 920 units (230
hours) per month.

Beneficiaries who are present in the facility for more than 20 units (5 hours) a day (procedure
code 85100, modifier TD) must be served a nutritious meal that equals one-third of the
Recommended Daily Dietary Allowances. Therefore, ARChoices beneficiaries are not eligible to
receive a home-delivered meal on the same day they receive more than five (5) hours of adult
day health services. Additionally, beneficiaries who attend an adult day health services for more
than 20 units (5 hours} are not eligible to receive Attendant Care services on the same date of

service unless authorized by the Bivisioh-of-Aging-and-Adult-Services {DAASL{DHSBAAS RN).

Adult day health services providers are required by licensure to maintain a daily attendance log
of beneficiaries. See Section 214.000 for additional documentation requirements.

NOTE: As stated in this manual, home-delivered meals may not be provided on the same.
day for an individual who attends adult day services, adult day health services, or
facility-based respite care for more than 20 units (5 hours). The time of day the
beneficiary is receiving day services or respite services is also a factor in the
application of this policy. The time of day services are received will be reviewed
by the BAASDHS RN and/or Departinent of Human Services {DHS) audit staff and
considered when determining any duplication in services for beneficiaries
participating in the ARChoices Program.

Section [1-52



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Providers must consider the following to determine whether a home-delivered meal is billable for
an individual receiving day services or facility-based respite services on a specific date of
service.

If an ARChoices beneficiary is receiving day services or facility-based respite between the hours
of 11:00 a.m. and 1:30 p.m. and the noon meal is routinely served to others at the facility during

this time frame, the noon meal must also be served to the individual. A home-delivered meal is

not allowable on the same date of service. This is true regardiess of the total humber of day
services or respite units provided.

213.610 Adult Day Health Services (ADHS) Provider Certification 10-1-16
Requirements

To be certified by the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) as a provider of
adult day health services in Arkansas, a provider must be a person, corporation, partnership,
association or organization licensed by Arkansas Department of Human Services Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance as a-lerg-term an aduit day health care facility. Providers in
the designated trade area cities in states that border Arkansas must be licensed and/or certified by
the appropriate state agency as an Adult Day Health Care Facility.

In order to be certified by BAASDPSQA, Adult Day Health Services providers must meet the
Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Settings rules found in section C of 201.105.

Adult Day Health Services providers must recertify with DAAS-every-three years DPSQA
annually; however, BAASDPSQA must maintain a copy of the agency’s current Adult Day Health
Care license at all times. In order to be recertified, Adult Day Health Services providers must
meet the HCBS Settings rules found in section C of 201.105.

Providers are required fo submit copy of renewed license to BAASDAABHS.

NOTE: Adult day services and adult day health services are not allowed on the same
date of service.

213.620 Prevocational Services
Procedure Code Modifier  Description
T2015 Prevocational Services
Skills Development
T2015 U3 Prevocational Services

Career Exploration

Prevocational services are available to ARChoices waiver participants with physical
disabilities who wish to join the general workforce. Prevocational Services comptrise a range
of learning and experiential type activities that prepare a participant for paid employment or
self-employment in the community.

Prevocational services are as follows:
1. Development and teaching of general employability skills (non-job-task-specific strengths

and skills) directly relevant to the participant's pre-employment needs and successful
participation in individual paid employment. These skills are: ability to communicate

Section 1I-53



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Seaction Il

effectively with supervisors, coworkers, and customers; an understanding of generally
accepted community workplace conduct and dress; the ability to follow directions; the
ability to attend to tasks; workplace problem-solving skills and strategies; general
workplace safety and mobility training; the ability to navigate local transportation options;
and skills related to obtaining paid employment. Excluded are services involving
development or training of job-specific or job-task criented skills.

2. Career exploration activities designed to develop an individual career plan and facilitate
the participant’s experientially-based informed choice regarding the goal of individual
paid employment. These may include business tours, informational interviews, job
shadows, benefits education and financial literacy, assistive technology assessment, and
local job exploration events. The expected outcome of career exploration activities is a
written, actionable, person-centered career plan designed to lead to community
empioyment or self-employment for the participant.

The expected outcome of prevocational services is individual employment in the general
workforce, or self-employment, in a setting typically found in the community, where the
participant interacts with individuals without disabilities, other than those providing services
to the participant or other individuals with disabilities, to the same extent that individuals
without disabilities in comparable positions interact with other persons; and for which the
participant is compensated at or above the minimum wage, but not less than the customary
wage and level of benefits paid by the employer for the same or similar work performed by
individuals without disabilities.

Prevocational services may be provided one-to-one or in a small group format and may be
provided as a site-based service or in a community setting, consistent with requirements of
the ARChoices provider manual.

All prevocational services must be prior approved in the participant's person-centered
service plan, provided through a DPSQA-certified prevocational services provider, and
delivered and documented consistent with requirements of the ARChoices provider manual.

Prevocational services exclude any services otherwise available to the individual under a
program funded under section 110 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Rehab Act), the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), or any other federally funded (non-
Medicaid) source. Proper documentation shall be maintained in the file of each individual
receiving prevocational services under the waiver.

The amount of all prevocational services provided to any participant shall not exceed $2,500
per lifetime.

The amount of career exploration activities provided per participant shall not exceed 30
hours.

The duration of prevocational services provided to any given participant shall be limited to
180 days (six months). Services not completed within this timeframe are not covered.

Fifteen (15) minutes of service equals one (1) unit

Providers of Prevocational Services under the ARChoices waiver program must be certified
by the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance and must recertify annually.

Reimbursement is not permitted for prevocational services provided by a waiver
beneficiary’s:

a Spouse,
b Legal guardian of the person; or

Section 1I-54



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

¢. Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary's care

213.700 Respite Care 10-1-16
Procedure Code Description
T1005 Long-Term Facility-Based Respite Care
55135 Short-Term Facility-Based Respite Care
85150 in-Home Respite Care

Respite

Care is provided to waiver participants unable to care for themselves and is furnished on
a limited or short-term basis because of the absence of, or need for relief of, those persons
normally providing the care.

Specifically, Respite Care consists of temporary care provided for short term relief for the

primary

caregiver, subject to the following:

1. The participant lives at home and is cared for, without compensation, by their families or
other informal support systems;

2. As determined by the independent assessment, the participant has a severe physical,
mental, or cognitive impairment(s) that prevents him or her from being left alone safely in the
absence or unavailability of the primary caregiver;

3. The primary caregiver to be relieved is identified and with sufficient documentation that he or

she

furnishes substantial care of the client comparable to or in excess of services described

under the Attendant Care service;

4. No other alternative caregiver (e.g., other member of household, other family member) is
available to provide a respite for the primary caregiver(s);

5. Respite Care services are limited to {a) direct human assistance with specific Activities of

Dail

y Living (ADLs), Instrumental Activities of Daily Living {IADLs), and health-related tasks

as described under Attendant Care services and (b} supervision necessary to maintain the

hea

[th and safety of the participant, as supported by the independent assessment and

determined medically necessary by the DHS RN; and

6. Respite Care solely serves to supplement (not replace) and otherwise facilitate the continued
availability of care provided to waiver participants by families and other informal support
systems.

Respite Care is available on a short-term basis (8 hours or less per date of service) or a long-
term basis (a full 24 hours per date of service) because of the absence or need for relief of those
persons who normally provide care for the participant. Respite Care is available to meet an

emerge

ncy need or to schedule relief periods in accordance with the regular caregiver's need for

temporary relief from continuous care giving.

Section I1-55



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Secticn ||

Respite Care is available in the following locations:

The Participant's home or place of residence;

Medicaid-certified hospital;

Medicaid-certified nursing facility;

Medicaid-certified adult day health facility; and

Medicaid-certified assisted living facility with a level Il state license.

Al

To allow the person who normally provides care for the waiver participant some time away from
his or her caregiving of the participant, Respite Care may be provided in or cutside the
participant's home as follows:

1. In-home respite may be provided for up to 24 hours per date of service.
2. Facility-based respite care may be provided outside the participant's home on:
a. A short-term basis {eight (8) hours or less per date of service), or

b. A long-term (maximum of 24 hours per date of service and used most often when respite
needed exceeds the short-term respite amount).

Reimbursement is only permitted for direct care rendered according to the participant’s person-
centered service plan by trained respite care workers employed and supervised by certified in-
home respite providers.

Respite care is subject to the following limitations:

1. The purpase of Respite Care s 1o provide respiie for unpaid caragivers. The amount,
frequency, and duration of Respite Care must be entirely consistent with the amounts,
frequencies, and durations of assistance from unpaid caregivers identified and calculated for
the beneficiary in the compieled form of the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards
{“THS"). Any amounts, frequencies, or durations in excess of the unpaid caregiver
assistance amcunts identified {or ihe benaficiary in the THS are not covered.

2. Respite Care excludes:

a. Skilled health professional services, including physician, nursing, therapist, and
pharmacist services.

b. Services within the scopes of practice of licensed cosmetologists, manicurists,
electrologists, or aestheticians, except for necessary assistance with personal hygiene
and basic grooming;

¢. Services provided for any other person other than the participant;

d. Companion, socialization, entertainment, or recreational services or activities of any kind,
including, but not limited to, game playing, television watching, arts and crafts, hobbies,
and other activities pursued for pleasure, relaxation, or fellowship;

e. Habilitation services, including but not limited to, assistance in acquiring, retaining, or
improving self-help, socialization, and/or adaptive skills; and

i Services provided for any tasks not included in a beneficiary’s service plans

4 Participants are limited to no more than 1,200 hours (4,800 quarter-hour units) per year of in-
home respite care, facility-based respite care, or a combination thereof. Respite care is not

Section II-56



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

subject to a monthly or weekly limit, but 1s limited to the annual amount of time identified and
calculated for the beneficiary in the completed form of the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour
Standards

4, Respite Care services are not covered to provide continuous or substitute care while the
primary caregiver(s) is working or attending school.

5 Reimbursement is not permitted for Respite Care services provided by a waiver
beneficiary’s

a Spouse,
b Legal guardian of the person, or
¢ Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary’s care.

In the event the in- home functlonal assessments performed by the Independent Assessment
Contractor and the Di = '

substantiates a need for resplte care services, the service wnII be authonzed as needed, via the
beneficiary’s PCSP, not to exceed an hourly maximum. The DAASDHS RN will establish the
service limitation based on the beneficiary’s medical need, other services included on the PCSP
and support services available to the beneficiary. Respite care services must be provided
according to the beneficiary's written PCSP subject to the participant’s Individual Services
Budget.

An individual living in the home with the beneficiary is prohibited from serving as a Respite
Services provider for the beneficiary.

213.711 Facility-Based Respite Care 10-1-16

Facility-based respite care may be provided outside the beneficiary’s home on a short- or long-
term basis by cedified-aduli-family-homes; residential care facilities, nursing facilities, adult day
care facilities, adult day health care facilities, Level | and Level |l Assisted Living Facilities and
hospitals.

Facility-based providers rendering services for eight (8) hours or less per date of service must bill
$5135 for short-term, faciiity-based respite care. One (1) unit of service for procedure code
$5135 equals 15 minutes. Eligible beneficiaries may receive up to 32 units (8 hours}) of short-
term, facility-based respite care per date of service.

Facility-based providers rendering services for more than 32 units (8 hours) per day must bill
T1005 for long-term, facility-based respite care. One (1) unit of service for procedure code
T1005 equals 15 minutes. A beneficiary may receive up to 96 units {24 hours) of service per
date of service if the provider bills procedure code T1005.

Facility-based respite care services include short-term and long-term respite care services and
can include any combination of billing codes $5135 or T1005. A single provider may provide
both long-term and short-term facility-based respite care services for a particular beneficiary, but
not on the same date of service.

Eligible beneficiaries may receive up to 4800 units (1200 hours) per State Fiscal Year of Facility-
Based Resplte Care- or In Home Resplte Care, ora comblnatlon of the two. AdeH—Fam#y—Heme

Beneficiaries receiving long-term, facility-based respite care services may receive only
ARChoices Personal Emergency Response System (PERS) services concurrently.

Section 1I-57



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

Please refer to the NOTE found in Section 213.500 regarding Home-Delivered Meals and facility-
hased respite services.

213.712 In-Home Respite Care Certification Requirements 1-1-18

To be cert|f ed by the DIVISIOH of Prowder Servnces and Quallty Assurance (DPSQA) Aging-and
F : AS} as a provider of in-home

resplte care services, a prowder must:

A.  Hold a current Class A and/or Class B Home Health Agency license or a Private Care
Agency license to provide personal care and/or home health services as issued by the
state licensing authority;

B. Employ and supervise direct care staff trained and qualified to provide respite care
sarvices; and

C. Agree to the minimum Assurances of Providers of ARChoices Waiver Services.

In-Home Respite Care providers as described in A. above must recertify with BAAS every-three
years annually; however, DPSQABAAS must maintain a copy of the agency’s current license at
all times.

Providers are required to submit copy of renewed license to DPSQADAAS.

213.713 Facility-Based Respite Care Certification Requirements 1-1-16
To be certified by the Division of Agingaed-Adult-Sesuees Provider Services and Qualty

Aszurance (DPSGA) as a provider of facility-based respite care services, a provider must be
licensed in their state as one or more of the following:

A A cortif It faemi
A licensed adult day care facility

A licensed adult day health care facility
A licensed nursing facility

A licensed residential care facility

A licensed Level 1 or Level Il Assisted Living Facility

T m o o >

A licensed hospital

Facility-Based Respite Care providers as listed abovewith-the exseption-ofa-cerified-adult
famil-heme, must recertify with BAAS evercthree-years DPSQA annually, however,

DPSQABAAS must maintain a current copy of the facility's current license at all times.

Section lI-58



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

214.000 Documentation 1Mn4e

[n addition to the service-specific documentation requirements previously listed,
ARChoices providers must develop and maintain sufficient written documentation
to support each service for which billing is made This documentation, at a
minimum, must consist of;

A. A copy of the beneficiary’'s PCSP
B. A brief description of the specific service(s) provided

C.  The signature and title of the individual rendering the service(s)

1.  Forrecords created through an electronic data system such as
telephony, computer or other electronic devices, a unique identifier
such as a PIN number assigned to and entered by the employee at
the time of data input may suffice as an electronic sighature and fitle
and

D.  The date and actual time the service(s) was rendered For Attendant Care
or In-Home Respite Care, it Is not necessary fo itemize the time spent on
each individua! ADL or IADL task

A provider's failure to maintain sufficient documentation to support his or her
billing practices may result in recoupment of Medicaid payment.

No documentation for ARChoices services, as with all Medicaid services, may be
made in pencil.

215.000 ARChoices Forms

ARChoices providers are required to utilize all program forms as appropriate and as instructed

by the Division of Medical Services and the Divisien-of-Aging-and-Adult-SerdeesDivision of

Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services. These forms include but are not limited to:
A.  Person Centered Service Plan — AAS-9503

B. Start Services — AAS-9510
C. Beneficiary Change of Status — AAS—9511

Providers may request form AAS—9511 by wntlng to the lesmn of Aglng Adult and Behaworal
Health andrAdqut Serwces fovre ! 5

Forms AAS-9503 and AAS-9510 will be mailed to the provider by the BAASDHS RN.

Instructions for completion and retention are included with each form. If there are questions

regarding any ARChoices form, providers may contact the BAASDHS RN in your area.
240.000 PRIOR AUTHORIZATION 1-1-16

Attendant care, personal care, and prevocational services provided under an authorized PCSP
require prior authorization. Serdses Other services provided under the ARChoices Program
under an authorized PCSP do not require prior authorization.

Section 11-59



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver Section Il

250.000 REIMBURSEMENT

251.010 Fee Schedules 1-1-16

Arkansas Medicaid provides fee schedules on the Arkansas Medicaid website. The fee
schedule link is located at https://medicaid.mmis.arkansas.gov under the provider manual
section. The fees represent the fee-for-service reimbursement methodology.

Fee schedules do not address coverage limitations or special instructions applied by Arkansas
Medicaid before final payment is determined.

Procedure codes and/or fee schedules do not guarantee payment, coverage or amount altowed.
Information may be changed or updated at any time to correct a discrepancy andfor error.
Arkansas Medicaid always reimburses the lesser of the amount billed or the Medicaid maximum.

260.000 BILLING PROCEDURES 1-1-16
262.100 HCPCS Procedure Codes 10-1-16

The foliowing procedure codes must be billed for ARChoices Services,

Electronic and paper claims now require the same National Place of Service code.

National

Procedure Unit of POS for

Code Modifiers Description Service Claims

5140 Leavelb—101 AdultFamily-Homes A-clae et}

Leval B—1J2
bmpslo— 2
55125 Attendant Care Services 15 12
minutes

$5125 uz Agency Attendant Care 15 12, 99
Traditional minutes

S5170 U2 Home-Delivered Meals 1 meal 12

S5170 Frozen Home-Delivered Meal 1 meal 12

S5170 U1 Emergency Home Delivered 1 meal 12
Meals

S5161 UA Personal Emergency 1 day 12
Response System

S5160 Personal Emergency One 12
Response System - install
installation

S5100 U1 Adult Day Services, 8 to 20 15 a9
units per date of service minuies

S5100 Adult Day Services, 21 to 40 15 99
units per date of service minutes

Section II-60



ARChoices In Homecare Home and Community-Based 2176 Waiver

Section Il

National
Procedure Unit of POS for
Code Modifiers Description Service Claims
55100 TD, U1 Adult Day Health Services, 8 15 99
to 20 units per date of service minutes
55100 TD Adult Day Health Services, 21 15 99
to 40 units per date of service  minutes
35150 Respite Care — In-Home 15 12
minutes
S$5135 Respite Care — Short-Term 15 98, 21, 32
Facility-Based minutes
T1005 Respite Care — Long-Term 15 21,32, 99
Facility-Based minutes
T2015 Prevocaticnal Services
Skills Development 15 minutes 11, 12, 89
T2015 U3 Prevocational Services
Career Exploration 16 minutes 11, 12, 99
262.210 Place of Service Codes 1-1-16
The national place of service (POS) code is used for both electronic and paper billing.
Place of Service POS Codes
Inpatient Hospital 21
Beneficiary’s Home 12
Day Care Facility 99
Nursing Facility 32
Provider's Office 11
Cther Locations 99
262.400 Special Billing Procedures — Environmental Modifications/Adaptive 10-1-16
Equipment

Prior to payment for this service, the ARChoices beneficiary is required to secure three separate

itemized bids for the same service. The bids are reviewed by the D

Bhdsion-efhgingand-Adult
Registered-Nurse{DAASDHS RNj-or designee prior to submission for Medicaid

payment. If only two bids can be secured due o a shortage of qualified providers in the service
area, documentation attesting to the attempt to secure bids and the shortage of providers must

be provided.

Each claim must be signed by the provider, the ARChoices beneficiary, and BAASDHS RN, or
designee. A statement of satisfaction form must be signed by the ARChoices beneficiary prior to
any claim being submitted. Please refer to 213.290 for additional information.

Section II-_61-






